
AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION SEPTEMBER 

3, 2019 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:00 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 

A. ROLL CALL:
1. Roll call of all City Commissioners.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

C. MINUTES:
1. Consider approval of the minutes from the August 20, 2019 Board

of City Commission regular meeting.

D. PUBLIC HEARING:

E. BIDS:
1. Request permission from Public Works to accept bids relating to

contingent heavy equipment rates.

F. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Consider proclaiming Friday, November 1, 2019 Extra Mile Day in

Mandan ND.
2. Consider approval of Engage Addition minor plat.
3. Consider approval of the Bismarck Mandan Rifle Pistol Association

charity raffle permit for a one day event at the Baymont Inn &
Suites on December 14, 2019.

G. OLD BUSINESS:

H. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Consider approving the selection of Stantec for assistance of

procurement and implementation of brownfields grants.
2. Consider appointment of Victoria Vayda to the Planning and Zoning

Commission to fulfill an At-Large member term ending December
2022.

3. Consider contract with Bartlett & West for Phase I Site Planning
and Project Programming for the Morton Mandan Public Library
and Downtown Parks project.

4. Consider approval of Engineering Service Agreement contract with
Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East Street Improvement District
Project (SID 215).

5. Consider Approval of Mandan Raw Water Intake project Ad for Bid
and State Water Commission Grant Acceptance.

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

September 3, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

I. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:
1. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1325 to amend and

re-enact Sections 4 and 5 of Sec. 24-12-8 of the Mandan Code of
Ordinances relating to violation for not carrying liability insurance.

2. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1323 related to a
zoning district amendment for proposed Meadow Ridge 4th

Addition.
3. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1324 related to a

zoning district amendment for proposed Meadow Ridge 5th

Addition.
4. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1322 related to a

zoning district amendment for proposed Engage Addition.
5. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1321 related to Lots 4

& 5, Block 1 of Midway 14th Addition.
6. Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1320 related to

crematoriums.
7. Consider approval of the resolution to transfer real property by

nonexclusive listing agreement.

J. OTHER BUSINESS:

K. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS:
1. September 17, 2019
2. October 1, 2019
3. October 15, 2019

L. ADJOURN

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 1 of 20 
The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on August 20, 2019 in 

the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  Mayor Helbling called the 
meeting to order.   
 
A.       ROLL CALL:  
1.        Roll Call of All City Commissioners.  Present were Mayor Helbling, Commissioners 
Braun, Davis, Rohr and Larson. Department Heads present were, Finance Director Welch, Fire 
Chief Nardello, Building Official Ouradnik, Deputy Chief Flaten, Planning & Engineering 
Director Froseth, Principal Planner Van Dyke, Business Development and Communications 
Director Huber, Police Chief Ziegler, Assessor Teigen, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of 
Public Works Bitz and Attorney Brown.  Absent:  Assessor Markley, Human Resource Director 
Cullen. 
 
Mayor Helbling extended a thank you to Chief Ziegler and the staff and officers from the Police 
Department for their work in sponsoring of the Police Department’s annual community picnic 
event.  Many compliments and positive comments were received.   
 
2.          Introduction of new MPD K9 dog and his handler, Officer Scott Warzecha.  Police Chief 
Ziegler invited Bob Kupper and Officer Scott Warzecha to be introduced along with Canine 
Kupper, the new K9 dog, who is 1 year 8 months old and is a great addition to the Mandan 
Police Department.  He is trained for meth, cocaine, heroin and tracking bad guys.  He is from 
the Czech-Republic.  The Police Chief explained the selection process for the dog.  He said that a 
second canine will be sought soon and trained next year.   
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   
 
C. MINUTES: 
1.         Consider approval of the minutes from the August 6, 2019 Board of City Commission 
regular meeting. Commissioner Larson moved to approve the minutes as presented.   
Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes.  Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.  
 
D.       PUBLIC HEARING:   
1.        First consideration of Ordinance 1320 related to crematoriums. City Planner Van Dyke 
presented a request for approval of first consideration of Ordinance 1320 related to 
crematoriums. He said that an ordinance that was recently adopted would restrict crematoriums 
to within the Mandan Union Cemetery. The Board of City Commissioners directed staff to 
reevaluate the ordinance as it pertains to crematoriums. Through the process, funeral homes in 
the area provided comment, several public hearings were held and staff also researched land use 
standards from other communities. The original staff recommendation was provided in Exhibit 1 
and the final Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation is in Exhibit 2. City Staff 
provided alternative recommendation based on many public hearings that have occurred on the 
issue since the original recommendation. The recommendation can be found in Exhibit 3.  The 
alternative city staff recommended is to provide protections to existing home owners and 
developments that is not burdensome to a business owner. City staff recommended that 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 2 of 20 
crematoriums be placed in an industrial zoning district with a 50’ setback from the property line. 
In addition, a 350’ setback applies to existing dwellings at the time of building permit issuance. 
Further, staff is recommending that these standards apply to the use and that no special use 
permit be required. These restrictions should address the issues that were discussed throughout 
the many hearings that took place in preceding months.  P & Z unanimously approved of this 
recommendation and it has been reviewed and approved by Attorney Brown.  The Engineering 
and Planning Department recommended approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1320 as 
presented in Exhibit 3.  
 
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing regarding the First consideration of 
Ordinance 1320 related to crematoriums.  He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or 
against this Ordinance.  A second announcement was made to come forward to speak for or 
against this Ordinance. A final announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against 
this Ordinance.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   
 
Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1320 as presented in 
Exhibit 3. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor 
Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
2.          Preliminary/final plat and first consideration of Ordinance 1321 related to a zoning 
district amendment for proposed Midway Fourteenth Addition First Replat. City Planner Van 
Dyke presented a request for approval of preliminary/final plat and first consideration of 
Ordinance 1321 related to a zoning district amendment for proposed Midway Fourteenth 
Addition First Replat.  He stated that E-C ND Investments, LLC is seeking the removal of 
zoning restrictions to allow for a warehouse addition to their existing structure. Other properties 
in the same Midway 14th development underwent a zone change in 2013 to remove restrictions. 
This rezone request would bring the development under the same zoning provisions. The 
applicant is also seeking a preliminary and final plat to consolidate the three lots into one lot for 
the purposes of building expansion. This document including Ordinance 1321 have been 
reviewed and approved by Attorney Brown.  The Engineering and Planning Department also 
recommended approval of the zoning amendment to CC-Commercial without restrictions as 
presented in Exhibit 2, the preliminary plat as presented in Exhibit 3 and the final plat as 
presented in Exhibit 4. 
 
City Planner Van Dyke  recommended approval of the zoning amendment to CC-Commercial 
without restrictions as presented in Exhibit 2, the preliminary plat as presented in Exhibit 3, and 
the final plat as presented in Exhibit 4. 
  
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing regarding the Preliminary/final plat and first 
consideration of Ordinance 1321 related to a zoning district amendment for proposed Midway 
Fourteenth Addition First Replat.  He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against this 
Ordinance.   
 
Spence Koenig came forward and stated that he owns the property to the north of this property 
and he stated that he supports the request to put all three lots together.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 3 of 20 
Chris Houwman came forward and stated that he is the President of Malloy Electric and also the 
owner of E-C ND LLC.  He provided a summary of the background of Malloy, a company that 
has been in the area since 1945.  It is a family owned business that has six service centers in the 
upper mid-western states.  They offer contract services and they employ engineers, mechanics, 
winders, and machinists.  There are three market divisions and the primary business is described 
as “anything that feeds a motor”.  They are trying to expand their business layout in Mandan.  
They opened in Mandan in 2016 with one person and as of today they employ 23.  Most business 
comes from outside Mandan but the dollars stay in Mandan.  Currently they can handle up to 
4,000 horsepower with anticipation of increasing that to 20,000 horsepower and they want to 
double the plant and eventually double the plant again.  The main concern is to get semi-trailers 
in and out safely and that can be accomplished with the plan being proposed.  He said that 
Malloy is committed to the Mandan Community and noted that the company had their first intern 
this summer and they have now offered their first scholarship at Bismarck State College.  The 
location of this building is on the east end of the strip, next to Action Motor Sports.   
 
Mayor Helbling provided a second announcement was made to come forward to speak for or 
against this Ordinance. 
 
Guy Halvorson, from Stockman’s Supply came forward and stated that his business is north of 
the Malloy building and he stated that they support the combining of the lots for zoning 
purposes.   
 
A final announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against this Ordinance.  
Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   
 
Mayor Helbling announced that this action is only dealing with the change to Ordinance 1321. 
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the zoning amendment to CC-Commercial without 
restrictions as presented in Exhibit 2, the preliminary plat as presented in Exhibit 3, and the final 
plat as presented in Exhibit 4. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; 
Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
3.          Consider variance for Lot 3, Block 1, Midway 14th Addition to the required setback 
based on tower height.  City Planner Van Dyke requested approval for a variance for Lot 3, 
Block 1, Midway 14th Addition to the required setback based on tower height. He reported that 
Powder River Engineering Services, LLC representatives for Mr. Spence Koenig is applying for 
a variance to the setback requirement for communications towers. The setback requirement is 
110% of the height of the structure to the property line.  The proposed tower is 200 feet tall and 
would require the structure to be 220 feet from the property line. A site plan was provided in 
Exhibit 2. The applicants have provided a letter stamped by an engineer outlining the most likely 
scenario of failure in Exhibit 3.  
 
City Planner Van Dyke reviewed the requirements under the Mandan Code of Ordinances in 
granting a variance:  Variance may be granted under the following circumstances (See Sec. 105-
1-12):   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 4 of 20 
         1.   There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings of the 
board, applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which circumstances 
or conditions are peculiar to such land or building, and do not apply generally to land or 
buildings in the neighborhood, and have not resulted from any act of the applicant taken 
subsequent to the adoption of this chapter, whether in violation of the provisions of the chapter, 
(or not). 
 
City Planner Van Dyke stated that there does not appear to be any special circumstances or 
conditions that apply to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought. 
 
         2.   For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the board, the circumstances or conditions 
so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the 
applicant of the reasonable use of said land or building, and the granting of the variance is 
necessary for the reasonable use of the land or building, and that the variance as granted by the 
board is the minimum variance that will accomplish the relief sought by the applicant; 
 
City Planner Van Dyke stated that the land does not have a commercial improvement on it at this 
time although it is sufficiently sized to accommodate many other commercial uses. A variance 
does not appear to be necessary to obtain a reasonable use of this land. 
 
        3.   The grant of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
this chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public 
welfare. 
 
City Planner Van Dyke stated that without certainty that a structural failure would not result in 
the structure crossing a property line as the setback ordinance is in place to provide, a grant of a 
variance does not appear to be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this chapter or 
to not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 
 
This document has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney and it was reviewed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission who unanimously recommended denial of the setback as 
outlined in the documentation.   
 
City Planner Van Dyke reported that the City Engineering and Planning Department has 
recommended denial of the setback of 220’ to 22 feet for failure to meet the requirements of 105-
1-12 surrounding variances to the zoning code for the reasons outlined in Exhibit 4. City Planner 
Van Dyke recommended denying the setback of 220’ to 22 feet for failure to meet the 
requirements of 105-1-12 surrounding variances to the zoning code for the reasons outlined in 
Exhibit 4. 
 
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing to consider variance for Lot 3, Block 1, 
Midway 14th Addition to the required setback based on tower height.  He invited anyone to come 
forward to speak for or against this variance request.   
 
Brandon Peterson (AT&T) from Arizona, came forward and stated he is representing Powder 
River Engineering Services, LLC and that he supports the request for the variance request 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 5 of 20 
brought by Spence Koenig.  He said he was unable to attend the recent Planning and Zoning 
meeting when this was discussed due to the short notice.  He said that the hardship case in this 
matter is due to the size and shape of the property as well as the location of the property, which 
is next to the interstate.  The development for Mr. Koenig’s business would be limited if the 
variance is denied.  The variance would also deny Mr. Koenig rental income for the tower that 
would be placed on the property that would in turn help develop it. The tower would be built in 
fashion that it would never break or fall over, rather it is designed so that it would bend at the 
base and would not break.   
 
Mayor Helbling provided a second announcement to come forward to speak for or against this 
variance. 
 
Spence Koenig came forward and stated he owns Direct Ag Supply in Mandan and has been in 
Mandan since 2012, starting with 2-3 employees and that has increased to 11 or 12 employees.  
He explained that they have locations in Mandan with anticipated plans to grow the business 
further.  A new addition to the company will be named Precision Planting and that will offer 
farming equipment, electronics and technology and that company will employ another 3-4 more 
people.  He said that in order to make this business plan financially feasible, the rental income 
from the tower would enhance his business cash flow.  He requested the City Commission 
approve the variance request as presented.  He provided photos of a map of the cell phone towers 
located in Mandan versus those in Bismarck (far exceeding the number of towers in Mandan).   
 
Brandon Peterson came back to the podium and stated that the reason for AT&T wants to come 
here is for the emergency response system that is going nationwide and AT&T won the contract 
for that system.  He said if that contract was not acquired by AT&T, he would not be here today 
supporting this request.    
 
Guy Halvorson came forward and stated that he is one of the owners in the building west of Mr. 
Koenig’s property.  He does not support this project due to the fact that his building is 147 feet 
away from the curb where that tower could possibly fall. He stated it could be a safety risk for 
his employees, customers and property.  
 
Mayor Helbling provided a final announcement to come forward to speak for or against this 
variance request.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.  
 
City Planner Van Dyke said that this is part of the Memorial Highway overlay so there may be 
some aesthetic concerns as 200 feet is a substantially tall tower so in addition to safety concerns 
the staff has noted aesthetic concerns.  Commissioner Rohr inquired if Powder River 
Engineering services wants to have a tower, is there a specific location where they want to put it?   
Are there other alternatives they can seek out as another location?  Brandon Peterson replied that 
he was given limited information when told to go find a location (for the tower).  He said he did 
not originally work this location however, he was in contact with Mr. Koenig and it is his goal to 
work out the best deal for the carrier and the business owner, in this case, Mr. Koenig.   
 
Commissioner Larson commented that she is aware that several residential Bismarck owners 
have complained about towers near their property so in this similar situation there are neighbor 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 6 of 20 
businesses that have voiced safety concerns and brought them forward and she said that the City 
Commission is obliged to listen to business owners as well as city residents.   
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the denial of the setback of 220’ to 22 feet for failure to 
meet the requirements of 105-1-12 surrounding variances to the zoning code for the reasons 
outlined in Exhibit 4.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 
Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; 
Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
4.          First consideration of Ordinance 1322 related to a zoning district amendment for select 
lots in Scott’s Acres (Proposed Engage Addition). City Planner Van Dyke presented a request for 
the approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1322 related to a zoning district amendment 
for select lots in Scott’s Acres. This property is located at the site of Engage Church off Old Red 
Trail NW.  He said that Engage Church is seeking to divide their property located to the 
southwest of the intersection of Old Red Trail NW and Highland Road NW and rezone one of 
the newly created lots to MA Industrial and the other to R7 Residential (See Exhibit 2).  The 
existing zoning is MA Industrial and R7 Residential. The request is to reorient the zoning district 
boundaries to align with the proposed lots. The MA Industrial zoning is currently located along 
the rear of the property. The R7 Residential is located along the front of the property (See 
Exhibit 1). City Planner Van Dyke stated that storage units are located to the west of the 
proposed industrially zoned property and there is utility outdoor storage to the south. Industrial 
uses are more appropriate than a single family residence for the land between Engage Church 
and the rest of this industrial area. He said that City Staff recommends approval of the zoning 
amendment in Exhibit 3 for the reasons as outlined in Exhibit 4. He outlined the reasons for 
approval including: 

• The property to the west and south are industrial zoned; the properties to the east/north 
are residentially zoned. 

• The proposed industrial zoning district boundary abuts one of Mandan’s large industrial 
parks. 

• The church provides a harmonious transition from more intense industrial uses to lesser 
intense residential uses to the north and east. 

• The existing zoning designations of MA Industrial and R7 Residential already exist on 
the property in a different configuration; this is a reconfiguration of what already exists 
on the property. 

 
City Planner Van Dyke stated that this document including Ordinance 1322 have been reviewed 
and approved by Attorney Brown.  The Engineering and Planning Department recommended 
approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1322 per Exhibit 3 based on the reasons outlined 
in Exhibit 4.  City Planner Van Dyke recommended approval of the first consideration of 
Ordinance 1322 based on Exhibit 3 including the outline in Exhibit 4. 
 
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing of the First consideration of Ordinance 1322 
related to a zoning district amendment for select lots in Scott’s Acres (Proposed Engage 
Addition).  He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against this variance request.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 7 of 20 
A second announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against this Ordinance. A 
final announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against this Ordinance.  Hearing 
none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1322 per Exhibit 3 
based on the reasons outlined in Exhibit 4.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call 
vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
5.         Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1323 related to a zoning 
district amendment and preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 4th Addition. City Planner Van Dyke 
presented a request for the approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1323 related to a 
zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for proposed Meadow Ridge 4th Addition.  He 
said the applicant is requesting approval for a rezone from MC-Industrial to RM-Residential and 
a preliminary plat to create four new lots. Each lot is planned to be further subdivided in the 
future once a specific placement for a twin-home has been determined. The lot line would then 
divide the shared wall so that each side of the structure could be owned independently. Exhibit 2 
contains the preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 4th Addition. 
 
City Planner Van Dyke stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval 
subject to a restriction only allowing single and two-family construction following concerns 
raised by adjacent residents. The applicant is amenable to this restriction.  This document, 
including Ordinance 1323 has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney.  The 
Engineering and Planning Department recommended approval of the first consideration of 
Ordinance 1323 as reflected in Exhibit 1 and the preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2. 
 
City Planner Van Dyke recommended approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1323 as 
reflected in Exhibit 1 and the preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2. 
 
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing of the First consideration of Ordinance 1323 
related to a zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 4th Addition.  
He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against this variance request.   
 
Loretta Landeis, 2901 Highway 1806 North, Mandan came forward to speak.  She stated she is 
concerned with this development and is against this request until their water problem is taken 
care of. She provided a photo of the original culvert since the road was built.  It used to be a 
county road.  She provided another photo of a culvert wherein storm water came down and 
washed the culvert out under Highway1806, a state road.  They (county) replaced it with three 36 
inch culverts.  She provided a photo of 28 inch culverts.  When the county owned the culvert she 
said there was mud coming down and washed out culvert.  The concern she has is there is water 
running across her private property with no easements, no right of ways and no infrastructure.  
This has damaged her drain field and caused damage to her private land.  Many trees on her 
property have died because of this.  She complained that their property has dropped in value but  
the taxes go up.  She requested she would like to have any more building planned for this area to 
be held up until they (city/county) address the water problem.  She requested the City 
Commission to vote “no” for any development in Meadow Ridge.  She requested that the city 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 8 of 20 
officials work together to fix the problem.  She requested postponing this action until a solution 
is found for the water problem.     
 
Dave Bjorndahl who lives on 7th Avenue Northwest, north of Meadow Ridge 4th Addition came 
forward to speak.  He stated he is in favor of passing the Ordinance 1323 related to a zoning 
district amendment and preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 4th Addition.   
 
Deb Dressler, 2512 7th Avenue Northwest, Mandan, came forward and stated she has a problem 
with no public lighting in this area of town.  She was concerned about putting in more buildings 
with multi-family dwellings because there is not enough public lighting.  She believes it is a 
hazard with no lighting. There is some lighting at the end of 26th but no lighting on 27th.  Mayor 
Helbling said that 27th is a state project and lighting is part of the project but that project has been 
pushed out for two years.  Director Froseth explained that the 27th Street improvements, was in 
the DOT’s TIP for 2021 but it has been bumped to 2022, after the 1806 project is reconstructed 
so they are not conflicting with each other.  He said that regarding the lighting in the Meadow 
Ridge Addition, that will have to wait until the next phase of Meadow Ridge to put all the street 
lights in.  The phases have been stretched out so those lights will have to wait.  When put in, the 
street light project will be assessed to the property owners when they are put in. 
 
Commissioner Rohr commented that he lived in that area previously and there were complaints 
about no street lights at that time. He inquired if the developer should be responsible for putting 
in street lighting?  Director Froseth stated that the city requires street lights to go in with new 
construction.  Mayor Helbling recollected that several years ago the city agreed that the 
developer could wait to put in street lights once there was 70% occupancy.  Mayor Helbling 
requested Director Froseth to address the street light issue in this area at a later time.   
 
Abe Ulmer with Toman Engineering came forward and stated he was the engineer on 1st and 3rd 
Meadow Ridge projects and he is also the engineer on the proposed 4th and 5th Meadow Ridge 
projects.  Regarding the street lights, he confirmed that Bismarck still allows occupancy at 70% 
before they do a special assessment district.  When the street lights just referred to were 
addressed previously, as a maintenance item, Dave Bechtl and Jeff Wright, former city directors, 
held off on putting street lights in this district.  He explained the process used today for the 
installation process for street lights.  He recalls the City asked they not put in the street lights at 
that time with the intention of putting them in sometime in a future phase of the Meadow Ridge 
projects, which will be done when looking at Meadow Ridge 5th.  He also clarified that with 
regard to the zoning issue that the developer consented for Meadow Ridge 4th to be duplex or 
single family.  He did ask that Meadow Ridge 5th be zoned as RM zoning with no constraints.  
Regarding the storm water, the city criteria will be followed.  There have been concerns for quite 
a while on the water problems and that the county is involved.  He said the engineers are willing 
to move forward with these projects and said that before doing so, everything is reviewed before 
building on that property. 
 
Mayor Helbling commented that the four lots discussed are already draining into the watershed 
and will have little impact on the water shed.  City Planner Van Dyke agreed it will be the same 
rate of flow.  
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 9 of 20 
Jo Wyeth came forward to comment on the lighting issue in this area.  She stated she wants the 
Commission to understand the safety problem that exists.  She lives on 6th Avenue Northwest 
and she believes that there is increased concerns if there will be additional multi-family units 
built.  She requested that if this project moves forward that lighting must be part of the project.   
 
Director Froseth clarified that the street lighting is not planned with the 27th Street project, rather 
it will happen with the next phase of Meadow Ridge 5th development.   
 
City Planner Van Dyke cautioned adding street lights to Meadow Ridges 1 thru 3 and requested 
they not be tied to Meadow Ridge 4th and Meadow Ridge 5th. They all take access off 24th and 
that Meadow Ridge 1 thru 3 would be treated as a special district.  Planner Van Dyke further 
clarified that Meadow Ridge 4th and 5th street lighting will be planned under the current projects 
and then Meadow Ridge 1 thru 3 will have separate assessment districts as separate projects.   
 
Mayor Helbling inquired of Attorney Brown if Meadow Ridges 1 thru 3 qualifies as a health and 
safety concern?  Attorney Brown stated that yes, they would be.  Mayor Helbling recommended 
that they can be a separate special assessment district and that they should get done.   
 
Jeff Dressler came forward and stated that he lives on 7th Avenue and he commented on the (lack 
of) street lighting in the area.  He pointed out there are “64” mail boxes located down at the end 
of 8th Street.  He said when it’s dark, you cannot see the boxes.  It is a safety issue. He requested 
a temporary light be installed on the telephone pole that is right next to the mailboxes until the 
street lights are installed.    
 
Mayor Helbling inquired of Director Froseth and Planner Van Dyke that in order to get street 
lights in this area, that a district would have to be created and 2020 would be the earliest this 
could be done?  Director Froseth replied that yes that is the correct process.  Mayor Helbling 
requested Administrator Neubauer to discuss with Public Works Director Bitz the possibility of 
installing a temporary light by the mailboxes.   
 
A second announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against this Ordinance.  A 
final announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against this Ordinance.  Hearing 
none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   
 
Commissioner Rohr commented that regarding the Landeis’ request to solve the water problem, 
he clarified it is a broader development and that it would be difficult to determine a plan for their 
water problem without delaying the project.   
 
Commissioner Larson commented that she appreciates the residents and the developer working 
together to make the adjustment for the single or two-unit only – it’s a good compromise on both 
sides.  She requested further clarification with the street lights and potentially making the other 
Meadow Ridge 1, 2, 3, contingent on Meadow Ridge 4 or 5 and what kind of position that puts 
the City in.  Mayor Helbling stated that Planner Van Dyke recommended that there should not be 
a contingency on Meadow Ridge 4 or 5.  Planner Van Dyke concurred that is correct and stated 
that Meadow Ridge 1, 2, 3 project have nothing to do with Meadow Ridge 4 and 5 projects that 
will have street lights. He recommended that Meadow Ridge 1, 2, 3 project should be treated 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 10 of 20 
independently as a special assessment district.  He said that city staff with go back and address 
Meadow Ridge 1, 2, and 3 as a safety issue of which the City Commission already requested 
staff to look into it. 
 
Attorney Brown clarified it has been determined that it is a safety issue and the City can create a 
special assessment district for Meadow Ridge 1, 2, 3 that cannot be protested out.  That can be 
done between now and next summer and the street lights can be constructed in 2020. 
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1323 as reflected in 
Exhibit 1 and the preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2.  Commissioner Braun seconded the 
motion.  Roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: No; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 
Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.    
 
6.           Consider approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1324 related to a zoning 
district amendment and preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 5th Addition. City Planner Van Dyke 
presented a request for the approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 1324 related to a 
zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for proposed Meadow Ridge 5th Addition.  He 
said the applicant is requesting approval for a rezone from MC-Industrial to RM-Residential and 
a preliminary plat to create eight new lots.  He said that as with Meadow Ridge 4th Addition each 
lot is planned to be further subdivided in the future. Exhibit 2 contains the preliminary plat for 
Meadow Ridge 5th Addition.  City Planner Van Dyke stated that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval of the zoning amendment and preliminary plat without 
restrictions. This document including Ordinance 1324 have been reviewed and approved by 
Attorney Brown.  The Engineering and Planning Department recommended approval of the first 
consideration of Ordinance 1324 as reflected in Exhibit 1 and the preliminary plat as shown in 
Exhibit 2. City Planner Van Dyke recommended approval of the first consideration of Ordinance 
1324 related to a zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for proposed Meadow Ridge 
5th Addition. 
 
Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing of the First consideration of Ordinance 1324 
related to a zoning district amendment and preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 5th Addition. 
He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against this variance request.   
 
Mayor Helbling commented that it is understood that the Landeis’ are opposing this Ordinance 
and would want their information as presented before entered into the record for this ordinance.   
 
Loretta Landeis approached the podium and again requested this project be held up due to all the 
water that goes through their property.  
 
Abe Ulmer, Toman Engineering came forward and stated that on this property there are three 
existing storm ponds and the engineers have to put in detention ponds to slow down the water.  
For Meadow Ridge 5th he is working on a fourth pond to be connected to the other pond.  
However, everything will have to be approved through the City Engineer’s Department.  Part of 
the investigation should be on the county side to look at the culverts.  Commissioner Davis 
commented that in trying to help out the Landeis family, when he visited the property there were 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 11 of 20 
three culverts there and he questioned if that was enough and suggested that the city and county 
look at getting the water to flow through there quicker.   
 
Mayor Helbling provided a second announcement to come forward to speak for or against this 
Ordinance. A final announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against this 
Ordinance.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the first consideration of Ordinance 1324 as shown in 
Exhibit 1 and the preliminary plat as shown in Exhibit 2.  Commissioner Larson seconded the 
motion.   
 
Mayor Helbling stated that he is aware there is one parcel the School District is looking at 
annexing however, before that happens the Landeis’ water problem has to be resolved before any 
development plans go forward.  
 
Roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
E.        BIDS:  
1.         Consider the award of the bid for the demolition of the structure at 210 5th St NW to 
Boehm Construction and Spray Foam (Award by Resolution). Building Official Ouradnik 
presented information regarding a contract for bids received for the demolition of the property 
located at 210 5th Street Northwest, Mandan ND. The demolition of the structure will include the 
demolition of the structure, removal of all debris, termination of all utility services, and placing 
compacted fill to make the site buildable for the future. He reported that only one bid was 
received on August 12, 2019 for this project in the amount of $32,500 from Boehm Construction.  
He reported that a Purchase Agreement was received today from Jack and Marie Friedt. They are 
proposing their plans to purchase the lot and remove all the structures from the lot and construct 
a new house. The closing date for the purchase will be on or before September 15, 2019 with the 
demolition to be completed by October 31, 2019. The new home construction would then begin 
with the foundation being installed in the fall of 2019 and the construction of the new home 
being completed in spring of 2020.  The bid came in late today and that is why there is a change 
on the agenda. Mr. Friedt is waiting for the decision on the bid (postponing) before he signs the 
Purchase Agreement.   
 
Jack Friedt came forward and stated that he wrote up a Purchase Agreement and he will give a 
down payment after this Commission meeting.  He said he plans to complete the purchase by 
September 15, 2019 and take full ownership of the property.   
 
Attorney Brown stated this (Purchase Agreement) is a private matter.  The bid from Boehm 
Construction can be held for up to 120 days.  He recommended deferring awarding the bid until 
the October 1, 2019 City Commission meeting which will give the Friedt’s time to complete the 
purchase.  If Mr. Friedt does not go through with the purchase, the City can then award the 
demolition bid.  Building Official Ouradnik agreed with the outlined proposal explained by 
Attorney Brown.  
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 12 of 20 
Commissioner Larson moved to postpone the demolition of the structure at 210 5th Street 
Northwest, Mandan ND and subsequent resolution until the purchase of the property is decided. 
Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor 
Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed.   
 
F.        CONSENT AGENDA   
1.        Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2.        Consider approval of a renewal Class E liquor license at the Harvest Catering & Events 
located at 308 W. Main. Street. 
3.        Consider approval of an extension of the closing date for the sale of 100 5th St. NW. 
4.        Consider amending 2019 Municipal Court budget. 
5.        Consider formal acceptance of the Bank of North Dakota Infrastructure Loan for the 
Southside Street Improvement project. 
6.        Consider approval of the Special Event Permit for the Mandan Golden Age Club Car 
Show. 
7.         Consider approval of the Mandan Parking Authority Board’s recommendations for 
expansion of the 90 minute parking zones. 
8.         Consider approval of Change Order G-02 to the Mandan 30” Sunset Reservoir 
Transmission Line Improvements project. 
 
Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Davis 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 
Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion 
passed.   
 
G.        OLD BUSINESS: 
1.         Consider a variance to our driveway width standards at 4200 Lakewood Drive SE. 
Planning and Engineering Director Froseth stated this matter was discussed at the last City 
Commission meeting wherein the Planning and Engineering office received a variance request to 
allow two driveways at this residential property whose sum exceed the maximum allowable 
width of 36-feet. The following outlines the request as compared to code language for 
consideration. 
 
August 16th update: In response to City Commission’s concerns about their plans conflicting with 
neighborhood covenants, the Lakewood Homeowners Association (HOA) has been in 
communication with the Engineering Department.  Director Froseth summarized a letter received 
from the HOA that basically says that Lakewood Homeowners Association appreciates the 
driveway sub-standards but in this case they have no opposition to the variance to allow the 
second driveway and exceed the maximum width standards.  Other items related to this plan had 
comments based on the original draft of the addition, in particular, have some architectural 
elements, windows on the water side of the lot and items pertaining to the garage door and 
similar items of which the applicant does not have the plans completed yet but they verbally said 
they would do that and they had no issue with that.  The HOA appears to be in favor of the 
variance request.  Director Froseth stated that his office did not think the HOA’s decision had 
any impact with the Engineering Department’s decision.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 13 of 20 
Commissioner Davis commented that he felt it would be important to know what the HOA’s 
position was, mostly for the neighborhood’s sake and to make sure the City Commission was 
doing its due diligence on behalf of the neighborhood.   
 
Scott Berger, a local contractor came forward and stated that he has been retained to help the 
homeowner’s with this variance request.  He stated that he spoke with Craig Smith, the 
Lakewood HOA representative and they approved of the variance request.  He explained that 
most lots are 80-90 feet wide, and this particular lot is about 180 feet wide.  Further, the south 
side of that lot is controlled by the Park District (North Dakota Parks and Rec) that cannot be 
developed so there is that side of the street to handle any snow issues.   
 
Commissioner Larson stated she is not in favor of approving variances on a regular basis, 
however given the above explanations and given that there is an easement on the other side of 
the property and considering the extreme width of the property, she does not see any effect on 
snow removal or storm water adversely affecting anything in this situation, thus she stated that 
she is supportive of this variance request.  She has discussed this matter with Director Bitz, who 
has concerns with snow removal; however, Director Bitz agreed that this particular property 
would not adversely affect the Public Works operations.  Commissioner Davis concurred with 
Commissioner Larson’s point of view.  Commissioner Rohr stated that regarding Ordinance, the 
City Commission is the discretionary party at times and they need to consider the opinions of the 
homeowners and see how this plays out.  He concurred with Commissioner Larson’s position.   
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the variance request of driveway width of 14’ at 4200 
Lakewood Drive Southeast.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: 
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
H.        NEW BUSINESS 
1.         Consider approval of James B Mellon, Midway Lanes INC., Exemption Application 3327 
Memorial Hwy.  Lila Teigen with the City Assessing Department presented a request to consider 
an application for a three year exemption for construction of an addition to a structure pursuant 
to North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2. The request was brought by James B Mellon, Midway 
Lanes INC., who is applying for a three year exemption for the construction of an 8,000 foot 
square addition to the structure located at 3327 Memorial Highway.  The 40' x 200' addition will 
be constructed on the east side of the building.  The addition will consist of an amusement area, 
pizza shop and rental space for Northern Trophy.  This parcel is also known as Lot 2A of Lot 2 
Block 1 Midway 12th Addition, parcel #65-6100142.  The following documents were reviewed:  
Application, 2015 City of Mandan Guidelines for Property Tax Exemption of Improvements to 
Commercial & Residential Buildings, plan and current picture of east side of building.  
 
The value of the addition is estimated to be $1,144,300.  Based on that amount, with the 2018 
mill levy of 265 mills, the estimated exemption is $15,174 for all taxing entities and $3,674 for 
the City of Mandan per year.  Midway Lanes representatives were present to answer questions.   
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 14 of 20 
This request was reviewed by Assistant City Attorney Oster.  It was recommended to approve 
the Application for Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to Commercial & Residential 
Buildings North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2 located at 3327 Memorial Hwy. 
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Application for Property Tax Exemption for 
Improvements to Commercial & Residential Buildings North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2 for 
the building addition to 3327 Memorial Hwy.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll 
call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
2.          Consider a driveway variance for 1401 Action Drive Southeast. Planning and 
Engineering Director Froseth stated that the Planning and Engineering office received a variance 
request to allow a fourth driveway at a commercial business located at 1401 Action Drive 
Southeast in Mandan.  He said that when this first was presented there was a request to combine 
the driveway lots so that when the lots are combined there would be one lot, one business, and 
four driveways.  For commercial lots, the city allows two driveways.  He said that this 
technically is not combined yet, so on technicality before combination it could have four 
driveways because it would not be two per lot.  The City would not allow driveways to cross 
property lines and the request is for 19 feet between driveway aprons and the Mandan City Code 
requires 24 feet to allow for at least one extra space for parking vehicles.  Since they already 
have three driveways and knowing what a challenge it is for Public Works staff to remove snow 
in cul de sacs areas, the Public Works staff did not agree with the fourth driveway and an 
alternative was suggested to work this out, however the property owner still prefers having the 
fourth driveway.   
 
Director Froseth stated that the following outlines the request along with the city code language 
for consideration. The sections of code that are of concern are sections 115-5-3 (c)(2) 115-5-4 (6) 
are italicized in the sections below: 
    Section (c) Application issuance. The City Engineer shall issue a permit if a determination is 
made that: 
     (1) The work will be done according to the standard specifications of the city for public work 
of like character; 
     (2) The operation will not unreasonably interfere with vehicular and pedestrian traffic, the 
demand and necessity for parking spaces, and the means of ingress and egress to and from the 
property affected and adjacent properties; and 
     (3) The health, welfare and safety of the public will not be unreasonably impaired. 
 
Non-residential lots: Any lot not used for residential purposes may have a maximum of two 
driveways, each not to exceed 40 feet in width, separated by a distance of not less than 24 feet 
measured at the curb line of each side of the lot that fronts upon a public street. 
 
The variance requirements for section 105-1-12 of Mandan City Code and the city staff 
comments under each are in italics: 
 
(1) Variances. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 15 of 20 
(a)  On appeal from an order, requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative 
official, the board of adjustment may vary or adjust the strict application of any of the 
requirements of this chapter in the case of an exceptionally irregular, narrow, shallow or steep lot 
or other exceptional physical or topographical condition, by reason of which the strict application 
of the provisions of the chapter would result in unnecessary hardship that would deprive the 
owner of a reasonable use of the land or building involved, but in no other case. 
(b)  No adjustment in the strict application of any provisions of this chapter shall be granted by 
the Board of Adjustment unless it finds that: 
       1.  There are special circumstances or conditions, fully described in the findings of the 
Board, applying to the land or buildings for which the variance is sought, which circumstances or 
conditions are peculiar to such land or building, and do not apply generally to land or buildings 
in the neighborhood, and have not resulted from any act of the applicant taken subsequent to the 
adoption of this chapter, whether in violation of the provisions of the chapter, or not. 
 
The Engineering Department does not see special circumstances or conditions that apply to this 
land or building that would require an additional driveway to properly serve this property. 
 
       2.   For reasons fully set forth in the findings of the Board, the circumstances or conditions 
so found are such that the strict application of the provisions of this chapter would deprive the 
applicant of the reasonable use of said land or building; and the granting of the variance is 
necessary for the reasonable use of the land or building; and that the variance as granted by the 
board is the minimum variance that will accomplish the relief sought by the applicant. 
 
The Engineering Department does not believe that the denying the request to add another 
driveway would deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of this land or building. Three 
driveways would still be allowed. 
 
      3.   The granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
this chapter, and not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public 
welfare. 
 
The Engineering Department does not believe this request to be in harmony with the general 
purpose of the rules relating to allowable driveways. There is a concern about adequate room to 
put snow within this cul-de-sac. When lot three to the NE develops, it will be that much more of a 
challenge. 
 
Director Froseth stated that in conclusion, the Planning and Engineering Department finds that 
this request does not strictly meet the criteria needed to grant.  It would be appropriate for the 
applicant to speak of the hardship if not granted however as our department cannot fully and 
accurately express that component. All items were forwarded to the City Attorney for review. 
 
Director Froseth recommended denying the variance request because the property does not 
include special circumstances or conditions peculiar to the property, denial does not result in 
“…unnecessary hardship that would deprive the owner of a reasonable use of the land or 
building…”, and granting the variance is not in harmony with the general purpose and intent of 
the chapter.  He said the main reason for the denial has to do basically with snow removal.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 16 of 20 
 
Mr. Houwman came forward and stated one of the reasons they are interested in locating in 
Mandan is because of how the community has so nicely worked with them in doing business.  He 
said he may have to consider downsizing his business expansion if this is denied and that would 
prohibit their business to grow in the fashion he anticipated.  He said they are fine working 
through meeting requirements even if they have to downsize.  He provided additional areas that 
snow could be piled up if needed.   
 
Commissioner Rohr commented that he understands that businesses need certain access to their 
property in order to run their business and that cul de sacs in a business area differ than those 
located in residential areas.  Mayor Helbling agreed with Commissioner Rohr in that it is a 
totally different circumstance with residential versus commercial.  If it was a business or 
residence where the public goes there constantly it is a different situation.  He stated he believes 
this request is within reason.  More than likely, this business will not be going anywhere in the 
next several years and it is Mandan’s goal to encourage business relationships.  Commissioner 
Davis inquired if this were approved, would there be any agreement that would have to be made 
that Malloy and Action Sports would be open to providing more snow removal, since that is one 
of the issues.   
 
Mr. Houwman reported that his business is 24/7 and if there are plants that are shut down or 
other emergencies, the plant has to open up and make sure there is access to their facility.  He 
said they understand they will maintain the public street for snow removal and they are good 
with that.  
 
Commissioner Larson, spoke to the one undeveloped piece of property in that area.  Malloy is 
not involved with that property at all. In reply to that question, Spence Koenig came forward and 
stated that he owns that piece of property and agrees with the request as presented by Malloy.   
 
Commissioner Braun commented that the City Commission relies on the City Engineering staff 
to bring forth information so the Commission can make informed decisions.  He said that 
everyone agrees that industry and commercial is something that the City pushes for and that the 
goal is to make it easier to promote and create that kind of business atmosphere.  He agreed with 
Mayor Helbling, the basic issue is snow removal that has to be taken care of between the city and 
the business without having to enter into an agreement.  That nullifies his issue at this time.   
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the variance request.  Commissioner Braun seconded 
the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 
Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
3.          Consider approval of negotiating with Moore Engineering for Engineering Services 
related to the Mid-Town East Street Improvement District (SID 215). Planning and Engineering 
Director Froseth presented a request to confirm the Selection Committee’s qualifications based 
selection of Moore Engineering for consulting engineering related to the Mid-Town East Street 
Improvement project and enter into contract negotiations with them.  Director Froseth explained 
that the local street conditions in this area of town can be generally classified as unsatisfactory as 
determined by a street assessment effort completed in 2012.  There are water main pipes pushed 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 17 of 20 
beyond their useful life and storm sewer issues throughout the project area.  This area is also 
challenging in the way of ADA compliance.  Though it will not be feasible to address all ADA 
issues because of existing grade and construction limit constraints, improved accessibility will be 
accomplished with this project.  A Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised in June and July 
for engineering assistance.  The City received seven proposals indicating interest in providing 
these services for the city.  A Selection Committee was created that was comprised of Planning 
and Engineering and Public Works department staff.  After the Selection Committee reviewed 
the seven proposals, three of the competing firms were interviewed. After the interviews and in 
evaluating all information the selection team scored the three firms.  After the scores were 
tabulated, Moore Engineering came out on top with Houston Engineering scoring in second 
place and HDR in third place.  Therefore, Director Froseth recommended moving forward with 
contract negotiations with Moore Engineering.  
 
Director Froseth reported there is no direct cost at this time.  Designing a project of this scope 
and size is expected to cost under, but in some cases near, 10% of the construction.  The specific 
limits and scope of project have not been set yet.  A preliminary estimated cost for this project is 
about $6M-$8M before going too far into project assessment.  All documents have been 
forwarded to the City Attorney for review.  
 
Director Froseth recommended approving the selection of Moore Engineering and to authorize 
engineering staff to negotiate for the Mid-Town East Street Improvement project (SID 215) 
engineering services contract.  Moore Engineering was present to answer questions.  
 
Commissioner Larson moved to confirm the selection of Moore Engineering, and authorize 
engineering staff to negotiate for the Mid-Town East Street Improvement project (SID 215) 
engineering services contract.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: 
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
4.           Consider selection of Architect firm for Morton Mandan Public Library and Downtown 
Parks Project. City Administrator Neubauer presented a request to consider selection and 
permission to enter into negotiations for architectural services for Morton Mandan Public 
Library, Dykshoorn Park and Heritage Plaza Improvements.  He said that a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) was issued on June 21, 2019 for architectural services for Morton Mandan 
Public Library, Dykshoorn Park and Heritage Plaza Improvements.  Subsequently, three 
proposals were received from Bartlett & West, Al Fitter Architect PC in conjunction with 
Ciavarella Design Architects & Buffalo Design Architects and Image Group Architecture & 
Interiors. 
 
The team that included Mayor Helbling, MMPL Board of Trustees President Linda Ehreth, City 
Administrator Jim Neubauer, Business Development & Communications Director Ellen Huber, 
Program Coordinator Kari Moore, Library Director Jackie Hawes, Del Wetsch, MPO and City 
Planner John Van Dyke reviewed the proposals and also participated in the interviews of each of 
the proposers.  In person interviews were conducted on August 13-14. 2019.  The 
recommendation from the team was a unanimous vote in favor to move forward on contract 
negotiations with Bartlett & West. Their work on the Dickinson Public Library renovation and 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 18 of 20 
expansion along with work on several public gathering spaces hit upon many of the points our 
project entails. 
 
Administrator Neubauer stated that the goal is to bring back a contract to the City Commission 
for their consideration at the September 3, 2019 meeting.  Administrator Neubauer recommended 
approval for the selection and permission to enter into negotiations for architectural services for 
Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn and Heritage Plaza improvements as presented.  
 
Commissioner Larson stated she has a conflict of interest with this and was not part of the City’s 
side of this discussion outside of voting for the issuing of the RFP for this project.  She has not 
been part of the Bartlett and West (her employer) discussion from their side.  She feels she has a 
strong conflict with this matter and respectfully recused herself from voting on this item.   
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the selection and permission to enter into negotiations 
for architectural services for Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn and Heritage Plaza 
improvements as presented.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: 
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Abstained; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
I.         RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
1.        Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1317 to amend and re-enact Section 18-1-7 
and Section 18-1-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to the possession of marijuana 
and drug paraphernalia.  Police Chief Ziegler stated there have been no additional comments or 
revisions since the first reading of this Ordinance.   
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1317 to 
amend and re-enact Section 18-1-7 and Section 18-1-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
relating to the possession of marijuana and drug paraphernalia.  Commissioner Davis seconded 
the motion.  Roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 
Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
2.          Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1318 to create Section 6-3-1 of Article 6 of 
the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to animals on city owned property.  Administrator 
Neubauer stated there were some edits to the Ordinance since the first consideration was 
presented in that “publically owned property” was removed and changed to “city owned 
property” and deferred to the Park and Rec and School District verbiage so the city code 
language is the same wording.  It also included that this is a violation that can be ticketed for a 
$20 fine.  This ordinance was brought forward due to people bringing their animals to the park 
and not cleaning up after them.  Commissioner Braun inquired if this would pertain to city 
cemeteries.  Administrator Neubauer replied that there is a resolution following this ordinance 
that will indicate which properties will have limited access.  Dykshoorn Park and Heritage Plaza 
are those two areas however, the cemetery is not included in that resolution.  He said that 
because of the new ordinance there will have to be proper signage posted.  Commissioner Larson 
inquired if there are events where pets are invited, and what would happen in instances like that?  
Administrator Neubauer stated that common sense would rule the day and could be determined 
on a case by case. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 19 of 20 
 
Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1318 to 
create Section 6-3-1 of Article 6 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to animals on city 
owned property.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Commissioner 
Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; 
Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
3.           Consider Resolution to approve the Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1318   
restricting dogs, cats, or domesticated animals on city property at Dykshoorn Park and Heritage 
Plaza.  Administrator Neubauer said that some questions have come up about service animals so 
verbiage will be included to allow service animals.   
 
Commissioner Davis moved to approve the Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1318 
permitting the restriction of dogs and cats or domesticated animals on certain City owned 
property.  Commissioner Larson seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor 
Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
4.          Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1319 to amend and re-enact Section 24-7-
17 and Section 24-7-18 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to parking of certain 
vehicles and unattached trailers and restrictions on consecutive parking.  Deputy Chief Flaten 
stated there are no changes since the first consideration was presented.  She provided some stats 
of complaints received over the last three months on campers, trailers and boats.  Mayor 
Helbling stated he didn’t like singling out certain groups, and stated he thought it should be 
anything (car, motorcycle, etc.) if it’s parked too long it should be ticketed.  Deputy Chief Flaten 
stated cars can be parked on residential street for 48 hours.    
 
Commissioner Larson reported that a Mandan resident brought up a concern that the (20 feet) 
length is restrictive.  That length could be made longer, and Commissioner Larson suggested 36 
feet in length. 
 
Commissioner Larson moved to approve the Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1319 
to amend and re-enact Section 24-7-17 and Section 24-7-18 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
relating to parking of certain vehicles and unattached trailers and restrictions on consecutive 
parking with the amendment of the length from 20 feet on any residential street or alley within 
any residential district to 36 feet.  Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: 
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: No.  The motion passed. 
 
5.           First Consideration of Ordinance 1325 to amend and re-enact Sections 4 and 5 of Sec. 
24-12-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to violation for not carrying liability 
insurance.  Attorney Brown stated this was brought to his attention by Judge Kautzman stating 
that the insurance conforms to North Dakota state law.  This will state that a violation of 
subsection one must include a fine of one hundred fifty dollars ($150) which may not be 
suspended.  A person convicted for a second or subsequent violation of driving without liability 
insurance within a three-year period must be fined three hundred dollars ($300) which may not 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of August 20, 2019 

Page 20 of 20 
be suspended.  Upon conviction for a violation of subsection one or equivalent ordinance, the 
person who has been convicted shall provide proof of motor vehicle liability insurance to the 
department in the form of a written or electronically transmitted certificate from an insurance 
carrier authorized to do business in this state.  This proof must be provided for a period of one 
(1) year and kept on file with the department.  
 
Commissioner Braun moved to approve the First Consideration of Ordinance 1325 to amend and 
re-enact Sections 4 and 5 of Sec. 24-12-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to violation 
for not carrying liability insurance.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: 
Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson: Yes; 
Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion passed. 
 
J.         OTHER BUSINESS:   
 
Commissioner Larson suggested that the City Commission send a recommendation to city staff 
to review the lighting situation and bring recommendations to a future meeting for the project 
referred to as Meadow Ridge 1, 2 and 3 Additions.   
 
K.        ADJOURNMENT: 
Commissioner Braun motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:58 p.m.  Commissioner Larson 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; 
Commissioner Larson: Yes; Commissioner Braun: Yes; Mayor Helbling: Yes.  The motion 
passed.   
 
 
 
 
   
James Neubauer 
City Administrator 
 

 Tim Helbling  
President, Board of City Commissioners 

 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To accept bids relating to contingent heavy equipment rates  

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Public works advertised for bids  
August 9th and 16th, then accepted and opened bids on August 23rd, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. at 
Mandan Public Works Facility for contingent heavy equipment rates. The main purpose 
for the solicitation is to establish rates for the contractors who would be called upon to 
assist city crews in hauling snow from our streets within our normal winter street 
maintenance operations, however we also solicited bids on other pieces of heavy 
equipment so in the unlikely event city staff would not able to perform services with our 
available resources we have options of hiring private contractors to augment our 
capabilities. An example where we may call upon these contractors would be in the event 
of an extraordinarily large snow event, if we should have multiple equipment failures 
during a snow event, or any disaster where we may need additional resources. We 
received two bids in total, all bids were from reputable companies that we have worked 
with previously. Both bidders met bid requirements, they were George Stroh Trucking 
and Bowers Excavating.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: Bid summary sheet and bid tabulations   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Will vary depending on weather conditions and department needs, 
however in 2018-2019 winter season the City of Mandan expended approximately $16K 
for snow hauling services by private contractors. The 2020 budget amount is established 
as $15,450. 
 
STAFF IMPACT: Minimal  
 
LEGAL REVIEW: Attorney Browns office has reviewed attached bid documents  
 
 

MEETING DATE: September 3rd , 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 23rd, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works  
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Mitch Bitz 
PRESENTER: Mitch Bitz, Public Works Director 
SUBJECT: Contingent Heavy Equipment Rates  

 

  

Bids No.1 

CITY 01' 
MANDAN 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Contingent Heavy Equipment Rates 
Page 2 of 5 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To accept the two low bids which meet the bidding 
requirements 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I make a motion to accept the two low bids which meet the 
bidding requirements  
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Contingent Heavy Equipment Rates 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

 
 

2019-2020    Contingent Heavy Equipment Bid Tabulation Summary Sheet 
(Detail bid sheets attached below) 

 

*George Stroh Trucking, Mandan  Trucks $100.00/Hr. Met all bid 
requirements 

*Bowers Excavating, Mandan  Trucks $110.00/Hr. Met all bid 
requirements 

*Bowers Excavating, Mandan  Loader/Blower $275.00/Hr. Met all bid    
requirements 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Contingent Heavy Equipment Rates 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 

COMPANY/POINT OF CONTACT 

81D#l George Stroh Trucking INC 

Name- George Stroh Trucking INC 

2570 Co Rd 82, Mandan, ND 58S54 

Phone 701-391-9573 

Email gstrohtruck1ng@hotmall.com 

Comments: 
Bid Contained ND State Contractors lie. 

YES OR NO 

Liability Insurance Certificate Included 
in sealed bid envelope. 

ALL ITEMS IN SEALED BID SCANNED 8/23/19 

Accepted by 

Witness 

2019-2020 CONTINGENT HEAVY EQUIPMENT RATES 

BID TAB 

UNITS SUMMER RATE- W INTER RATE-
BID AMOUNT AVAILABLE Unit Price/HR Unit Price/HR 

TANDEM TRUCK WITH MINIMUM OF 20 YARD BOX 3 $ 100.00 $ 100.00 
2.5 YARD(min.) LOADER TO INCLU DE OPERATOR 1 s 100.00 $ 100.00 
LOADER W/12' PLOW TO INCLUDE 

OPERATOR(l2'minimum) 

LOADER W/BLOWER ATTACHMENT CAPABLE OF 

LOADING TRUCKS(rated 2,000 tons/hr-min) 

MOTOR GRADER W/12' BLADE TO INCLUDE 
OPERATOR(front wheel assist,12' blade min.) 

SKID-STEER TO INCLUDE OPERATOR(Provide 

Description) 

Description-

SKID-STEER W/SNOW BLOWER TO INCLUDE 
OPERATOR(Provide Description) 

Description-

SKID-STEER W/BROOM TO INCLUDE OPERATOR(Provide 

Desctiption) 
Description-

DATE 

DATE 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Contingent Heavy Equipment Rates 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 

COMPANY/POINT OF CONTACT 

BID #2 Bowers Excavating LLC 
Name- Kasey Picca1o 

Po Box 145, Mandan, ND 58554 

Phone OFC-663-5619/Jeff CL/391-1380 

Emai l jffe83@hotmail.com 

Comments: 
Bid Contained ND State Contractors Uc. 

YES OR NO 

All Items Scanned 8/23/19 

2019-2020 CONTINGENT HEAVY EQUIPMENT RATES 

BID TAB 

UNITS SUMMER RATE· WINTER RATE-
BID AMOUNT AVAILABLE Unit Price/HR Unit Price/HR 

TANDEM TRUCK WITH MINIMUM OF 20 YARD BOX 3 s 110.00 
2.5 YARD(min.) LOADER TO INCLUDE OPERATOR 4 s 125.00 
LOADER W/12' PLOW TO INCLUDE 

1 OPERATOR(12'minimum) s 175.00 
LOADER W/BLOWER ATTACHMENT CAPABLE OF 

1 LOADING TRUCKS(rated 2,000 tons/hr-min) s 275.00 
MOTOR GRADER W/12' BLADE TO INCLUDE 

1 OPERATOR(front wheel assist,12' blade min.) s 150.00 
SKID-STEER TO INCLUDE OPERATOR(Provide 

3 Description) s 90.00 
Description-

SKID-STEER W/SNOW BLOWER TO INCLUDE 
1 OPERATOR(Provide Descriotion) s 110.00 

Description-

SKID-STEER W/BROOM TO INCLUDE OPERATOR(Provide 
1 Desctiotionl $ 110.00 

Description-

Accepted by [3 ~ -- DATE 

Witness DATE 



"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

CITY OP 

MAlfDAX 
MANDAN CITY HALL - 205 2nd Avenue NW 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 58554 

701-667-3215 • FAX: 707-667-3223 • www.cityofmandan.com

CITY DEPARTMENTS 

ADMINISTRATION 

ASSESSING 

BUILDING INSPECTION 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

CEMETERY 

ENGINEER/PLANNING & ZONING 

FINANCE 

FIRE 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

LANDFILL 

MUNICIPAL COURT 

POLICE 

PUBLIC WORKS 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

UTILITY BILLING 

WATER TREATMENT 

PROCLAMATION 

Extra Mile Day 
Friday, November 1, 2019

WHEREAS, Mandan ND, is a community which acknowledges that a special vibrancy exists within the
entire community when its individual citizens collectively "go the extra mile" in personal effort,
volunteerism, and service; and 

WHEREAS, Mandan ND, is a community which encourages its citizens to maximize their personal
contribution to the community by giving of themselves wholeheartedly and with total effort, commitment,
and conviction to their individual ambitions, family, friends, and community; and 

WHEREAS, Mandan ND, is a community which chooses to shine a light on and celebrate individuals and
organizations within its community who "go the extra mile" in order to make a difference and lift up
fellow members of their community; and 

WHEREAS, Mandan ND, acknowledges the mission of Extra Mile America to create 550 Extra Mile
cities in America and is proud to support "Extra Mile Day" on November 1, 2019. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Mayor of Mandan North Dakota, do hereby proclaim November 1, 2019, to be
Extra Mile Day. I urge each individual in the community to take time on this day to not only "go the extra
mile" in his or her own life, but to also acknowledge all those who are inspirational in their efforts and
commitment to make their organizations, families, community, country, or world a better place.

Signed this 3rd day of September, the year 2019

Attest: 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

667-3215 

667-3232 

667-3230 

667-3485 

667-6044 

667-3225 

667-3213 

667-3288 

667-3217 

667-0184 

667-3270 

667-3455 

667-3240 

667-3278 

667-3271 

667-3219 

667-3275 

mill
Text Box
Consent No. 1



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of Engage Addition minor plat.  
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Engage Church is seeking to divide their property 
into two lots located to the southwest of the intersection of Old Red Trail NW and 
Highland Rd. NW.  This is part of a rezone request (RO4 of today’s agenda).   
 
Exhibit 1 shows the lot configuration of the proposed minor plat.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Engage Addition Minor Plat 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This document has been reviewed by Attorney Brown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the Engage Addition minor plat as shown in Exhibit 1.    
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the Engage Addition minor plat as shown in 
Exhibit 1.   
 
 
 
  

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Consider approval of Engage Addition minor plat   

Consent No. 2 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



EXHIBIT 1
ENGAGE ADDITION 
TO THE CITY OF MANDAN 

A REPLAT OF LOTS 11-13, BLOCK 1, SCOITS ACRES FIRST ADDITION, AND LOT 1AOF LOT 1, BLOCK 2, SCOITS 

ACRES, LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 81 WEST OF THE 

FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 

- ------ - - ---------~CTION_LINE __________ ___________ _ 

@ 

i • 
LSCAf'#3463FOUND 
LSCAf'#3595FOUNO 
LSCAf'ILLEGIBLEFOUNO 
MONUMENT TO BE SET 

- ··- ··-··-··- NON-ACCESS LINE 
- - - EXISTING PROPERTY LINE 
------ EXISTING EASEhENTLINE 
- · - · -- - - - PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE 
--- PROPOSED BOUNDARY LINE 
--- PROPOSEDLOTLINE 

<D 1 PROPOSED BLOCK ANO LOT NUMBER 

(!) 1 EXISTING BLOCK ANO LOT NUMBER 

PLAT INFORMATION 

NUMBER OF LOTS: 2 
LOTACREAGE - 3.731 ACRES 
R.0.W. ACREAGE · D.000 ACRES 
TOTAL ACREAGE - 3.731 ACRES 

NOTES: 
• BEARINGS ANO DISTANCES MAY 

VARY FROM PREVIOUS PLATS DUE 
TO DIFFERENT METHODS OF 
MEASUREMENTS. 

ZONING INFORMATION 
CURRENT ZONING: LOTS 11 , 12. & 13 - R7, LOT 1A - MA 

PROPOSED ZONING: LOT 1 - MA. LOT 2 R7 

DESCRIPTION 

OWNER: 
ENGAGE CHURCH 

42090l.DREOTRAIL 
MNtDAN,N056554 

ARtPI.ATOFLOTSll-13,BL00:1,SCOTl'S...cRESFlJISTAOOfftON,ANOLOTlAOFLOT!, 8lOCK2,SCOITSACRES,AS 
DE~IBED IN IXXUMUIT 1391112, RECORDEOATTHE MORTON COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFIO:, l.OCATEOIN THE 
NORTHEAST QU,lRTER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, llolNGE 81 WEST OF lliE 5Tll PftlNOPAl MERIDIAN, OTY Of 
MANDAN, MORTON COUffTY, STATE OF NORTli DAKOTA: BEING MORE PARTICUIARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT TME NORTHEAST CORNER Of LOT 11, Bl.00. I, SCOTT'S ACRES ARST AOOmON TO ntE QTY Of 
MANOAN,NORTHDAKOTA.WHIOilSTHEPOINTOFBEGINNING. 

THENCE,S4l"51'47"W,AI.ONGTHE EASTLINEOFSAIDLOTll,AOISTANCEOF250.TTFEET,TOTliESOUTHEASTCOIINER 
OFSAIOLOT11ANDTHESOl1THEASTCORNEROFLOTIAOFLOT1,8LOCK2,SCOTTSACRESASDESCRl8EDINDOCUMENT 
#391112,RECORDED ATTHEMOIITONCOUNTYRECORDER'SOfflCE;THENCE,N88'2T21.W,ALONGTHESOOTHUNEOf 
S.-.IOLOT1A,AOISTANCEOF347.04fl:ET, TOTHES0lJTHWESTCORNEROFS,l,lDL0TlA;fflENCE,NDl" D1'5l"W,ALONG 
THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1A, A DISTANCE OF 221.9S FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT IA AND THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER Of LOT 13, Bl.00. I , SCOTT'S ACRES FIRST AODm ON; THENCE, N 21" 56' 27' E, ALONG THE WEST 
UNEOFSAIDLOTl3,ADISTANCEOf2•9.94FEET,TOTHENOIITHWESTCORNEROfSAIO 
LOT13;THENCE,S63" 20'39" E,ALONGTHENORTHUNEOFSAIDLOT 13,ADISTANCEOF17S.13FEET, TOTHENOIITHEAST 
CORNEROfSAIDLOT12;THENCE.SSr2TSO"E,ALONGTHENOflTHLINEOfSAIOLOTl2. A DISTANCE 
OFl7•.29FEET, TOTHE NORTHEASTCORNEROFSAIDLOTll; THENCE,S50"03' 24"E,ALONGTHENOflTHLINE OfSAIO 
LOT11,AOISTANCEOF 175.17FEET,TOTHENORTHEAST CORNEROFSAIDLOT llWHIOllS THE POINTOF IIEGINNING. 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE 

I, BRETTZELTINGER, A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF NORTH 
OAl<OTA, HEREBY CERTIFYTHATTHE ANNEXED PLAT IS A TRUE COPY OF THE NOTES OF A SURVEY 

~=~~~~~~:.~~-E~-=6~~:~0RW.TION SHOWN HEREON IS TRUE ANO 

BRETT ZEL TINGER 
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR 
N.D. REGISTRATION NO. LS-27331 

ONTHIS __ DAYOF ____ , 20_ , BEFOREMEPERSONALLYAPPEAREDBRETT 
ZEl TINGER. KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON DESCRIBED IN AND WHO EXEClJTED THE WITHIN 
CERTIFICATE AND HE ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME. 

OWNERS CERTIFICATE ANO DEDICATION 
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED. BEING THE SOLE OWNERS OF THE LAND PI.ATTEO HEREON, 00 HEREBY 

VOLUNTARILY CONSENT TO THE EXECUTION OF SAID Pl.AT, ANO 00 DEDICATE ALL THE STREETS, 
ALLEYS, PARKS, ANO PUBLIC GROUNDS AS SHOWN HEREON, INCLUDING ALL SEWERS, CULVERTS, 
BRIDGES, WATER LINES, SIDEWALKS, ANO OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ON OR UNDER SUCH STREETS, 
~=~Ru~~t=:~c GROUNDS, WHETHER SUCH IMPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN HEREON OR NOT, 

WE ALSO DEDICATE EASEMENTS TO RUN WITH THE LANDS FOR WATER, SEWER. GAS. ELECTRICITY, 
TELEPHONE, OR OTHER PUBLIC UTILITY LINES OR SERVICES UNDER, ON, OR OVER THESE CERTAIN 
STRIPS OF LANO AS DESIGNATED. 

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR: 
"-' 

4585 COLEMAN ST. 
BISMARCK, ND 56503 

APPROVAL OF BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS 
THE BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA, HAS APPROVED 

THE SU80IVISION OF LANO SHOWN HEREON, HAS ACCEPTED THE DEDICATION OF All STREETS, 
ALLEYS. ANO PUBLIC WAYS SHOWN HEREON LYING WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
MANDAN, HAS ACCEPTED THE DEDICATION OF ALL PARKS ANO PUBLIC GROUNDS SHOWN HEREON. 

6~~E~'f~Ew5;~~~;~S=~~~~S~~"==~~ii~~~~~~ 
Pl.AN OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA. THE FOREGOING ACTION BY THE BOARD OF CITY 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE CITY OF MNJOAN, NORTH DAKOTA. WAS TAKEN BY RESOLUTION THIS _ 
OAYOF_~'°-· 

APPROVAL OF THE CITY ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

I, JUSTIN FROSETH, CITY ENGINEER, CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA. HEREBY APPROVE "ENGAGE 
AOOmON", MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA AS SHOWN ON THE ANNEXED PLAT. 

JUSTIN FROSETH, CITY ENGINEER, CITY OF w.NDAN 

APPROVAL OF CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
THE SUBDMSION OF LAND AS SHOWN ON THE Pl.AT HAS BEEN APPROVED BY THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, ON THE_OAY OF_~__, IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

:~~~~T~SS=~~~~~~ll~~~~~~-~~~~==:e~ARE~~A 
THE HANDS OF THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MANDAN. NORTH DAKOTA. 

--------~~= 

APPROVED BY THE COUNTY AUDITORS OFFICE 

DAWN RHONE, COUNTY AUDITOR 

--------~'"'""' 

N .• , 
1" =50' 

'-llyX.2019 



Consent No. 3
LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
LICENSING SECTION 
SFN 17926 (10/2012) '":·~ ~ !j , 

Type: ~ Local Permit * D Charity Local Permit 
Permit Number 

2019-36 
Name of Organization Date(s) Authorized (Read instruction 2) 

Bismarck Mandan Rifle Pistol Association 
Contact Person Business Phone Number 12/14/2019 to 12/14/2019 

Tom Thompson (701) 255-4601 Beginning Ending 

Mailing Address City I State Zip Code 

Po Box 682 Bismarck ND 58501 -0000 
Site Name Site Address 

Baymon! Inn 2611 Old Red Trail 
City State I ZIP Code County 

Mandan ND 58554-00( Morton County 
Check the Game(s) Authorized: * Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit. 

D Bingo ~ Raffle D Calendar Raffle D Sports Pool D Poker* D Twenty-one* D Paddlewheels* 

Restriction: 

Requirement: For a "Charity Local Permit," the organization must file a "Report on a Charity Local Permit" with the city or county auditor and Office of 
Attorney General within 30 days of the :;;nt./ 

Date Signature Ci".~ 7 ___ ,llyAUUltor Printed Name of City or County Auditor Auditor Telephone Number 

8/27/2019 / ~ - - .,/ ) Lori Flaten (701) 667-3455 ,---/"' - - I 
Please see the instructionhin the backside of this form ~o com lete the Permit. p 
For a raffle or calendar raffle, read "Information Required to be Preprinted on a Standard Raffle Ticket" below. 

_____________________ cut along this line _ _ _________________ ______ _ 

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET: 

1. Name of organization ; 
2. Ticket number; 
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price; 
4. Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize 

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient 
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the 
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price; 

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print 
the authorizing city or county and permit number; 

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win ; 
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that 

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the 
drawing; 

8. Location and street address of the drawing; 
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is 

or is not liable for sales or use tax; 
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least 

'_' _" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize; 
11 . A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation; 
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won 

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and 
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle , horse, bison, sheep or pig , a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a 

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars. 

kari.moore
Text Box



Jl)(ct/3(p. 

APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
SFN 9338 (08/2016) 

Application for: W Local Permit * D Charity Local Permit (one event per year) 

Name of Non-profit Organizatio~ Date(s) of Activity For a raffle, provide drawing date(s): 

B \S vY\ Q,c. CtV\ " ~ ,~Jo <:::, 'SO '1CL i'cV'\ !?. - 1'{-IO, to /J·N- fO, 
Person Responsible for the Gaming Operation and Disbursement of Net Income litle ausiness Phone Number 

om --ho (]t,,-, 7 0 ; - ;) $'S- - '-I (;, o I 
Business Address 

Lf ~ ft, 
City 

j s rn.a.rc k 
State Zip Code 

o s~s-o, 
City State Zip Code 

b ; 5 l'Y\.aJ0\--<. )) 0 sgs-oa 
Site Address ~ 

~ eo \, c,, J... ~ -ec.1' ~ ·r-cu \ 
County 

Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: * Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit. 

D Bingo BJ Raffle D Raffle Board D Calendar Raffle D Sports Pool D Poker* D Twenty-one * D Paddlewheels * 

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED 

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of 
Pri7A 

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of 
Prize 

l?Arflt ~5 G"ti, b/2. l LL_ r 

- - !.ft ~ 
Y1'I , ·q /-f'e#? j . :t;Dt!f) 

(Limit $12,000 perl,?r) 

Total: $ 6cc:D-

Intended uses of gaming proceeds: __________________________________ _ 

Does the organization presently have a state gaming license? !SJ-No D Yes - If "Yes," the organization is not eligible for a local permit or charity local 
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240. 

Has the organization received a charity local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? gJ No D Yes - If "Yes," 
the organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit. 

Has the organization received a local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? IScl No D Yes - If "Yes," 
indicate the total value of all prizes previously awarded: $ _____ . This amount is part of the total prize limit of $12,000 per year. 

Business Phone Number 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approving the selection of Stantec for assistance of 
procurement and implementation of brownfields grants.   

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Staff recently requested to issue a request for 
qualifications (RFQ) to assist the City with the procurement and implementation of 
brownfields grants.   
 
The City received one RFQ from Stantec.   
 
If the selection is approved, Stantec will assist with grant writing and administration of a 
brownfield assessment grant.  This grant, if awarded, would provide up to $300,000 in 
grant monies toward creating an inventory of properties, planning, environmental 
assessment, as well as community outreach (See Exhibit 1 for summary). 
 
Stantec will work with the City on a pro-bono basis with grant writing in an effort to help 
the City’s application be as competitive as possible.  The City of Mandan is the only city 
they are working with in North Dakota during the 2020 application period.   
 
If the City is successful in obtaining the grant, federal monies will be used to compensate 
Stantec for their assistance in administering the grant.  The City would be notified in 
spring 2020 of whether or not it was chosen for the award.  Funds would be dispersed and 
work would commence in fall 2020.     
 
Staff will work with Stantec to create a contract and present these details at the 
September 17, 2019 City Commission hearing for approval.   
 
   

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 28, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM,  
SUBJECT: Consider approving the selection of Stantec for 

assistance of procurement and implementation of 
brownfields grants 

New Business No. 1 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Consider approving the selection of Stantec for assistance of procurement and 
implementation of brownfields grants 
Page 2 of 2 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant Summary Handout 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  This staff report has been sent to City legal staff as part of the agenda 
packet for review.     
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval to select Stantec with assistance toward the procurement and implementation of 
brownfields grants.    
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the selection of Stantec with assistance 
toward the procurement and implementation of brownfields grants.    
 
  



EXHIBIT 1
EPA Brownflelds Assessment Grants: 
Interested in Applying for Funding? 
Heres what you need to know to get started. .. 

What is EPA '.s' Brown.fields Program? 
The U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency's 
(EPA) Brownfields 
Program is designed 
to empower states, 
communities, and 
other stakeholders 
to work together in 

a timely manner to prevent, assess, safely clean up, 
and sustainably reuse brownfields. EPA provides 
technical and financial assistance for brownfields 
activities through an approach based on four main 
goals: protecting human health and the environment, 
sustaining reuse l'Omoting partnerships, and 
strengthen ing the marketp ace. rown· elds grants 
serve as the foundation of the Brownfields Program and 
support revitalization efforts by funding environmental 
assessment, cleanup, 
and job training 
activities. Thousands 
of properties have been 
assessed and cleaned up 
through the Brownfields 
Program, clearing the 
way for their reuse. 

A brownfield is defined as: real property, 
the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse 
of which may be complicated by the 
presence or potential presence of a 
hazardous substance, pollutant, or 
contaminant. The2002Brownfi eldsLaw 
further defines the term to include a site 
that is: "contaminated by a controlled 
substance; contaminated by petroleum 
or a petroleum product excluded from 
the definition of' hazardous substance'; 

--..,~or mine-scarred land." 

What are the Four Grant Types? 

ii 
l 
'i 
,1. 

:: 
:r 

II 

v Assessment grants provide funding for brownfields 
inventories, planning, environmental assessments, 
and community outreach. 

v Revolving Loan Fund grants provide funding 
to capitalize a revolving loan fund that provides 
loans and subgrants to carry out cleanup 
activities at brownfields. 

v Cleanup grants provide direct funding for cleanup 
activities at specific sites. 

v Job Training grants provide environmental training 
for residents ofbrownfields communities. 

What are Assessment Grants? 
Assessment grants provide funding for a grant recipient to: 

., Inventory Sites: Compile a listing 

v Characterize Sites: Identify past uses 

v Assess Sites: Determine existing contamination 

., Conduct Cleanup and Redevelopment Planning: 
Scope and plan process 

v Conduct Community Involvement: Inform and 
engage community 

For a Community-Wide Grant: 

v An applicant may apply for a community-wide 
assessment grant if a specific site has not been 
identified or if the assessment will address more 
than one site within the community. 

v Applicants electing to apply for up to $200,000 
for a community-wide hazardous substance 
assessment grant are not eligible for a site-specific 
hazardous substance assessment grant in the same 
grant competition. Applicants applying for up to 
$200,000 for a community-wide petroleum or 
petroleum product assessment grant will not be 
eligible for a site-specific petroleum assessment 
grant. 

For a Site-Specific Grant: 

v A site-specific assessment grant must be applied for 
if the assessment is limited to one, and only one, 
site. A site-specific assessment grant application 
must be made if a waiver of the funding limitation 
is requested. 

v Applicants will not be allowed to substitute another 
site for a site-specific assessment grant where the 
subject site is determined to be ineligible. 

For the complete discussion ofBrownfields Program 
grant funding, refer to the EPA Proposal Guidelines 
for Brownfields Assessment, Revolving Loan 
Fund, and Cleanup grants at: http://www.epa.gov/ 
brownfields/applicat.htm 

How Do I Apply for an Assessment Grant? 
Applicants submit a proposal for each grant type that 
they are applying for (i.e., assessment, revolving loan 
fund, and/or cleanup). Each proposal must address the 
selection criteria outlined in the guidelines. 

{1 s-.\- • 



Grant proposals should be concise and well organized, 
and must provide the information requested in the 
guidelines. Applicants must demonstrate that they 
meet threshold criteria requirements and must respond 
to evaluation criteria. Factual information about your 
proposed project and community must be provided. 

Proposals must include: 

., Cover letter describing project 

., Applicant information 

., Applicable mandatory attachments 
( e.g., state letter) 

., Responses to evaluation criteria 

All applicants must refer to the Proposal Guidelines 
published by EPA. 

Who is Eligible to Apply for an Assessment 
Grant? 
Eligible entities include: state, local, and tribal 
governments, with the exception of certain Indian tribes 
in Alaska; general purpose units of local government, 
land clearance authorities, or other quasi-governmental 
entities; regional council or redevelopment agencies; 
or states or legislatures. Some properties are excluded 
from the definition of a brownfield unless EPA makes 
a site-specific funding determination that allows grant 
funds to be used at that site. 

Applicants may apply for both community-wide and 
site-specific assessment grants; however, an applicant 
is limited to submitting only ONE hazardous substance 
assessment grant proposal and ONE petroleum 
assessment proposal. 

Each eligible entity may submit no more than two 
assessment proposals. 

How JV!uch Assessment Grant Funding is 
Available? 
., Up to $200,000 to assess a site contaminated by 

hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants 
(including hazardous substances co-mingled with 
petroleum). 

., Up to $200,000 to address a site contaminated by 
petroleum. 

., For site-specific proposals, applicants may seek 
a waiver of the $200,000 limit and request up to 
$350,000 for a site contaminated by hazardous 
substances, pollutants, or contaminants and 
up to $350,000 to assess a site contaminated 
by petroleum. Such waivers must be based on 
the anticipated level of hazardous substances, 
pollutants, or contaminants including hazardous 

United States 
Environmental 
Protection Agency 
Washington, D.C. 20460 

substances comingled with petroleum) or 
petroleum at a single site. (Community-wide 
assessment grants are not eligible for assessment 
grant ''waivers.") 

., Total grant fund requests should not exceed a total 
of $400,000 unless such a waiver is requested. 

., Up to $1 Million for assessment coalitions. 
A coalition is made up of 3 or more eligible 
applicants that submits one grant proposal under 
the name of one of the coalition members who will 
be the grant recipient. 

How Long is the Assessment Period? 
The performance period for an assessment grant is 
three years. 

Where Do I Find the Proposal Guidelines? 
Electronic copies of the Proposal Guidelines can be 
obtained from the EPA brownfields Web site at: 
ltttp:llwww.epa.gov/brownjieldslapplicat.htm 

Additional information on grant programs may be 
found at: www.grants.gov 

Is Pre-Application Assistance Available? 
Ifresources permit, EPA Regions may conduct open 
meetings with potential applicants. Check with your 
regional office for date and location information. Your 
regional Brownfields Program contacts can be found at: 
http://www.epa.gov/brownfieldslcorcntct.htm 

EPA can respond to questions from applicants about 
threshold criteria, including site eligibility and 
ownership. 

EPA staff can not meet with applicants to discuss 
draft proposals or provide assistance in responding to 
ranking criteria. 

What is the Evaluation/Selection Process? 
Brownfields grants are awarded on a competitive 
basis.Evaluation panels consisting of EPA staff and 
other federal agency representatives assess how 
well the proposals meet the threshold and ranking 
criteria outlined in the Proposal Guidelines for 
Brownfields Assessment, Revolving Loan Fund, and 
Cleanup grants. Final selections are made by EPA 
senior management after considering the ranking 
of proposals by the evaluation panels. Responses to 
threshold criteria are evaluated on a pass/fail basis. If 
the proposal does not meet the threshold criteria, the 
proposal will not be evaluated. In some circumstances, 
EPA may seek additional information. 

Solid Waste 
and Emergency 
Response (5105T) 

EPA-560-F-05-236 
August 2009 

www.epa.gov/brownfields/ 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider appointment of Victoria Vayda to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission.     

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Planning and Zoning Commission is 
comprised of seven at-large members.  One seat is available for appointment due to a 
recent resignation.   
 
The Engineering and Planning Department received a lone letter of interest from Victoria 
Vayda.     
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously to appoint Victoria Vayda to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission to fulfill the term ending December 31, 2022.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Letters of Interest from: 

• Victoria Vayda 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  None 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  N/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning and Zoning Commission convened at its normal 
scheduled date and time on August 26, 2019 at 5:30pm and voted to recommend approval 
to appoint Victoria Vayda to the Planning and Zoning Commissioner for the remainder of 
an at-large term expiring December 31, 2022.   

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Engineering and Planning Director 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM 
SUBJECT: Consider Appointment to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission  

New Business No. 2 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Planning and Zoning Appointment 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to appoint Victoria Vayda to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for the remainder of an at-large term expiring December 31, 2022.   



June 20, 2019 

Mr. Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

City Hall 

205 2nd Ave NW 

Mandan, ND 58554 

Dear. Mr. Neubauer: 

I would like to be considered for appointment to the Mandan Planning and Zoning 

Commission. Experiences including, but not limited to, my current employment with 

Mandan Walmart Store #2033. 

Familiarity with customers concerns regarding zoning, platting, annexations, 

transportation studies and variances. Previous experiences were working with Mr. 

Bob Decker on a Multi-family zoning and work group. 

I am very interested in filing the role with fresh new ideas, always listening to both 

sides of disagreements, I am very knowledgeable and I do not table projects I 

always look for a resolution and I can also bring a lot of creativity to the 

commission. 

EXHIBIT 1



As Mandan grows, it is very important that P&Z reflects on the interests of the city 

and utterly important re-connects with the business and building development 

industries. As a long-time city of mandan resident, I am a true believer of helping 

the City of Mandan and giving back to the Mandan community. 

Respectfully yours, 

Ms. Victoria L. Vayda 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider entering a contract with Bartlett & West for 
Phase I Site Planning and Project Programming for the MMPL and Downtown Parks 
project. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: At its August 20th meeting the Board authorized 
staff to begin negotiations with Bartlett and West for this project after interviewing two 
other firms.  

B & W supplied a Phase 1 plan for Site Planning and Project Programming. This Phase 1 
would cost $45,000. Phase II would involve the civil engineering and landscape 
architecture design for improvements outlined in Phase I. 

Phase I and Phase II consist of: 
1. Phase I

1.1. Client Kick Off Meeting
1.2. Steering Committee Meeting #1
1.3. Site analysis, Assessment and Base map Assembly
1.4. Stakeholder Meetings
1.5. Concept Development
1.6. Steering Committee Meeting #2
1.7. Community Pop-Up Presentations
1.8. Business Community Presentations
1.9. Steering Committee Meeting #3
1.10. Final Plan Refinement and Concept Renderings 
1.11. Phasing Identification and Opinion of Probable Cost Assembly 
1.12. Funding Research for Project Phasing 
1.13. Final Document Assembly 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 28, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
SUBJECT: Contract with Bartlett & West (B & W) for Phase 

I Site Planning and Project Programming for the 
Morton Mandan Public Library (MMPL) and 
Downtown Parks project. 

New Business No. 3 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Contract with Bartlett & West for Phase I Site Planning and Project 
Programming for the Morton Mandan Public Library and Downtown Parks project. 
Page 2 of 31 

1.14. Final Presentation to Steering Committee Meeting #4 
1.15. Final Presentation to Mandan City Commission 

2. Phase II
2.1. Construction Document Reviews with City (30%, 50%, 75%, 100%)

ATTACHMENTS: MMPL and Parks Proposal, AIA Agreement  

FISCAL IMPACT: $45,000, from the Energy Transfer donation 

STAFF IMPACT: meeting times for staff etc. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Attorney Brown has reviewed and finds the contract terms 
acceptable. 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend we approve the Phase I AIA Agreement between 
Bartlett & West and City of Mandan for the Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn 
Park and Heritage Plaza improvements. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the Phase I AIA Agreement between 
Bartlett & West and City of Mandan for the Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn 
Park and Heritage Plaza improvements. 



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
3255 Greensboro Drive Suite 203, Bismarck ND  58503-5413 

 

  
  

 

23 August 2019 

Attention: Joe Larrivee, AIA, Bartlett & West 

Bartlett & West 
3456 E. Century Ave. 
Bismarck, ND 58503 

Reference: Planning, Civil and Landscape Architecture Services for Mandan Library and Dykshoorn 
Park Improvements (DRAFT proposal) 

Dear Mr. Larrivee, 

Together with you and your team, we are excited to provide site planning, civil engineering and landscape 
architecture services to the City of Mandan. Improvements to the existing library facility and Dykshoorn 
Park will, undoubtedly, provide value to residents and support community activities for years to come. 
Based on previous conversations with you, we have assembled the following proposed scope of work to 
address the needs of this exciting project. 

Phase 1: Site Planning and Project Programming 
1.1 Client Kick-Off Meeting 

Stantec will participate in one project kick-off meeting with Bartlett & West and the City of Mandan to review 
the scope of work, project schedule and key milestones for project delivery. Assembly of a Steering 
Committee will also be discussed at this meeting and appropriate participants will be identified. 

1.2 Steering Committee Meeting #1 

Together with Bartlett & West, Stantec will attend and assist in facilitation of a Steering Committee meeting 
(1 of 4) to review the project, discuss perspectives, priorities and concerns and to receive first-hand 
feedback on initial thoughts for the plan. 

1.3 Site Analysis, Assessment and Basemap Assembly 

Stantec will work with the City of Mandan to collect and assemble all pertinent site information for the 
Library site and Dykshoorn Park. Our team will assemble appropriate basemap and baseplan documents 
which will provide the foundation for all subsequent planning. We will review all applicable CAD files, project 
aerials and as-built documents to complete a thorough site analysis for the project. 

1.4 Stakeholder Meetings 

In collaboration with Bartlett & West, Stantec will facilitate and actively participate in one day of stakeholder 
meetings with community organizations and individuals who have an active interest in the project, as 
determined by the Steering Committee. The purpose of these meeting will be to collect thoughts, ideas and 
perspectives for design considerations that should be incorporated into the plan. 

() Stantec 

Design w,th commun,ly in mind 



 

Page 2 of 4  

 
 

 

1.5 Concept Development 

Following completion of stakeholder meetings, Stantec will assemble two schematic concepts for the 
development of the Library site and Dykshoorn Park. Working closely with the Bartlett & West team, 
Stantec will assemble site plan concepts to address vehicular and pedestrian circulation, outdoor amenities 
and programming. Appropriate plan graphics (plan view renderings, example programming images) will be 
assembled to convey the preliminary design direction. 

1.6 Steering Committee Meeting #2 

Together with Bartlett & West, we will attend Steering Committee meeting #2, during which we will review 
stakeholder feedback and present preliminary concepts to receive input and feedback from the group. 

1.7 Community Pop-Up Presentations 

Following Steering Committee Meeting #2, we will address appropriate revisions to the preliminary design 
concepts and will work closely with the City of Mandan to identify appropriate community events where 
Stantec may set up a display area to solicit input from the community. The purpose of these “pop-up” 
events will be to share project progress with the community and gauge support for the various design ideas 
and proposals considered by our team. We will attend up to three community events (for 2 hours each) and 
will provide display boards and interactive activities to engage the public. 

1.8 Business Community Presentations 

In addition to community pop-up presentations, Stantec will also work with the City of Mandan to identify 
appropriate local business organizations to which presentations of the preliminary concepts will be given. 
Recognizing that the business community can often be a strong sounding board from which to receive 
input, Stantec will work closely with the City and with Bartlett & West to assemble appropriate presentation 
materials to convey the preliminary plans for the project. 

1.9 Steering Committee Meeting #3 

Together with Bartlett & West, Stantec will attend and facilitate Steering Committee Meeting #3, where we 
will present feedback from community outreach activities and determine final direction for the development 
of the plan. The purpose of this meeting will be to establish final direction for the master plan and identify 
priorities for immediate and long-term phasing improvements. 

1.10 Final Plan Refinement and Concept Renderings 

Following Steering Committee meeting #3, Stantec will finalize the master plan for the Library site and 
Dykshoorn Park. We will assemble plan revisions in rendered plan view as well as photorealistic renderings 
to convey the final design intent of the concept. 

1.11 Phasing Identification and Opinion of Probable Cost Assembly 

Building from the phasing discussion addressed during Steering Committee meeting #3, our team will 
finalize phasing priorities and assemble opinions of probable cost for each phase, as it’s defined in the plan. 
Probable costs will address site improvements only, and we will work in collaboration with Bartlett & West to 
coordinate any facility improvements (developed by their professionals) into the final phasing approach. 

Design with communily in mind 



 

Page 3 of 4  

 
 

 

1.12 Funding Research for Project Phasing 

Upon completion of the phasing and probable cost assembly, Stantec funding expert, Heidi Pepper, will 
research available grants, community partnerships and federal programs which may aid with near-term and 
long-term phasing priorities. The results of this research will be presented to the Steering Committee at the 
final presentation for this project and will also be included within the final documentation of the plan. If any 
funding opportunities may provide immediate availability for project implementation, Heidi will work with the 
City of Mandan to determine next steps for potential funding applications. 

1.13 Final Document Assembly 

Following the completion of the final plan refinement, rendering development, phasing plan, probable cost 
assembly and funding research, Stantec will lead efforts to compile the master plan for the Library Site and 
Dykshoorn Park into a comprehensive document which will accurately convey project information in a 
concise and easy-to read format. In addition to the information outlined above, the final document will 
include an overview of stakeholder feedback, community input and notes from all meetings, presentations 
and discussions. 

1.14 Final Presentation to Steering Committee (meeting #4) 

Once the final planning document has been assembled, Stantec will co-lead the final Steering Committee 
meeting to present the plan and address any final comments prior to final presentation to the Mandan City 
Commission. 

1.15 Final Presentation to Mandan City Commission 

We will work with Bartlett & West to assemble presentation materials and speaking points to present the 
final concepts and plan document for the Mandan Public Library site and Dykshoorn Park. 

Phase 2: Civil Engineering and Landscape Architecture 
Design for Immediate Improvements 
Once the master plan document has been finalized and accepted by the Mandan City Commission, our 
team will work collaboratively with Bartlett & West to provide Civil Engineering and Landscape Architecture 
services for immediate improvements to the Library Site and Dykshoorn Park, as identified within priority 
phases of the master plan. Upon completion of this plan, our team will have a final design direction from 
which to build are more defined scope of work and fee proposal. However, while it’s challenging to provide 
an accurate fee for the effort associated with these activities, we are prepared to provide services to 
assemble the following bidding and construction documents for the project. 

 
2.1   Construction Document Reviews with the City (30%, 50%, 75%, 100%) 

Together with Bartlett & West, Stantec will attend construction document review meetings at 
appropriate milestones, as determined by Bartlett & West, throughout the duration of design. The 
purpose of these meetings will be to apprise the City of design development and to facilitate 
cross-coordination across all disciplines.  

 

Based upon our current understanding of the project and potential site impacts, Stantec will 

Design with communily in mind 



 

Page 4 of 4  

 
 

 

provide Civil Engineering services to assemble the following drawings, which will be included 
within the broader bid document set: 

• Existing Conditions (site survey to be provided by Bartlett & West) 
• Demolition Plan 
• Layout Plan 
• Dimensioning Plan 
• Grading Plan 
• Stormwater Plan 
• Utility Plan 
• Details & Specifications 
• Updates to Opinion of Probable Cost 

Working in concert with the broader project team and the Civil Engineering design, Stantec will 
also provide Landscape Architecture services to compile construction and bidding documents for 
immediate project priorities as defined within the master plan. Landscape Architects will also 
provide progress documents to review at important milestones throughout the duration of the 
project and will collaborate closely with the civil engineering and architectural team. Based on 
current project understanding, we anticipate providing the following scope of work: 

• Existing Conditions (site survey to be provided by Bartlett & West) 
• Demolition Plan 
• Planting Plan 
• Details & Specifications 
• Updates to Opinion of Probable Cost 

Our proposed fee to complete Phase 1 of this project (Site Planning and Phasing Priorities) is 
$45,000. Upon completion of Phase 1 scope of work, our team will submit an updated scope 
and fee proposal to address delivery of Civil Engineering and Landscape Architecture bid 
documents for immediate project priorities. 
 
This project is a unique opportunity for the City of Mandan to lay the groundwork for long-term 
development of the downtown space. Oftentimes, the simple act of planning—of laying out and 
illustrating the potential opportunities for a site, can inspire forward momentum. The completion of 
master planning for this project, while simple and straightforward, is intended to do just that. 
 
Should you have any questions regarding this proposal, we’d be happy to visit with you further. 

Regards, 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

Wendy Van Duyne, PLA, LEED AP  
Associate, Community Development  
Phone: 701.333.8924 

 

 



 AIA
®

 Document B103 TM – 2017 

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect for a 
Complex Project 
 

AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
1 

 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document 
has added information 
needed for its completion. 
The author may also have 
revised the text of the 
original AIA standard form. 
An Additions and Deletions 
Report that notes added 
information as well as 
revisions to the standard 
form text is available from 
the author and should be 
reviewed. 

This document has important 
legal consequences. 
Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its completion 
or modification. 

 

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any 
portion of this AIA ®  Document 
to another electronic file is 
prohibited and constitutes a 
violation of copyright laws 
as set forth in the footer of 
this document. 

AGREEMENT made as of the «Twenty Sixth» day of «August» in the year «Two 
Thousand Nineteen» 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 

 
BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

 
« City of Mandan»«» 
«205 2nd Ave NW» 
«Mandan, ND 58554» 
«» 
 
and the Architect: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

 
«Bartlett & West, Inc.»«, Professional Corporation» 
«3456 East Century Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58503» 
«Telephone Number: 701-258-1110» 
«Fax Number: 701-258-1100» 
 
for the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 

 
«Morton Mandan Public Library, Dykshoorn Park & Heritage Plaza» 
«Mandan, North Dakota» 
«The project will consist of a new facility may include a new library entrance/atrium, 
meeting room, public restrooms, bookmobile/equipment storage, and associated 
mechanical/electrical rooms. Additional remodeling/retrofit items may include window 
replacement, masonry restoration, and other traffic pattern improvements within the 
existing buildings. » 
 

The Owner and Architect agree as follows. 
 
The scope of services includes, but is not limited to: 
Phase I shall result in Schematic Design level documents as identified by this 
Agreement. The design team shall present the preliminary proposed solution and 
estimated project costs to the Owner for prior approval prior to proceeding to Phase II. 
 
Phase II: Upon receiving design and budget approval, the design team shall complete 
Design Development and Construction Documents as identified by this Agreement. The 
design team shall present the documents and estimated project costs to the Owner for 
prior approval prior to proceeding to Phase III. 
 
Phase III: Upon receiving document and budget approval, the design team shall proceed 
with Bidding and Construction Contract Administration.      

DRAFT 

- - 1111 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
2 

 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 
 
1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
 
2 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES 
 
4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
6 COST OF THE WORK 
 
7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
 
8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
 
9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
 
10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
11 COMPENSATION 
 
12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
ARTICLE 1   INITIAL INFORMATION 
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1. 
 (For each item in this section, insert the information or a statement such as “not applicable” or “unknown at time 

of execution.”) 

 
§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project: 
 (Insert the Owner’s program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner’s program, or state the manner in 

which the program will be developed.) 

 
«To be developed with Owners Steering Committee. » 
 
§ 1.1.2 The Project’s physical characteristics: 
 (Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project’s physical characteristics, such as size; location; 

dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of 

public and private utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.) 

 
«To be distributed either by Owner and/or procured and developed as a reimbursable expense.» 
 
§ 1.1.3 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 6.1: 
(Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.) 

 
$3,000,000-$5,000,000 including construction, design fees, reimbursable expenses and other associated costs to 
complete the project.» 
 
§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestone dates: 
 

.1 Design phase milestone dates, if any: 
 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
3 

 

«Approve Contract Documents: December 17, 2019 
Issue Contract Documents for Bidding: December 20, 2019 
Bid Opening: January 29, 2020» 

 
.2 Construction commencement date: 
 

«To Be Determined» 
 

.3 Substantial Completion date or dates: 
 

«To Be Determined.» 
 

.4 Other milestone dates: 
 

«To Be Determined.» 
 
§ 1.1.5 The Owner intends the following procurement and delivery method for the Project: 
(Identify method such as competitive bid or negotiated contract.) 

 
«Competitive Bid.» 
 
§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s requirements for accelerated or fast-track design and construction, multiple bid packages, or 
phased construction are set forth below: 
(List number and type of bid/procurement packages.) 

 
«None» 
 
§ 1.1.7 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project: 
(Identify and describe the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.) 

 
«Follow best practices and State Building/Energy Codes.» 
 
§ 1.1.7.1 If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner and Architect shall complete and incorporate 
AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and 
services related to the Owner’s Sustainable Objective. If E204-2017 is incorporated into this agreement, the Owner 
and Architect shall incorporate the completed E204–2017 into the agreements with the consultants and contractors 
performing services or Work in any way associated with the Sustainable Objective. 
 
§ 1.1.8 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 5.4: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

 
«Mr. Jim Neubauer, City Administrator» 
«City of Mandan» 
«205 2nd Ave NW» 
«Mandan, ND 58554» 
«701-667-3215» 
«jneubauer@cityofmandan.com» 

 
§ 1.1.9 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the Architect’s 
submittals to the Owner are as follows: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

 
«City of Mandan Building Inspections, Planning and Engineering Departments.» 
 
§ 1.1.10 The Owner shall retain the following consultants and contractors: 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
4 

 

(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.) 

 
.1 Cost Consultant: 
 

«None.»«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 

 
.2 Scheduling Consultant: 
 

«None.»«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 

 
.3 Geotechnical Engineer: 
 

«To Be Determined»«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 
«  » 

 
.4 Civil Engineer: 
 

«Stantec Consulting Services» 
«3255 Greensboro Drive Suite 203Bismarck, ND 58503-5413» 
«Telephone Number: 701-333-8924» 

 
.5 Other, if any: 
 (List any other consultants and contractors retained by the Owner.) 

 
 «Surveying: 
 

«Bartlett & West, Inc.»«, Professional Corporation» 
«Kevin Martin, Survey Manager» 
«3456 East Century Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58503» 
«Telephone Number: 701-258-1110» 

 
§ 1.1.11 The Architect identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 2.3: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

 
«Joe Larrivee» 
«Senior Project Manager» 
«Telephone Number: 701-221-8369» 
«Fax Number: 701-258-1100» 
«Mobile Number: 701-220-6928» 
«Email Address: joe.larrivee@bartwest.com» 
 
§ 1.1.12 The Architect shall retain the consultants identified in Sections 1.1.12.1 and 1.1.12.2: 
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.) 

 

r 
r 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
5 

 

§ 1.1.12.1 Consultants retained under Basic Services: 
.1 Structural Engineer: 
 

«CWStructural Engineers»«, Professional Corporation» 
«Chris Wentz» 
«1000 E. Calgary Avenue, Suite #2 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58503» 
«Telephone Number: 701-221-3286» 
«Email Address: chriswentz@cwstructural.net» 

 
.2 Mechanical Engineer: 
 

«Bartlett & West, Inc.»«, Professional Corporation» 
«Mike Van Duyne» 
«3456 East Century Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58503» 
«Telephone Number: 701-258-1110» 
«Email Address: mike.vanduyne@bartwest.com» 

 
.3 Electrical Engineer: 
 

«Apex Engineering Group.»«, Professional Corporation» 
«John Klein» 
«600 South Second Street – Suite 145 
Bismarck, ND 58504» 
«Telephone Number: 701-323-3950» 
«Email Address: john.klein@apexenggroup.com» 

 
§ 1.1.12.2 Consultants retained under Supplemental Services: 
 
«Stantec Consulting Services» 
3255 Greensboro Drive Suite 203 
Bismarck, ND 58503-5413 
Telephone Number: 701-333-8924 
 
§ 1.1.13 Other Initial Information on which the Agreement is based: 
 
«None.» 
 
§ 1.2 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that the Initial 
Information may materially change, and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the 
Architect’s services, schedule for the Architect’s services, and the Architect’s compensation. The Owner shall adjust 
the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work and the Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones, as 
necessary, to accommodate material changes in the Initial Information. 
 
§ 1.3 The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any 
other information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013, Building 
Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, 
and exchange of digital data. 
 
§ 1.3.1 Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols 
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set 
forth in AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite 
AIA Document G202™–2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at the using or 
relying party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or 
contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees. 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
6 

 

 
ARTICLE 2   ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide professional services as set forth in this Agreement. The Architect represents that 
it is properly licensed in the jurisdiction where the Project is located to provide the services required by this 
Agreement,or shall cause such services to be performed by appropriately licensed design professionals. 
 
§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by 
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall 
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of 
the Project. 
 
§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the 
Project. 
 
§ 2.4 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any 
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional 
judgment with respect to this Project. 
 
§ 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance until termination of this Agreement. If any of the 
requirements set forth below are in addition to the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner 
shall pay the Architect as set forth in Section 11.9. 
 
§ 2.5.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than «One Million» ($«1,000,000») for each 
occurrence and «Two Million» ($«2,000,000») in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage. 
 
§ 2.5.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Architect with policy 
limits of not less than «One Million» ($ «1,000,000» ) per accident for bodily injury, death of any person, and 
property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, along with any other 
statutorily required automobile coverage. 
 
§ 2.5.3 The Architect may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided such 
primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages 
required under Sections 2.5.1 and 2.5.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide 
narrower coverage than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying 
limits only through the actual payment by the underlying insurers. 
 
§ 2.5.4 Workers’ Compensation at statutory limits. 
 
§ 2.5.5 Employers’ Liability with policy limits not less than «One Million» ($ «1,000,000») each accident, «One 
Million» ($ «1,000,000» ) each employee, and «One Million» ($ «1,000,000» ) policy limit. 
 
§ 2.5.6 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of professional 
services with policy limits of not less than «Five Million» ($ «5,000,000» ) per claim and «Ten Million» ($ 
«10,000,000» ) in the aggregate. 
 
§ 2.5.7 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect shall cause the primary 
and excess or umbrella polices for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Owner as 
an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions. The 
additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Owner’s insurance policies and shall 
apply to both ongoing and completed operations. 
 
§ 2.5.8 The Architect shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with the 
requirements in this Section 2.5. 

 

-- -
--

-- - -
- --



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
7 

 

ARTICLE 3   SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES 
§ 3.1 The Architect’s Basic Services consist of those described in this Article 3 and include usual and customary 
structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Supplemental 
or Additional Services. 
 
§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, research applicable design criteria, attend Project 
meetings, communicate with members of the Project team, and report progress to the Owner. 
 
§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner’s 
consultants. The Architect shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, completeness, 
and timeliness of, services and information furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Architect shall 
provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission, or inconsistency 
in such services or information. 
 
§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit, for the Owner and the 
Scheduling Consultant’s approval, a schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The schedule shall 
include design phase milestone dates, as well as the anticipated dates for the commencement of construction and for 
Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information. The schedule shall include allowances for 
periods of time required for the Owner’s review, for the performance of the Owner’s consultants, and for approval 
of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once approved by the Owner and Scheduling 
Consultant, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by the 
Architect or Owner. With the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the Project 
proceeds until the commencement of construction. 
 
§ 3.1.4 Upon the Owner’s reasonable request, the Architect shall submit information to the Scheduling Consultant 
and participate in developing and revising the Project schedule as it relates to the Architect’s services. 
 

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner’s directive or substitution, or for the Owner’s acceptance 
of non-conforming Work, made or given without the Architect’s written approval. 
 

§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall contact governmental authorities required to approve the Construction Documents and 
entities providing utility services to the Project. The Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements 
imposed by those authorities and entities. 
 

§ 3.1.7 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents 
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
§ 3.2 Schematic Design Phase Services 
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review 
laws, codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services. 
 
§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost 
of the Work, Project site, the proposed procurement and delivery method, and other Initial Information, each in 
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any 
inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be 
reasonably needed for the Project. 
 
§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner 
alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the 
Owner regarding the requirements of the Project. 
 
§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present, for 
the Owner’s approval, a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components. 
 
§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner’s approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design 
Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
8 

 

documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may 
include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital representations. Preliminary selections 
of major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing. 
 
§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider sustainable design alternatives, such as material choices and building 
orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that is 
consistent with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain more 
advanced sustainable design services as a Supplemental Service under Section 4.1.1. 
 
§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together 
with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent 
with the Owner’s program, schedule, and budget for the Cost of the Work. 
 
§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner and the Cost Consultant. The 
Architect shall meet with the Cost Consultant to review the Schematic Design Documents. 
 
§ 3.2.7 Upon receipt of the Cost Consultant’s estimate at the conclusion of the Schematic Design Phase, the 
Architect shall take action as required under Section 6.4 and request the Owner’s approval of the Schematic Design 
Documents. If revisions to the Schematic Design Documents are required to comply with the Owner’s budget for the 
Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Schematic Design Phase, the Architect shall incorporate the required 
revisions in the Design Development Phase. 
 
§ 3.3 Design Development Phase Services 
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 
Design Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building 
systems to fix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical systems, and other appropriate elements. The Design Development Documents shall also include outline 
specifications that identify major materials and systems and establish, in general, their quality levels. 
 
§ 3.3.2 Prior to the conclusion of the Design Development Phase, the Architect shall submit the Design 
Development Documents to the Owner and the Cost Consultant. The Architect shall meet with the Cost Consultant 
to review the Design Development Documents.  
 
§ 3.3.3 Upon receipt of the Cost Consultant’s estimate at the conclusion of the Design Development Phase, the 
Architect shall take action as required under Sections 6.5 and 6.6 and request the Owner’s approval of the Design 
Development Documents. 
 
§ 3.4 Construction Documents Phase Services 
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 
Construction Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the 
further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings and 
Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels and performance criteria of materials and systems and other 
requirements for the construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that, in order to perform the 
Work, the Contractor will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and 
other similar submittals, which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4. 
 

§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate the design requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over 
the Project into the Construction Documents. 
 
§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the 
development and preparation of (1) procurement information that describes the time, place, and conditions of 
bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement between the Owner and Contractor; and (3) 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
9 

 

the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions). The Architect shall 
also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and Specifications, and 
may include bidding requirements and sample forms. 
 
§ 3.4.4 Prior to the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase, the Architect shall submit the Construction 
Documents to the Owner and the Cost Consultant. The Architect shall meet with the Cost Consultant to review the 
Construction Documents. 
 
§ 3.4.5 Upon receipt of the Cost Consultant’s estimate at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase, the 
Architect shall take action as required under Section 6.7 and request the Owner’s approval of the Construction 
Documents. 
 
§ 3.5 Procurement Phase Services 
§ 3.5.1 General 
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner’s 
approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive 
bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid 
or proposal, if any; and, (4) awarding and preparing contracts for construction. 
 

§ 3.5.2 Competitive Bidding 
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by: 

.1 facilitating the distribution of Bidding Documents to prospective bidders; 

.2 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders; 

.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and 
interpretations of the Bidding Documents to the prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and, 

.4 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing 
the bidding results, as directed by the Owner. 

 
§ 3.5.2.3 If the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner’s written authorization, the Architect shall, 
as an Additional Service, consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved 
substitutions to all prospective bidders. 
 
§ 3.5.3 Negotiated Proposals 
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by: 

.1 facilitating the distribution of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors and 
requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process; 

.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; 

.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective contractors and providing clarifications and 
interpretations of the Proposal Documents to the prospective contractors in the form of addenda; and, 

.4 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary 
report of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner. 

 
§ 3.5.3.3 If the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner’s written authorization, the Architect 
shall, as an Additional Service, consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying 
approved substitutions to all prospective contractors. 
 
§ 3.6 Construction Phase Services 
§ 3.6.1 General 
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set 
forth below and in AIA Document A201™–2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. If the Owner 
and Contractor modify AIA Document A201–2017, those modifications shall not affect the Architect’s services 
under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement. 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
10 

 

 

§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The 
Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The 
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the 
Architect be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, but shall not 
have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other 
persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 
 

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.2 and except as provided in Section 3.6.6.5, the Architect’s responsibility to provide 
Construction Phase Services commences with the award of the Contract for Construction and terminates on the date 
the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. 
 

§ 3.6.2 Evaluations of the Work 
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise 
required in Section 4.2.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work 
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the 
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not 
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On 
the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of 
the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract 
Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (3) 
defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. 
 

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever 
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or 
testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not the Work is 
fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith 
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the 
Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of 
the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the 
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests 
shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 
 
§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable 
from, the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations 
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not 
show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The 
Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the 
Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that 
term is defined in AIA Document A201–2017, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the 
Owner and Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.3 Certificates for Payment to Contractor 
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such 
amounts. The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the 
Architect’s evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor’s 
Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, the Work has 
progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the 
Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. The foregoing representations are subject to (1) an 
evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) results of 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
11 

 

subsequent tests and inspections, (3) correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to 
completion, and (4) specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 
 
§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from 
Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to 
payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of 
the Contract Sum. 
 

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment. 
 

§ 3.6.4 Submittals 
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or 
withhold approval of the schedule. The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with 
the approved submittal schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness 
while allowing sufficient time, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to permit adequate review. 
 

§ 3.6.4.2 The Architect shall review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals 
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance 
with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is 
not for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other information such as dimensions, 
quantities, and installation or performance of equipment or systems, which are the Contractor’s responsibility. The 
Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of 
which the item is a component. 
 

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or 
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or equipment, the Architect shall specify the 
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect shall review and take 
appropriate action on Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the 
Contractor’s design professional, provided the submittals bear such professional’s seal and signature when 
submitted to the Architect. The Architect’s review shall be for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect shall be entitled to 
rely upon, and shall not be responsible for, the adequacy and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals 
performed or provided by such design professionals. 
 
§ 3.6.4.4 Subject to Section 4.2, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information about the 
Contract Documents. The Architect shall set forth, in the Contract Documents, the requirements for requests for 
information. Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the 
specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The 
Architect’s response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and 
Specifications in response to the requests for information. 
 

§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.5 Changes in the Work 
§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract 
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to 
Section 4.2, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the Owner’s 
approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the Work. 
 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
12 

 

§ 3.6.6 Project Completion 
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall: 

.1 conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of final 
completion; 

.2 issue Certificates of Substantial Completion; 

.3 forward to the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents 
required by the Contract Documents and received from the Contractor; and, 

.4 issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection indicating that, to the best of the 
Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work complies with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. 

 
§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect’s inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the 
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected. 
 
§ 3.6.6.3 When Substantial Completion has been achieved, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the balance 
of the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the Contract 
Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work. 
 
§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1) 
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2) 
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens, or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other 
documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents. 
 
§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial 
Completion, the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the 
facility operations and performance. 
 
ARTICLE 4   SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
§ 4.1 Supplemental Services 
§ 4.1.1 The services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The 
Architect shall provide the listed Supplemental Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the 
Architect’s responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2. Unless 
otherwise specifically addressed in this Agreement, if neither the Owner nor the Architect is designated, the parties 
agree that the listed Supplemental Service is not being provided for the Project. 
(Designate the Architect’s Supplemental Services and the Owner’s Supplemental Services required for the Project 

by indicating whether the Architect or Owner shall be responsible for providing the identified Supplemental Service. 

Insert a description of the Supplemental Services in Section 4.1.2 below or attach the description of services as an 

exhibit to this Agreement.) 

 

Supplemental Services Responsibility 
(Architect, Owner, or not provided) 

§ 4.1.1.1 Programming Owner/Architect   

§ 4.1.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs Architect 

§ 4.1.1.3 Measured drawings Architect 

§ 4.1.1.4 Existing facilities surveys Owner/Architect 

§ 4.1.1.5 Site evaluation and planning Architect 

§ 4.1.1.6 Building Information Model management 
 responsibilities  

Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.7 Development of Building Information Models for 
 post construction use 

Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.8 Civil engineering Architect 

§ 4.1.1.9 Landscape design Architect 

nY 
ILJL, 

I 

r""\. 
~ 

I ~ 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
13 

 

Supplemental Services Responsibility 
(Architect, Owner, or not provided) 

§ 4.1.1.10 Architectural interior design Architect 

§ 4.1.1.11 Value analysis Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.12 Cost estimating Architect 

§ 4.1.1.13 On-site project representation Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.14 Conformed documents for construction Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.15 As-designed record drawings Architect 

§ 4.1.1.16 As-constructed record drawings Architect 

§ 4.1.1.17 Post-occupancy evaluation Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.18 Facility support services Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.19 Tenant-related services Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.20 Architect’s coordination of the Owner’s 
 consultants 

Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.21 Telecommunications/data design Architect 

§ 4.1.1.22 Security evaluation and planning Architect 

§ 4.1.1.23 Commissioning Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.24 Sustainable Project Services pursuant to Section 
 4.1.3 

Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.25 Historic preservation Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.26 Furniture, furnishings, and equipment design Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.27 Other services provided by specialty Consultants Not Provided 

§ 4.1.1.28 Other Supplemental Services Not Provided 

  

 
§ 4.1.2 Description of Supplemental Services 
§ 4.1.2.1 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Architect’s responsibility is 
provided below. 
(Describe in detail the Architect’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit, 

identify the exhibit. The AIA publishes a number of Standard Form of Architect’s Services documents that can be 

included as an exhibit to describe the Architect’s Supplemental Services.) 

 
«None.» 
 
§ 4.1.2.2 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Owner’s responsibility is 
provided below. 
(Describe in detail the Owner’s Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit, 

identify the exhibit.) 

 
«None.» 
 
§ 4.1.3 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Architect shall provide, as a Supplemental 
Service, the Sustainability Services required in AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached 
to this Agreement. The Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2. 
 
§ 4.2 Architect’s Additional Services 
The Architect may provide Additional Services after execution of this Agreement without invalidating the 
Agreement. Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in 
accordance with this Section 4.2 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an 
appropriate adjustment in the Architect’s schedule. 

n 
11 
I 
I I 

- -----
I I 

A 
/) 

/( 
(/I 
,1 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
14 

 

 
§ 4.2.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the 
Owner with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect 
shall not proceed to provide the following Additional Services until the Architect receives the Owner’s written 
authorization: 

.1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given 
by the Owner, or a material change in the Project including size, quality, complexity, the Owner’s 
schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method, or bid packages in 
addition to those listed in Section 1.1.6; 

.2 Services necessitated by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, or regulations, including changing 
or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service; 

.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by official 
interpretations of applicable codes, laws or regulations that are either (a) contrary to specific 
interpretations by the applicable authorities having jurisdiction made prior to the issuance of the 
building permit, or (b) contrary to requirements of the Instruments of Service when those Instruments 
of Service were prepared in accordance with the applicable standard of care; 

.4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure 
of performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s consultants or contractors; 

.5 Preparing digital models or other design documentation for transmission to the Owner’s consultants 
and contractors, or to other Owner-authorized recipients; 

.6 Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the 
Owner; 

.7 Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing; 

.8 Preparation for, and attendance at, a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where 
the Architect is party thereto; 

.9 Evaluation of the qualifications of entities providing bids or proposals; 

.10 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction; 
or, 

.11 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect. 
 
§ 4.2.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services, 
notify the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. If, 
upon receipt of the Architect’s notice, the Owner determines that all or parts of the services are not required, the 
Owner shall give prompt written notice to the Architect of the Owner’s determination. The Owner shall compensate 
the Architect for the services provided prior to the Architect’s receipt of the Owner’s notice. 

.1 Reviewing a Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule approved by the 
Architect; 

.2 Responding to the Contractor’s requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the 
Contract Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study 
and comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information, 
Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation; 

.3 Preparing Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor’s 
proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service; 

.4 Evaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker; or, 

.5 Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to 
Instruments of Service resulting therefrom. 

 
§ 4.2.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional 
Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner: 

.1 «Two» («2») reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittals of the 
Contractor 

.2 «Fifteen» («15») visits to the site by the Architect during construction 

.3 «Two» («2») inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work 
is substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 

.4 «Two» («2») inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion. 
 

-· 
-· 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
15 

 

§ 4.2.4 Except for services required under Section 3.6.6.5 and those services that do not exceed the limits set forth in 
Section 4.2.3, Construction Phase Services provided more than 60 days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion 
of the Work or (2) the initial date of Substantial Completion identified in the agreement between the Owner and 
Contractor, whichever is earlier, shall be compensated as Additional Services to the extent the Architect incurs 
additional cost in providing those Construction Phase Services. 
 
§ 4.2.5 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within «Thirty»  «30») months of the 
date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s services beyond that time shall 
be compensated as Additional Services. 
 
ARTICLE 5   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the 
Owner’s objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships; flexibility; 
expandability; special equipment; systems; and site requirements.  
 
§ 5.2 The Owner shall furnish the services of a Scheduling Consultant that shall be responsible for creating the 
overall Project schedule. The Owner shall adjust the Project schedule, if necessary, as the Project proceeds. 
 
§ 5.3 The Owner shall establish the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget for the Cost of the 
Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of these 
costs. The Owner shall update the Owner’s budget for the Project as necessary throughout the duration of the Project 
until final completion. The Owner shall furnish the services of a Cost Consultant that shall be responsible for 
preparing all estimates of the Cost of the Work. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s 
budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall notify the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter 
agree to a corresponding change in the Project’s scope and quality. 

 

§ 5.3.1 The Owner acknowledges that accelerated, phased or fast-track scheduling provides a benefit, but also 
carries with it associated risks. Such risks include the Owner incurring costs for the Architect to coordinate and 
redesign portions of the Project affected by procuring or installing elements of the Project prior to the completion of 
all relevant Construction Documents, and costs for the Contractor to remove and replace previously installed Work. 
If the Owner selects accelerated, phased or fast-track scheduling, the Owner agrees to include in the budget for the 
Project sufficient contingencies to cover such costs.  
 
§ 5.4 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project. 
The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s submittals in a timely manner in order to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services. 
 
§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as 
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; 
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and 
contours of the site; locations, dimensions, and other necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 
improvements and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, 
above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a 
Project benchmark. 
 
§ 5.6 The Owner shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include test borings, test pits, 
determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, 
ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with 
written reports and appropriate recommendations. 
 
§ 5.7 The Owner shall provide the Supplemental Services designated as the Owner’s responsibility in Section 4.1.1. 
 
§ 5.8 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as 
required in AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached to this Agreement.  

-



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
16 

 

 
§ 5.9 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect. 
Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the 
Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated 
as the responsibility of the Architect in this Agreement or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional 
Service, when the Architect requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope 
of the Project. The Owner shall require that its consultants and contractors maintain insurance, including 
professional liability insurance, as appropriate to the services or work provided. 
 
§ 5.10 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as 
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials. 
 
§ 5.11 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests. 
 
§ 5.12 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or 
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service. 
 
§ 5.13 The Owner shall include the Architect in all communications with the Contractor that relate to or affect the 
Architect’s services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance 
of any direct communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. 
Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect. 
 

§ 5.14 Before executing the Contract for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect’s duties and 
responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect’s services set forth in this Agreement. 
The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor, 
including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 
 
§ 5.15 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and 
shall obligate the Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress. 
 

§ 5.16 Within 15 days after receipt of a written request from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested 
information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce lien rights. 
 

ARTICLE 6   COST OF THE WORK 
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors’ general conditions costs, 
overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work also includes the reasonable value of labor, materials, and equipment, 
donated to, or otherwise furnished by, the Owner. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the 
Architect; the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, or contingencies for changes in the Work; or other costs 
that are the responsibility of the Owner. 
 
§ 6.2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information and shall be adjusted 
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.3 and 6.4. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the 
Work represent the Architect’s judgment as a design professional. 
  
§ 6.3 The Owner shall require the Cost Consultant to include appropriate contingencies for design, bidding or 
negotiating, price escalation, and market conditions in estimates of the Cost of the Work. The Architect shall be 
entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of estimates of the Cost of the Work the Cost Consultant prepares 
as the Architect progresses with its Basic Services. The Architect shall prepare, as an Additional Service, revisions 
to the Drawings, Specifications or other documents required due to the Cost Consultant’s inaccuracies or 
incompleteness in preparing cost estimates, or due to market conditions the Architect could not reasonably 
anticipate. The Architect may review the Cost Consultant’s estimates solely for the Architect’s guidance in 
completion of its services, however, the Architect shall report to the Owner any material inaccuracies and 
inconsistencies noted during any such review. 
 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
17 

 

§ 6.4 If, prior to the conclusion of the Design Development Phase, the Cost Consultant’s estimate of the Cost of the 
Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect, in consultation with the Cost Consultant, 
shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality or budget for the Cost of 
the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments. 
 
§ 6.5 If the estimate of the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Design Development Phase exceeds the 
Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall 

.1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work; 

.2 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5; 

.3 in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce 
the Cost of the Work; or, 

.4 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative. 
 
§ 6.6 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.5.3, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall 
incorporate the revisions in the Construction Documents Phase as necessary to comply with the Owner’s budget for 
the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Design Development Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under 
Section 6.5.1. The Architect’s revisions in the Construction Documents Phase shall be the limit of the Architect’s 
responsibility under this Article 6. 
 
§ 6.7 After incorporation of modifications under Section 6.6, the Architect shall, as an Additional Service, make any 
required revisions to the Drawings, Specifications or other documents necessitated by subsequent cost estimates that 
exceed the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, except when the excess is due to changes initiated by the 
Architect in scope, basic systems, or the kinds and quality of materials, finishes or equipment. 
 
ARTICLE 7   COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 7.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the 
transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to 
transmit such information for its use on the Project. 
 
§ 7.2 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication 
in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants. 
 
§ 7.3 The Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service solely 
and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, provided that the 
Owner substantially performs its obligations under this Agreement, including prompt payment of all sums due 
pursuant to Article 9 and Article 11. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the Architect’s 
consultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to authorize 
the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers, as well as the Owner’s consultants and separate 
contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of Service, subject to any protocols established 
pursuant to Section 1.3, solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the 
Architect rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this 
Section 7.3 shall terminate. 
 
§ 7.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of 
Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising 
from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes 
of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s use of 
the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner 
rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4. 
 
§ 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied 
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
18 

 

granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the 
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner’s sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect’s 
consultants. 
 
§ 7.5 Except as otherwise stated in Section 7.3, the provisions of this Article 7 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 8   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 8.1 General 
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of 
or related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements of the 
binding dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law, but 
in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect 
waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1. 
 
§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against 
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other for damages, except such 
rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A201–2017, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the 
contractors, consultants, agents and employees of any of them, similar waivers in favor of the other parties 
enumerated herein. 
 
§ 8.1.3 The Architect shall indemnify and hold the Owner and the Owner’s officers and employees harmless from 
and against damages, losses and judgments arising from claims by third parties, including reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and expenses recoverable under applicable law, but only to the extent they are caused by the negligent acts or 
omissions of the Architect, its employees and its consultants in the performance of professional services under this 
Agreement. The Architect’s obligation to indemnify and hold the Owner and the Owner’s officers and employees 
harmless does not include a duty to defend. The Architect’s duty to indemnify the Owner under this Section 8.1.3 
shall be limited to the available proceeds of the insurance coverage required by this Agreement. 
 
§ 8.1.4 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes, or other matters in question, 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential 
damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7. 
 
§ 8.2 Mediation 
§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien 
arising out of the Architect’s services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with 
the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution. 
 

§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between 
them by mediation, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American 
Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of 
this Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and 
filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of 
a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in 
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days 
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration 
proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) 
and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 
 

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
19 

 

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding 
dispute resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box.) 

 
[ «X» ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement 

 
[ «  » ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

 
[ «  » ] Other: (Specify) 

 
«  » 

 
If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in 
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 
 
§ 8.3 Arbitration 
§ 8.3.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any 
claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by, 
mediation shall be subject to arbitration, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by 
the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the 
date of this Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this 
Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. 
 
§ 8.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based 
on the claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute 
of limitations purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the 
arbitration shall constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other 
matter in question. 
 
§ 8.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity 
duly consented to by parties to this Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law 
in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance 
with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 
§ 8.3.4 Consolidation or Joinder 
§ 8.3.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 
permits consolidation; (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact; 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 
 
§ 8.3.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, 
provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an 
additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question 
not described in the written consent. 
 
§ 8.3.4.3 The Owner and Architect grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Section 8.3, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Architect under this Agreement. 
 
§ 8.4 The provisions of this Article 8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

-• • • 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
20 

 

ARTICLE 9   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be 
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension 
of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give 
seven days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the 
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of 
services. Before resuming services, the Owner shall pay the Architect all sums due prior to suspension and any 
expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the 
remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 
 
§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of 
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the 
interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time 
schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 
 

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice.  
 
§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating 
the termination. 
 
§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Architect for the 
Owner’s convenience and without cause. 
 
§ 9.6 If the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates 
this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect for services performed prior to 
termination, Reimbursable Expenses incurred, and costs attributable to termination, including the costs attributable 
to the Architect’s termination of consultant agreements. 
 
§ 9.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 9.6, if the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience 
pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay to 
the Architect the following fees: 
(Set forth below the amount of any termination or licensing fee, or the method for determining any termination or 

licensing fee.) 

 
.1 Termination Fee: 
 

«Any expenses directly attributable to termination for which the Architect is not otherwise 
compensated, plus an amount for the Architect’s anticipated profit on the value of services not 
performed by the Architect.» 

 
.2 Licensing Fee if the Owner intends to continue using the Architect’s Instruments of Service: 
 

«None.» 
 

§ 9.8 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall terminate one year from the date of 
Substantial Completion. 
 

§ 9.9 The Owner’s rights to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this 
Agreement are set forth in Article 7 and Section 9.7. 
 

ARTICLE 10   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that 
jurisdiction’s choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, 
the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 8.3. 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 o n 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
21 

 

 
§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document A201–2017, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 
 

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for 
the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement, including any 
payments due to the Architect by the Owner prior to the assignment. 
 

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be 
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests 
the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute 
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the 
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or 
consents that would require knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement. 
 
§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor 
of, a third party against either the Owner or Architect. 
 

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery, 
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any 
form at the Project site. 
 

§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the 
Project among the Architect’s promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable 
access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect’s materials shall not include 
the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of 
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide 
professional credit for the Architect in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project. This Section 10.7 shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement unless the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 
9.4. 
 

§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated as “confidential” or “business 
proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any 
other person except as set forth in Section 10.8.1. This Section 10.8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
§ 10.8.1 The receiving party may disclose “confidential” or “business proprietary” information after 7 days’ notice 
to the other party, when required by law, arbitrator’s order, or court order, including a subpoena or other form of 
compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or to the extent such information is reasonably 
necessary for the receiving party to defend itself in any dispute. The receiving party may also disclose such 
information to its employees, consultants, or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively 
for the Project, provided those employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the 
disclosure and use of such information as set forth in this Section 10.8. 
 
§ 10.9 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining 
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or 
unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and 
enforceable. In such case the Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to 
the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 11   COMPENSATION 
§ 11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as 
follows: 
 

.1 Stipulated Sum 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
22 

 

 (Insert amount) 

 
«» 

 
.2 Percentage Basis 
 (Insert percentage value) 

 

 «Nine» («9») % of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, as calculated in accordance with 
Section 11.6. 

 
.3 Other 
 (Describe the method of compensation) 

 
«» 

 
§ 11.2 For the Architect’s Supplemental Services designated in Section 4.1.1 and for any Sustainability Services 
required pursuant to Section 4.1.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of 

compensation apply.) 

Phase I Site Planning and Project Programming: Stipulated Lump Sum of $45,000. 
«Phase II Civil Engineering and Landscape Architecture: Included in Basic Services Fee Basis» 
«Surveying: Per Bartlett & West Hourly Rate Chart» 
«Soil Exploration: To Be Determined» 
 
§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.2, the 
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) 

 
«Per Bartlett & West Hourly Rate Chart» 
 
§ 11.4 Compensation for Supplemental and Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in 
Section 11.2 or 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus «Fifteen» percent («15»%), or as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for computing, Architect’s consultants’ compensation for Supplemental or Additional 

Services.) 

 
«» 
 
§ 11.5 When compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or a percentage basis, the proportion of 
compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows: 
 

Schematic Design Phase «Twenty» percent  ( «20» %) 
Design Development Phase « Fifteen» percent  ( «15» %) 
Construction Documents 
Phase 

«Forty» percent  ( «40» %) 

Procurement Phase « Five» percent  ( «5»   %) 
Construction Phase «Twenty» percent  ( «20» %) 
       

Total Basic Compensation  one hundred  percent  ( 100  %) 
 
The Owner acknowledges that with an accelerated Project delivery or multiple bid package process, the Architect 
may be providing its services in multiple Phases simultaneously. Therefore, the Architect shall be permitted to 
invoice monthly in proportion to services performed in each Phase of Services, as appropriate. 
 

§ 11.6 When compensation identified in Section 11.1 is on a percentage basis, progress payments for each phase of 
Basic Services shall be calculated by multiplying the percentages identified in this Article by the Owner’s most 

■ 

-· 
■ 

-

I I t\ 
I ' 



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
23 

 

recent budget for the Cost of the Work. Compensation paid in previous progress payments shall not be adjusted 
based on subsequent updates to the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work. 
 
§ 11.6.1 When compensation is on a percentage basis  and any portions of the Project are deleted or otherwise not 
constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent services are performed on 
those portions. The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with this Agreement for all services 
performed whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced. 
 
§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants are set forth below. The 
rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants’ normal review practices. 
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 

 
«» 
 

Employee or Category Rate ($0.00) 
    

 
§ 11.8 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses 
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic, Supplemental, and Additional Services 
and include expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as 
follows: 

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence; 

.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project web 
sites, and extranets; 

.3 Permitting and other fees required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project; 

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents; 

.5 Postage, handling, and delivery; 

.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner; 

.7 Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials 
requested by the Owner or required for the Project; 

.8 If required by the Owner, and with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Architect’s consultants’ 
expenses of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this Project, or the expense of 
additional insurance coverage or limits in excess of that normally maintained by the Architect’s 
consultants; 

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; 

.10 Site office expenses; 

.11 Registration fees and any other fees charged by the Certifying Authority or by other entities as 
necessary to achieve the Sustainable Objective; and, 

.12 Other similar Project-related expenditures. 
 
§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the 
Architect’s consultants plus «Five» percent ( «5» %) of the expenses incurred. 
 
§ 11.9 Architect’s Insurance. If the types and limits of coverage required in Section 2.5 are in addition to the types 
and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall pay the Architect for the additional costs incurred by 
the Architect for the additional coverages as set forth below: 
(Insert the additional coverages the Architect is required to obtain in order to satisfy the requirements set forth in 

Section 2.5, and for which the Owner shall reimburse the Architect.) 

 
«  » 
 
§ 11.10 Payments to the Architect 
§ 11.10.1 Initial Payments 
§ 11.10.1.1 An initial payment of «Zero» ($ « 0.00» ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the 
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice. 
 

- . 

--



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
24 

 

§ 11.10.1.2 If a Sustainability Certification is part of the Sustainable Objective, an initial payment to the Architect of 
«Zero» ($ «0.00» ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement for registration fees and other fees payable to 
the Certifying Authority and necessary to achieve the Sustainability Certification. The Architect’s payments to the 
Certifying Authority shall be credited to the Owner’s account at the time the expense is incurred. 
 

§ 11.10.2 Progress Payments 
§ 11.10.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services 
performed. Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid «Sixty» ( 
«60» ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal 
rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 

 
«Six» % «annual» 
 
§ 11.10.2.2 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty or 
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in 
the Work, unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution 
proceeding. 
 
§ 11.10.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Supplemental and Additional Services, and 
services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times. 
 
ARTICLE 12   SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows: 
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.) 

 
«None.» 
 
ARTICLE 13   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both the Owner and Architect. 
 
§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below: 

.1 AIA Document B103™–2017, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect 

.2 AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, dated as 
indicated below: 
(Insert the date of the E203-2013 incorporated into this agreement.) 

 
«Not Provided.» 

  
.3 Exhibits: 

(Check the appropriate box for any exhibits incorporated into this Agreement.) 

 
[ «Not Provided.»] AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated 

below: 
(Insert the date of the E204-2017 incorporated into this agreement.) 

 
 «» 

 

[ «X» ] Other Exhibits incorporated into this Agreement: 
(Clearly identify any other exhibits incorporated into this Agreement, including any exhibits 

and scopes of services identified as exhibits in Section 4.1.2.) 

 
 «2019 Schedule of Hourly Charges» 

 

--
-
1111 -

-
-

■ -

-



AIA Document B103™ – 2017.  Copyright © 2007 and 2017 by The American Institute of Architects . All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA ®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA ®  Document, 
or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the 
law.  This draft was produced by AIA software at 11:21:54 on 10/17/2017 under Order No.9321666850 which expires on 10/17/2018, and is not 
for resale. 
User Notes:   (862284142) 

 
25 

 

.4 Other documents: 
(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.) 

 
«  » 

 
 
This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. 
 

       

OWNER (Signature)  ARCHITECT (Signature) 

«  »«  »  «Joe Larrivee, »«Senior Project Manager» 

(Printed name and title)  (Printed name, title, and license number, if required) 

 
 
 

• 
L ========~ __c====--n-u --------l... 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To enter into agreement with Moore Engineering for the Design and 
other Engineering services through 30% design including full existing conditions assessment, 
public input meetings and a project concept report.  
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: At the August 20st City Commission meeting, commission 
approved the selection committee’s choice of Moore Engineering to go on to contract 
negotiations to provide engineering services for the Southside Street Improvement District 
project. Moore Engineering delivered their scope and fee for the design of the project the 
following week.   
 
Under this agreement, we are committing to preliminary, or what is commonly referred to in the 
engineering industry as 30% design. It is intended to be far enough to answer the major questions 
about project scope and get a good grasp on project costs before presenting to the public and 
commission as a resolution of necessity thereby starting the protest period. If not protested out, 
we would start from the 30% design and come to agreement for final design.  
 
The following is from a prior meeting: The local street conditions in this area of town can be 
generally classified as unsatisfactory as determined by a street assessment effort completed in 
2012. Additionally, there are watermain pipes pushed beyond their useful life and storm sewer 
issues throughout the project area. This area is also challenging in the way of ADA compliant 
access. Though it will not be feasible to address all ADA issues because of existing grade and 
construction limit constraints, we believe we can greatly improve accessibility with this project.  
 
Given the observed issues, the project scope will generally be to reconstruct and resurface streets 
and possibly alleys as well as replace the watermain and repair the sanitary and storm sewermain 
components as needed.     
 
The roadways in mind are local so the funds for this project would primarily come special 
assessments. A special assessment district will be created and the typical special assessment 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 29, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore 

Engineering for Mid-Town East Street 
Improvement District Project, SID 215 

  

 

  

New Business No. 4  

CITY 01' 
MANDAN 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 2 of 14 
 
process will take place along with this design effort. The special assessment process will be lead 
by city staff with help from the consultant.    
 
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised in June and July for engineering assistance. The 
city received seven proposals indicating interest in providing these services for the city. A 
selection committee was created and comprised of Planning and Engineering Department staff 
and Public Works Department staff. After the selection committee reviewed the seven proposals, 
three of the competing firms were brought in for interview. After the interview and in evaluating 
all information available, the selection team scored the three firms. After the scores were 
tabulated, Moore Engineering came out on top with Houston Engineering scoring in a relatively 
close second place. Therefore, we would like to move forward with contract negotiations with 
Moore Engineering. HDR was the third firm invited in for an interview and finished third in 
scoring after Moore and Houston. Note; Scoresheets available upon request.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:     

1) Agreement Letter and Outline of Tasks  
2) Map of Intended Area of Street Improvements 
3) Other Agreement Attachments Available Upon Request (total of 22 pages) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  As with all of our local street reconstruct projects, the cost is for the streets 
and storm sewer is expected to be primarily paid for through special assessments to benefiting 
properties. The water and sewer needs, primarily watermain in this case, is to be paid for by the 
utility fund. The engineering of the project is part of the total special assessment amount. The 
$150,395 amount under this agreement is fair considering the size of the project and services 
outlined.    
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The City Attorney was provided the agreement to review and comment.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the Engineering Services Agreement with Moore 
Engineering for the Mid-Town East Street Improvement District project.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 3 of 14 
 

 
 
 
 
 

August 29, 2019 

Justin Froselh, PE 

2911 North 14°' Slreel 
Suite 3011 
Bismarck, ND 585D3 

PlaJTling and Engineering Director 
City of Mandan 
2052"' Ave NW 
Mandan, ND 58554 

RE: Letter Agreemait 
id-Town Street Improvement Project 

Mandan, ND 
OORE Project No. 20834 

Dear Mr. Froreth, 

P: 701.7511.8360 
F: 701.751.2954 

Omoore ry eng·neering, me. 

In accordance with the direction received by the ndan Cily Commission f'Owner") on Aug.isl 20, 2019, 
Moore Engineering, Inc. (MOORE) is pleased to submit our agreement to provide civil engineering services for 
your utiity and stree reconstruction project. 

Project Understanding 

BACKGROUND: The City of Mandan published a Request for Qualifica · ans (RFO) lor engneeri.g s= ices for 
a street reconstruction project (Map - Attachment C). Moore provided a statement of quaificafions and was 
selected. At the August 20, 2019 City Commission mee~ng. the Owner d irected oore to provide a proposal 
foe prelm inary and design engs,eenng services due to the Cily at noon on August 29, 2019 for final approval 
at the September 3, 2019 Qty Commission meeting. It was requested that oore put together a detailed list 
of tasks and estmated nours lo complete the r;reliminary and 30% design engineenng services or the project. 
Answers to Moore's specific questions during this process were provided by City Engineer, ..h.Jstin Froreth . 

GENERAL 10ESCAIPTION OF PROJECT: The project consists of asphalt street reconstruction which may 
indude mill ing and overlaying and street reconstruction on streets and allE,Js throughout the project area 
identified in the attached map. It also ncludes ADA Ramp improvements, water main repacement and storm 
sewer improvements identified in the City' s storm water master plan report provided by the City of Mandan. 

PROJECT OBJ ECTfVES: MOORE will prwide Owner w ith preliminary and 30% design engineering 
documents or the propored street improvements, as described i, lhe aty 's RFQ and snown in the attached 
map. 

North Dakot.a - Bismarck • M ino t • W est Fargo Minn~s.ota - Fergus F a'lls • St . C loud 

mooreen ginee ringinc _c,om 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 4 of 14 
 

 
 

Page2 
City of Mandan 
August 29, 2019 

Scope of Work 

To meet the projeot objectives above, MOORE proposes to provide the following sesvioes: 

1. Studies and Reports 
AftBi'" acceptance of the Agreef"nent by DNner and up0171 written authorization from the Owner, 
Engineef" shall: 

eel w rlh Owner to define and darify Owner's requirements for the Project and available 
data. 
Coordnate Geotechnical Report for street ccres and soi borings. 

Request proposal from Geoted-rical firm and present to Owner !Dr approval. 
Proooe Geotechnical firm with map of proposed street core locations 
Geotechnical services will be prow:led as a subconsultant to Moore 

Perform prelimnaiy visual surveys of ex isling conditions of streets for initial 
recommendations of proposed improvements 
Identify and evalJate solutions available to Owner based on prelimi-laly visual surveys. 
The lype and number of alternatives are as described i, the attached task-hours 
spreadsheet !Attachment D). 
Prepare a Project Conoept Report i Report") ich ·11, as appropiate, contain 
schematic layouts, sketches and conoeptual design criteria with appropriate exhbits to 
indicate the agreed-to requirements , considerations involved and those alternate 
solutions avaiable to Owner ich ClOf"e recommends. For each recommended solution 

ClOf"e w ill provide the fo llowing, which ·11 be separately itemized : opini0171 of p robable 
construotion cost; proposed allowances for conm gencies; the estimated to costs o f 
design, p rofessional , and related services to be provided by Moore and its Consultants ; 
and, on the basis of information furnished by Owner, a summary of allowances for othei'" 
items and services ind uded wi thin the Total Projeot Costs. Moore ·11 provide three (S) 
bound copies of the dra ft report. 
Hold Bi-Weekly ~ssume 4) Engineering & Public Works Committee meetings to review 
alternatives for street improvements 

Prepare PASER survey and exhibits to evaluate recommended treatments to 
pavement 

Revise prelim inary Report based on comments from Pubic Works Committee and C ity 
Commission 
Hold two (2] Public Informational Meetings o present findings n preliminary Report 

Prepare PowefPoint presentation, exhibits and handouts for public meetings. 
Prepare final Report (up to 10 bound copies) based on cily commission d irection from 
pubic ini:ut. 

The Owner shall approve one (1) alterna e solution or the Engineer to recommend to the Owner 
o proceed on Design. 

Special Assessment Distriot S€:!Vioes 
Prepare a map and legaJ description of the Improvement IDistrict !Dr special assessments. 
Meet with Owner one (1) time to review Improvement District doa.Jments for approval al 
City Commission meeting. 
Prepare prelinwiary special assessment foolage or area exhit:it or Repoct. 
Utilize the aty's GIS parcel map for preparation o special assessments based on front 
footage or area. 

Coordinate with City to de ermine final paroels fr<rn tax roll. 
Create preliminaiy front footage map based on parcels. 
Prepare a preliminary special assessment list. 

mooreeng ine-ering inc.com 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 5 of 14 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page3 
City of Mandan 
August 29, 2019 

2. Preliminary Design Services 
MOORE shall: 

Review Geotechrical report and incorpc:rate reoommendalian into report. 
Hold two (2) field re.,iews with a Public Works representative to de ermine proposed street 
improvements and curb repairs. 
PrOlide field sJ..JrVf1'/S and topag-aphic and utiily ~ for design purposes. 
Based an alterrntives chosen by ONoer, identify reqii-ed right-of-way needs. 
Existing u:tity mapping that Moore deems appropriate will be based upon rnormatian 
prowled and gged by utility CM1ners. are will contact , rth Dakota One Cal to hm<e 
~ lie ulili1ies marked/flagged for surv~ . The Owner wil be responsible to loca e their 
utities · in the prtject site. The lirms of the 6eld SUNeJ wl be based on the area lo be 
constructed per the Report. 
Prefminary ADA IRamp Design 
Prefminary street design. 
Pre&ninary drai,age design (mass grading} based m re,,iew of topographic SJNey . 
Prefminary storm sewer design based on City of Mandan's storm sewer requm-ements 
(Exampe 2-year 24-hour storm e>Jel1I using the Rational Metrod.) 

Basis of Proposal 

The following items form the basis of !his Proposal : 
o envirormenta! permitti-,g or hazard/site assessment is induded i1 tis proposal . 

Addressing unknown utility conflicts during design I be considered additional seivices. 
Hold bt-weekly meetings (estimated lo be 2.5 hours each) with engineering department in order to 
provide updates and request decisions frcm the City . 
Geotechnical sesvices. "II be contracted as a rub-consultant under Moore Engineering The items 
inclided within the geotechnical engineers scope of work are described in the attached proposal 
from Braun lniertec, dated 81'28/19. 
The Special Assessment Commission is responsible to determine the method of how to specially 
assess each property wiithin the Improvement Distriat. The Engineer only assists in the calculations 
based an the methods chosen by the Special Assessments Comrrissian. 
The design or street impr01emenls ·11 hENe a level o e ort to address drainage issues knONn and 
identified by the Owner, but it cannot be expected Iha! all drainage isstles will be en "rely resolved . 
Proposed street seciions used ·11 be based on recommendalions pr01ided by the geotechnical 
engineer. Design will be based an the information obtained from the soil borings. Unknown soil 
conditions may be encountered during construction, trus a contingency fund will be established to 
address those areas if encountered . 
The ollowing items are specifically excluded: 

o Detailed Boondary survey to de emiile existing property lines. 
o Utility Coordina ·an meeting 
o Lighting Design 
o Cullural Resource WOik 
o Wetland Delineation 
o Pavement Life Cycle Cost Analysis 

F"11al Design and Construe ·an engineering services are not incllded. If requested, an amendment to 
this Agreement fa. Eng.-ieering Serviaes wi be prOlided o the Ownes- once a oonslruciion ccx,tract is 
awarded. 

Schedule 

IOORE ·11 perform the Scope of Work listed above in accordance the following schedule: 

m ooreeng ine-ering inc.com 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 6 of 14 
 

 
 

Page 4 
City of Mandan 
August 29, 2019 

otice to Proceed - September 3, 2019 
• Topographic Survey of p-oject areas to be completed by September 30, 2019 

Fee 

• Comple e draft assessmern district map by September 30, 2019 
Preliminary Design completed by No,,ember 15, 2019 
Public input meeting(s) to be held in No,,ember, 2019 

IOORE will perform the tasks specified in 1he Scope of Work above for the following: 

Studies & Reports - Estimated to be m.5£5 
Preliminary Design Services (30% Design) - Estinated lo be IDJl3Q 

Total fees or this agreement is estimated o be $150 395 00 

Attachmerit D includes a full listing of all identified tasks and budgeted hours for each task and is an integral 
part of this agreement If a difference arises between the list above and the full list, the nformalion in 
attachment D ·11 govern. 

MOORE will perfoon the tasks specified in 1he Scope of Work above on a Category Billing Rate basis using the 
actual hours worked times the appropiate Ca egory Billing Rate pk.is the actual direct expenses incurred 
(times a multi~ er of 1.1 5) . Category Bi ng Rates and expense costs are valid thrCJLql the md of the current 
year. On January 1 n each subsequent year, Categary Bi ing ,Rates and reimbursable expenses may be 
ad;..ls!ed to mee market conditions. If billed to Owrer, invoices wi be submitted monthly based on the hours 
of work completed for the Hourly tasks. 

Standard T emis and Conditions 

Ollr services wi ll be provided in accordance with lhe ATTACHMENT 2 "Slandard T eims and Canmtions lor 
Pro.fessional Services,' which are integral to tlis proposa . 

Closi ng 

Should you find tlis Proposal acceptable, please MJe an authorized representative of the City of Mandan sign 
the Acceptance portion of this letter belON and return one (1) fully executed copy of this Proposal o me. 
R~t of a ft.ty eo:ecuted copy of this Proposal · 11 seive as our Agreement and our otice to Proceed. 

We app-edate the opportunity to sutmit tlis Proposal to the City of Mandan and we look !award to working 
with you on ttis Project . Should you MJe any questions or need additional informa • on, please contact me by 
phone at 701.751.8300 or by email at jklabunde@mooreenaineeringinc.com. 

Sincerely, 

Jerod Klabunde, PE 
Serior Project Manager 

Enclosures: As no ed 

Kyle J. Meyer, PE 
Nor1h Dakota Regional Manager 

m ooreeng ine-ering inc.com 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 7 of 14 
 

 

Page5 
City of Mandan 
August 29, 2019 

Acceptance fa.- the City of Mandan 

I hereby authorize Moore Engineering, Inc. to proceed with the work described above. 

SignaiJJe: 

ame: Timothy Helbling 

Trtle: Ma r 

Date: 

Address to.- Giving otices: 

mooreeng ine-ering inc.com 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 8 of 14 
 

 

MOORE ENGINEERING, INC. 
2019 BILLING SCHEDULE 

Effective January 1, 2019 

NOTE: Rates contained in this Billing Schedu le are valid urntil December 31, 2019. After December 31, 2019, 
Hourly Billing Rates wm be escalated annua ly and dire ct expenses may be adjusted to meet market conditions. 

Billing Rate 
Description Per Hour 

1 Principal $200.00 
2 Senior Project Manager $200.00 
3 Senior Professional Engineer $195.00 
6 Project Manager $190.00 
7 Professional Engineer 111 $185.00 
8 Professional Engineer I $170 .00 

11 Pro ject Engineer $155 .00 
12 Senior Construction Engineer/Specialist $160.00 
13 Constru ction Engineer/Specialist II $150 .00 
14 Constru ction Enciineer/Specialist I $140 .00 
15 Graduate Engineer $140 .00 
16 Senior Engineering Designer $155 .00 
17 Engineering Designer II $140 .00 
18 Enoineering Designer I $135 .00 
21 Project Manager Assistant $135 .00 
22 Enoineerino Technician Ill $125.00 
23 Engineering Technician II $115.00 
24 Enoineerino Technician I $1 05.00 
25 Drone Operator $160 .00 
26 CADD Technician Ill $130.00 
27 CADD Technician II $125.00 
28 CADD Technician I $120 .00 
31 GIS Manager $170 .00 
36 GIS Technician Ill $130.00 
37 GIS Technician II $125 .00 
38 GIS Technician I $120 .00 
39 Senior Land Survevor $175 .00 
40 Land Survevor $160.00 
41 Survey Manager $145.00 
42 Survev Crew Chief II $140.0D 
43 Survey Crew Chief I $13D .OD 
44 Sur.•ey Technician Ill $105.0D 
45 Survey Technician II $95.00 
46 Sur.•ev Technician I $90.00 
48 Administrat ive Assistant $90 .00 
58 Market ino Coordinator $100.00 
59 Marketing Assistant $85.00 

Travel Expenses Project Mileage $0.65 per mile 
Survey Supplies Iron p·ns $1.25 each 

Fence Posts $5.00 each 
Motorized Offroad Vehicles $75.00 per day 

Miscellaneous Project Expenses Cost • 1.15 
Sub Co nsultants Cost' 1.1 5 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 9 of 14 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
STA NDARD TERMS AND CONDIT IONS FOR PROFESSIONA L SERVICES 

1. Gene ral 

1.1 The following Soandard T e,rms and Conditions. together 
'With ttie aitac.hed Proposal. con.-st iw tes the Agreement lbelwee n 
Moore Engineering. line. (h ereinafter: r-e-fe rred to as 
"E GI NEER') and the person or em ·ry to whom lhe P:,oposal is 
addressed (herein 31te r referred to as "OWNER") for lhe 
performance of professional and related s ervices . If OWNER 
requests !hat ENG i EER begrn work p rior to OW NER's 
exeou¢ion o"' th (S Agreem ent and ENGINE ER performs work in 
accordance with this Agreem e,nt, then this Agreement shall 
constitu te lbe agreem e,n betwee11 OWNER and ENGINEER 
even i OWNER its to return an executed counterpart of thl6 
Ag reem ent to E GI NEER. 

1.2 o provisio n of t'.h is Agreeme.nl, inc luding without 
limitat ion these Standard Terms and C ondi~ons, may be 
waived, alte.red, or m od'ified in any m an ner. unless the sam e 
snoll be set footh in wri ·n g and s igned by a duly authorized' age r>t 
of EN GINEER. OWNER may use its standard business forms 
(such a:s ptuchase orders ) to ad min ist er a.ny agreement 
between, ENGINEER and OWNER. bul use of such forms sh all 
be for convenience i;>urposes only, and any typed provision1 in 
confl'.ict with the te.rms of these Standard Tenns a nd Con d!tioos 
or EN G I EER's Proposa l and a'I I pre-printed terms and 
cond itions contained in or on such foJms. sh all be deemed 
stric ken and nu lE and void _ 

1.3 OW ER ackn owle dges and agrees tha.t E GINEER's 
services a re on beh alf of and fur the excl usive use of OWNER 
and shaU con sist s oiefy of those seM ce.s described in 
E GINEER's scope of se rvices an<J shall not be based upon 
sci:ent ific or: technical tests or procedures beyond the scope 
described ther e in ,. o r the time and budget ary constraints 
imposed by OW ER. OWNER fur1her acknowledges and 
a.gree-s. tha· E G[ EER's services irequi:re decisions that are n ot 
always based upon pur e s cience. but also include judgmental 
consideration s~ 

2 . Standards of Performance 

2.1 The stand:a rd o'f care for a lE pro essional einginee.ring· and 
related services un der Ulis Agreem e.n s h.aU lbe the care and s.k. iU 
ord inarily used by m embers o the same pro e:-ss ion :Prn.cticin:g 
under s im ila r circum stanc es at O:le same time and in the sam e 
loca lity. E GINEER m akes no w a!T'a.nti:es , expres.sed or implie cl, 
under Ul.is Ag reem ent o r oilheil"Wiise , in connection with any 
services performed or furnished by the ENGINEER. 

2.2 ENGINEER sihall perform the professional en g ineering 
and , e lated s·ervices. under th is Agreement as expeditious ly a-s 
is co11sisten· with -such pr·ofesstonal skill an d care and the orderliy 
progress of the project. 

2.3 Subject to the standar d: of ca re se forth i n Paragraph 2.1 , 
E GINEE R and its Consultants m ay use ,o r rely upon design 
elem ents in information ordinarily or cus omarily fu rTUshe<l b y 
others, inc lu d]ng. but ino~ r.imited to, speciahy contractors. 
manufacturers. 'S'Uppliers. and pub l~s hers o te-ch.nica'.1 -standards. 

2.4 ENGINEER s hal l rewew laws, rul!es , regulations, 
ordinances , codes. and OW ER-man dated standards polioi e:s, 
proced ures an d rnslruction s provi c!ed to the E GINEER in 
lNrit:ing a.nd tha~ are in effect as ,of the d.ate- ,of ibis. Agreement 
appli.cabl!e o the ENGIN EE R's pe,rformance services unde, this 

Agreem ent subject to-the stan dard ,of care sea forth in Paragraph1 
2.1 and to the extec11 compl.iance i6 oo nsiis1ent with professional 
pract ice , equire.ments. ENGINEE R s;hall respon.d in the design 
of the Projec to req uirements lmposed by government.al 
au thorities havi11g jun sdi<>tio11 over the Project. C hanges lo any 
laws , rules , regu lations, ordf.nances, codes. O'WNER-mand.aUed 
standards. polk ies procedures and in strucfilons or requfrem ents 
of -governm entaE au thoriti:es after the e·ffec6ve date o th(s 
Agreem ent m ay be the basis fo r m odffications to OWNER's 
responsi bi lities or to-EN Gi EER's scope of services , tim es of 
performance, and /or compensati011 . If, during, ENGi EER's 
rev r.ew of ap.pticab1e l'.aws. ru les. regul ations. ordinance-s and 
codes , and OW ER-mandated standards. E GINEER 
ide:ntf:fie:s any conffict between such laws, rules. regula ·on.s , 
ord inances and coc!es, and OWNER-mandated s tan dards, 
E GINEER sha ll notify OWNER of the nature and impact of 
such co:nftic OWNER agrees to cooperate and work wnh 
E G1NEER in1 an effort to re.solve a ny S!Uch conftic 

2.5 E GINEER sha ll not be req uired to sig;n any docum ent 
or certifica.tion . no m atte r by whom requested. that w ould 1~ uh 
in :EN G[NEER h.aving to certify, guarantee or warrant the 
existenc e of c ondition s whose existe11ce EN GI EER cannot 
a~cBrlain,, o r that extends ENGINE ER 's dutie s , respons ibilities 
or l iabi lity bey011d that contem plated by this Agreem ent. In lhe 
eve11 that ENGmN E.ER executes any s u.ch docum ent o r 
certificale, OWNER aakn.owJedges ihat suoh ex.ecution b y 
E GENEER shall no t opera~e as a waiver ,of this p rov:ision. but 
sha11 lbe con sidered a m istake of fact o r law_ OW ER ag ree:s not 
to make resoluti011 ,or an y d'.ispu e wim, EN GINEER or paym ent 
of any amount due fo ENG i EER in any way cont inge.nti upon 
E GINEER's s ig rung any sue t> oertilication. 

3 . Contingency 

3.1 OW NER and E GI NEER aC!knowJedge and agree that 
certain increased costs and changes maybe requ ired as a ires.u h 
in wh ole o·r part of impr:ecis ion.. incompl1.eieness , errors, 
omis:sion.s , am big uitie:s •or incon sis encies in m e drawings, 
specificalions and other dooome11ts fu m ished by ENGINEE R or 
contai:ned within other professi onal services performed or 
fu rnished by EN Gi EER under thi:s Agreem ent and. lherefore, 
the fin.al construclion e:ost of th€ Project m ay exceed the 
OWNER' s estimated constructtion cost. Accordrngly , OWNER 
agrees to set asr.de a reserve in the am oun of 3 percent of the 
estimated construction cos · as a co.nting eincy to be used .a.s 
required to· pay or -stJch inoreased cosis and c h..an g e:s resultin g, 
from the imprecision , incompleteness, e rrors. -omis sions , 
ambiguities ,or incon-sis~encie.s in the drawings. specificat io n.-s 
and ome, docum ents furrushed by EN Gl EER or contarned: 
within ofue.r prof es:sionaK se-.rvice:s performed ,o r R.lmished' lby 
E GIN EE R. T he c 0111ingency pe,centage listed above sh ould 
be rncluded as a portion of the OWNER's over a'l l construction 
contfngen.cy established ~.o address unfor eseen events o r 
circum stances that arise d'urin g, oon stn.Jction_ 

3.2 A ny respons ibil'ity of EN G I EER for the costs o C over ed: 
Change On::l:eIS in excess of such :Percentage wm be detemiined 
011 the basis of app licable con lractuol obffgations an d 
professional l iabi lity s tandard s. For purposes of th is paragrapt,, 
the cos of Cover ed Change Orders wi lll ,iot inc luc!,e any costs 
tha OWNER wou ld h,ave incurred i the Covered Change Order 
wort had beein inc1uded ori·g inalty without any imprecision, 
incompl1.eteness , error. om is:si on, amb.igu ity, -or inc:o.nststency in1 
the Contrn.ct Documents or i11 th€ Qpjnio:n o Pr•obab1e 

Page 1 of 5 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 10 of 14 
 

 
 

Construction Cost and 'Nithou~ any o:zhe:r em>r or omission of 
E GINEER rela ted thereto_ Nothi ng in th is. prov ision c reates a 
presum plior, tha or c ltanges t ile professiional liatxl fty standa cd 
fa r determin ing if. ENGIN EER is Dable for the 0051 o Covered 
Change Orders in exoes-s of me percentage of Construct ion 
Cost -stat.ed above or tor a.ny other Change Ord.er. Wherever 
used in lh:is paragraph<, the term E GI NEER includes 
Engir,eer's officers. d irectors, members, partners, ~ ents. 
employees, and Con-su ltant s. 

3.3 OW ER further agrees not to· sue or m ake any c la im by 
way o• dir ec or third-party aotiooi agains EN GINEER for lhe 
increased costs within the continge-.ncy !because o.i: su:ch 
changes or because of any claim s m ade by the Contractor 
relaling, to such changes. 

4 . Owner s Responsibilities 

4 .1 OW ER -s'.haU m ake decisions and carry out iis other 
respcmsJbilities in a timely m a.n ner and sha ll bear aU costs 
incident there to so a-s not to unreasonably delay or interfere with 
the senmces of ENGINEER. 

4 .2 r::J,/11 ER shal l be <~ ponslble for. and E Gl EER may 
rety upon, the ac:cu racy and comp,1~ ness of al requirem en ts, 
p.rogram.-s, in.-stnJdl.ionrs., ireports, d.aia, and ,ofuer infonna1iicm 
fumilShed by cr>JY NER kl ENGi EER pursuant to lh:is Agreemen t 
E GI EER may use such requirements, repor.s,, data, "-I1d 
information in performin.g· •or fuml sh.ing sen,,jc:e,s. unde:r mis 
Agreement. Not hing in this paragraph sh all be cons1rued to 
requ ire ENGINEER to affirma.lively def.ermine the accuracy of 
information thai is prepared for OWNER by other licensed 
professionals (includir,g,, but r,ot timitec! to,. land surveyors, 
g.eotechnicaE engi:nee-rs, accoun tants, i n.-su rance and surety 
professionals, and attorneys) who are r,ot engaged di:rectl:y by 
E GI EER. 

4 .3 OW ER sh all prowde r ENGi EER's r igltt to en ter lhe 
property oYffled by OW ER ar,d/or ot lte,s in order fo r 
E GINEER to ful fi ll its seNioes. 

4 .4 OW ER shall p rompt ly report to E GINEER a.ny 
d.efi:ciencies or suspected defici:encies in EN GI EER'·s work or 
service-s of which OWNER becomes aware so that E GINEER 
may ta k.e measures to· m i:nim iize the c o.ns.eque.ne:es ,of su:ch 
deficiencies. Upon, notice kl E GI NEER and by mutual 
agreem en beoween, me paime-s, ENGINEER sliall correct suc h 
deficiencies wiffl out additional compensation except to lhe 
extent such actfon is a.dn.'buab1e ID deficiencies in. OW ER
fu m.ished information. 

5 . E.nv ironmenta.l Condit ions. 

5.1 OW ER shall provide (or cause the Site owner to 
prov ide) ENGINEER with the iden1ity and location of all 
su bsurl'ace facaities and obslI\Jctions or, tile Site. OW NER 
agrees to waive any cla ims agains ENGi EER and to 
indem nify, c!e tend o.nd hDlc! EN Gi EER harmless from "-"Y 
claim s. demands or causes of action for damag es to subsurface 
facifftiies -or obstructions that are no · accura tely ide.n -:fi:ed or 
located by OW ER or oah ers. OWN ER assumes respon,s ibility 
fa r air, subsu:rface and/or grou n.d pollution and envi ronmental 
impai:rment from toxic substa.nce-s. or hazardous. materialls 
exisiing at the Site and sh all indemnify a.nd defend ENGINEER 
from any claims, demands and causes of action ·of third parties 
related there :o, exoep w'tiere -such c laims, dem and s.and: cau ses 
of acti on are caused by Ulie sole- negtigence or willful m isconduct 
of E GI NEER it being the intentioo, o ' lhe OWNER to assum e 

a.ny liability alleged to h.ave resulted from ENGIN EER's join, or 
con.current neg1igenoe . 

6 . Owners hip and Use o f Documents 

6.1 Al l or\g inal repe>rts. plans, specifications , field data and: 
other dOcurne11ts. wh.ethe-.r in writte.n or e lectronic format 
prepared by ENGIN EER or ENGi EER's cor,sulta.nls are 
ins~ruments of pro~ s[onal service- ('he-reinafl:er co llectively 
referred to as 'Documen ts") and ENGi EE.R sha ll retain lhe 
owne,ship and property interest therein (including 1he copyright 
a.nd the right of "'use at the discreoon o the EN GI EER) 
whether or not the Projec is. compJeted:. 

6.2 C opies of Documents that m ay be relied upon by 
OWNER are lim ited to lhe printed copies (also known as ltafll 
copies) that are s igned and/or se ed by ENG IN EER or 
E GINEER's consuliants. Files in eieclron ic media fc,rmat of 
text, d.aia, graphics or of other iypes that are fu.m.islted by 
E GINEER or EN GI EE R's consulta.nts to OWNE R are only for 
the convenience of OWN ER. If there i s a discrepancy between1 
the electronic files and the hard c opi.es , lhe hard copie s govern. 
Any oonclusi.on or informatio l'll obtained or de.rived from su.chi 
electronic fi les wilE be a t tlie user's sole ri sk_ 

6.3 Because data stored in electronic med'ia format can1 
de eriorate or be modified inad'vertenil:y or ,otherwise 'M1!hout 
au thoriizalion of the data's creator, OW ER ag ree:s that ii will 
perform acceptance tests or procedures with.in 60 days after 
receipt of such data. after which OWNER sliall be deemed to 
h.ave accepted the data thus tran.sfe-.rred. A ny errors detected 
within lhe 60-day acceptance period will be corrected by 
E GIN EER at no cost kl OW ER. owever, ENGINEER shalll 
no· be re:sponsib lle to m ain tain documen ts stored' in elee1lmntc 
media formal after acoepta.nee by OW NER. 

6.4 W h-en transmitting documents in electro:nrc medra or 
d1gnal formal, ENGIN EER males no re f)l"esentations as to long, 
term compati bility, u-sabiJ ityor readatxlity of dooum e.nls resu'.ltin:g, 
from the use of software epprrcatio.n packages , operat ing, 
sys ems o:r compute r h.airdwa.re- c:F.rff-ering from ih os.e used' lby 
E GINEER for th is Project. 

6.5 OW NER may mak.e and retain copies ,of Document s for 
information and ire-ference in conn.ecticm with u,s e of the
Documenls 001 lhe Project by OWNER. ENG i EER grant 
OWNER a limitE<I license to use the Docum ent on the Project 
subject to reoeip by E Gl EER o ful l paym ent due and ,owir1g, 
for aU services re(ailing lo preparation o the Docum ents,. Su.ch 
lim i ed: l'icense sha:11 no create a.ny rights in lh ird parties. Sooh1 
Documen~ are not inten.ded or represented to be su itable for 
reuse by OW ER or:- other s on extein-siions of ih e Proje ct or on 
a.ny other project Any such reu.se or m odffication without writleni 
verificatiooi or adaptation by ENGi EER will be a l the us er's sDle 
risk. OWNER shall. to the fullest en ent permitted by law, 
indemnify. defend, an c! ho le! ENGi EER, its o · cers, directors, 
em ployees, partne,rs. agents and Con-su'lta.nits. harmless from 
and against any and all ctaim s. suits, j udgmen ts. liabilirtie:s, 
d.am ages. cos!s. i3.Ild expen,ses ,(including, but not l im i ed to, 
reaso.nable attorneys' fees and def e:ns.e costs) a ri sing or 
a11egedty arising from out ot any unau thoriz:ed reuse or 
modifica tion of sa id Documents by OWNER or any person or 
en ·ry for whom OWNER is legally l iat>le without the writter> 
aulhori=lion of ENG I NEER. 

6.6 In the even OWN ER so,bsequently reproduces or 
otherwise uses ENGlNEER' s Docume,nts.·o.r creales a derivative 
wort based' upon the Docum ents , OWNER sha[J, wllere 

Page2 of 5 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 11 of 14 
 

 
 

permitted ,or re,qu ired by law. rem ove ,or completely obtiterate m e 
original profe.ssiDnal seals , trad:ema.rts , logos. and other 
indications on said Documents of ihe ideniity of E GINEER , its 
employees and cons'll ltants. 

6. 7 Und.er no· circumsdanoe-s. shaU d.ellve:ry ot the efecironic 
fi les for use by OW NER be deemed a sale by E GINEER , and 
E GINEER m a'ke,s no warrantie,s, eioher expressed or implied, 
of merchantability an.cl f.itn.e-ss. for any particur.ar pu rpo:s·e. h11 no 
evelll sh.aa EN Gi EER be ~able for any loss ,of profi t or any 
con.-sequentiaE damages as a resu lt o OW E R's. u-s·e or ireuse ,of 
the e lecU'Onic tiles .. 

7, Conlidentiality 

7 .1 -Confi:dentia.1 !information" means all te chnical. economic, 
financial, pricing1, m arketing, or other information mat has not 
been :P ublt5 hed an dfor is not otherwise avail.able to members -of 
the public and includes~ without fimitaiion, trade secrets, 
proprietary infmma.tion, customer lists., scientific, tech.nical and 
busin:es.s swd'.ie:s.. a nalyses, processes. m ethods, procedures. 
polici:es and information_ 

7 .2 tn ihe event iha! e itheT party c!isoloses Collfidentia l 
tn formation to the o.!he,r party in conine-ction wtt'h this contract 
(exclud[ng E GINEER's WDrk f>rod uct !hal is deliv ered to 
OW ER or others here<Under), the party receiving suc h 
ConfidM tial In formation agrees to hold as coofidential and to not 
dlsclo-se to otbe-rs the Confidentia l In rmation for a period o'f ten 
(10) year s from the d'ate o d1sclosure. These restriclions s'hall 
no, apply to information !ha! ( ii !he parties h.ad in !heir 
posse-s:sio.n prior to diso]osure-; ( ii) be-comes pub 1ic kriowf.edge
!h fOUgh no fault of the reoeiving party; ( iii) the receivi11g party 
lawfully acqµires from a thrnl party n.ot under an ,obijga1ion of 
confidentiality to the disc!los:ing party; ,(iv) '5 [ndepende.nil¥ 
developed by the receiving, ?"rty; or (v ) is required lo be 
dlsclosed by law or court o rd'er. 

7.3 OW ER agrees that ENGINEER may use and publlsh 
OW ER's name and a ge ne ral desoription o the S e;.rvioes 
prov ided to OWNER in describin.g ENGINEER's experie nce and 
qua lifications to other ctie11ts and: pote.ntial o1 ie-nts . 

8 , Work Pro duct 

8.1 'VVor:k Product• conisists of a□ re-ports., notes. laboratory 
test da;., and o ther infonnatioo J>repared by EN GI EER for 
de livery to OW ER OW ER s'ha ll have !he right to make and 
retain copies and use a□W,o:rk Product; provocled, however, such 
use shall be 6m ited to !he particular Site and projec for whic h 
!he WDrk P roduct is prov ided. 

B.2 OW ER may release !he WDrk Product to tlurd par:ties 31 
ios sole ri sk and discretion; provid ed. however, ENGINEER s:hall 
no~ be liable for any c laim s ,or da mages resulting, from or 
con.nect.e dwi't!h such release or any third pa.ttys us.e o-ithe Work 
Product, and OWNER s'hall indemnify. defend alld hold 
E GJNEER harmless from any and all s uch cla ims o r damages. 

9. Billing and Payment 

9.1 tn110ioe,s shall be submi ed m onthly by ENGINEER. are 
cfue upon pre:seJTtation~ and: sh a11 be cons idered past due i not 
?'lid with1n 30 days ot the invoice date. If paymen t is not 
received by ENGi EER witrnn 45 days of the in110ioe date, 
OW ER s:hall pay as intiere,st "" additional charge ,of one 
perceJ1 t ( I .0%) or !he maximum aaowable by law. wh1chever '5 
lower, of the past d ue amount pe r montll. Paym e nt 'thereafter 

shall firs be app[Jed to acorued mteresl and then o me unpwd: 
principal. 

9.2 If OW ER objects lo any portion of an invoice. OW ER 
sha- 1 so notify E G[ EER [n w riling wi!h[n 10 days o reoeip of 
the inwice. OW NER s:ha ll ideJ1tify the specific cau se o the 
d'.isag;reeme nt and sh.aU pay when due that portion o the invoi:ce 
no ind ispute. Interest as st.a ed above s'ha ll be ?'li d by OWNER 
oo al l disputied invoiced amounts resolved in ENGINEER's favor 
and un paid for more th.an 45 days after date- o submission. 

9.3 l,n the event legal action is neces:sary to enforce the
paym e nt provis ions of thiis Agreeme:n· the p:re-vai li:ng party shall 
be awa.rded its reasonabte a ttorney fees , a nd cos5 and 
e~ e nses incurred . If both parties reoeWe- judgm e nt in aniy dolla r 
amount, ihe court will de-tennine th e prev ailing party, taking into 
c:on"Slid'e.ratio n Ule m erits •of the c laims asserted by each party, 
the amoun of the judgrne11~ reee-.ived by each party. a nd the 
relative equftfes lbetwe-en the- parties~ 

9.4 If OWNER fa~s to make paymen ts whe.n d ue or olherv,ise 
is in breach of lhis Ag,eem e.n E GINEER may s uspend 
perfo nnance- of s·ervices upon se-v e,n (7} days' noijoe to 
OWNER . ENGINEER sha ll have no tiability whatsoever to 
OWNER for any costs or damages as a resu'tt •of such 
suspension caused by any Dreach ,of this Ag reem e nt lby 
OWNER . 

9.5 Real Estate lmprovem eJ1ts: If the se1Vices provided: 
under thtS Ag;reeme-nt resu'lt in or coulld 1ead o improvement to 
rea l estate , EN GINEER , eserves the right to fi:l e a construction 
li:en against the- propertylreal e.stale on whlch 'these- services are 
being provided for OWNER's fa ilu,e to make paymem for 
services. 

9.6 lf and' to lhe extent the 5me in'itia lty established by th is 
Ag, eem ent for completion of ENG IN EER's services is exceeded 
or extended through no fault of ENGi EER, compens.alion for 
any services. ire ndered d uring, the addiitio:nal pe riod of tim e s::hall 
be computed' in1 aoco rd:ance wi"'th the- additiona1 se-Mce.s. 
provision ,of ttris Agreement, or, in the a bse-.noe theceo . on the
bas;s o ENGINEER's th,en-curTent standard hourly b1lling rates, 
plus ire imburs.abte expenses at a multipl'.ier ,of 1. 15 times the 
actuall expense incu 1Ted by ENGi EER. its employees and: 
c:ons1ultants, in the interest o the Proj:ect. 

9. 7 Paym e nts Upon T e.rm i:nationi. 

9. 7 .1 rni the eve nt -of any termination unde r ihe terms of tlh~s 
Agreement, ENGINEER will be entitled to invoioe OW, ER for 
all s.er:vices peifonned or furnished and all expe.nses incurred: 
ih roug'.h me effective- dat e- o te-.nninallon. 

9. 7.2 l'n tile event o termjnalio n by ENGIN EER for oa use. in, 
addition to invoici11g tor those item s identified i:n paragraph 
9. 7 .1. above, EN Gi EER sha:11 be entitled to [n110ioe OW ER 
and sh I be pa:id a ire-a-sonable- amount or seM ce,s and 
expeinses directly attributable to tenn jnation, both before and 
afte r the effective date of te nni:nation. such as reassignme nt 
of personnel , costs ofterminating 00J1iraclswiih EN Gi EER's 
consu lta..n ts. and other related cliose-out costs. 

10, Insurance 

I 0.1 During the term of tbis Ag reem ent , ENGi E ER shalll 
maf.ntain no less Ulan the follio'Mn g ins.urance cove-ra.,g.es.: 

Page3 of 5 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 12 of 14 
 

 
 

1 D.1. 1 Worle rs' Compensation Insuran ce- - sb tutay 
amount 

10.1-2 Em ploy e-.r's Lio.l>i lily Insurance - S100,000 each 
accident. $500.000 di:se-ase po licy lim,t , S 100,000 
d[sease each emplioyee 

10. ·1.3 Comm ercia l Ge,ieral !Liab ility Insur ance - $1 ,000,000 
per occu1Ten ce I S1.000 ,000 agg re-gate 

10.1.4 Automobile Lio.M itty tn,stJm.nce 
combin eel single lim i 

$1 ,000,000 

10.1.5 Professional Li,abillty Insurance - $1 ,000,000 per 
cla im I $1 ,000,000 aggregate 

10.2 At any tim e. OWNER m ay request thal EN Gi EER, at 
OW ER"s sol e- expense. :pr ovide additional insurance ooverage 
or tnore.as.ed L'imits th.at are m ore pro~_ective than those 
malnU ined by ENGIN EER. 

11. A lloc,afion of R is ks ; L im itat ior, of Remedie5 

11.1 Lt is inten ded by the parties to ti>is Agreem e.n! that 
E GINEER"s services in connection with the Proj:ect sha lll not 
subject ENGINEER 's individual employees, officers .• or directors 
to any personaE l!egal eJGPosure r the risks assoCf,aled with thiis 
Pm jec Ther efore , OWNER ogrees ti>at as OW ER's s ole and 
exc lusive remedy. any c laim , dem and ,or suit arising out ,of 
ENGINEE R's seN ioes in conneciion with the Project sna□ be 
d1rected and/or asserted only against E GINEER and not 
ogain sl any o f E GINEER's ind ividua l em ployees , officers , o r 
d1red .ors . 

11.2 tn recognition ,of the rerauve risks and benefits of the 
Pm jec to botn OW ER and E GINEER. OW NER agrees. to 
the ru□est extent permitted by law an d notwilhslandlng ar,y otner 
prov ision in ti>is Agreement , tnat any tiabaity created by o r 
arisi ng o-ui o this Ag reement on the part of ENGINEER to 
OW ER and any perso.n •or entity claiming by, th,,rugh or under 
OW ER, for any ar,d al l cla;ms , l ial>iliti.es , losses, costs, 
d.am ages. a any natl.Ire whalsoevN , or claims expenses from 
any cause -or cause-s (i:nclludi:ng without lim ilation any attorneys· 
fees under this Agreement). shall be fimlt<ed to the lesser of 
S100,000 or ti>e tom l am oun i ,of compensation received b y 
E GINEE R hereunder. 

11.3 At locationis ,of r isl s and lim itations of rem edies in, thi6 
Agreem ent are !business understan dJngs betw een the parties 
and shaU apply to all the d iffe rent ilteories of recovery, includin g,, 
without limitation.. b.reach of contract ·or warranty (expressed or 
implied ), tort (lnclud lng, witnout limltatio.n. negl igence ). stric or 
statutory L'iab□ iry. •OT any other cause ,of action.. These lim itJit ions 
of remedie-s. wi'J I no app ly to any losses or damages that have 
Deen found by a trier o fact to· h.ave been causecl lby 
E GINEER"s gross negl igence or wi llful or wan toni m iiscondu:ct . 
The parties agree that the Owner wm noi seek darnag:es in 
excess ,of the contractuaUy agreed' l im imtions through sru its with 
other parties ..t>o may jo ln ENGINEER a.s a th ird -party 
defundant. 

11.4 Notwi1hstandJng any oUle:r provis ion in ihi s Agreement , 
nefther E GINEER oor OW NER shell be tiable to the other party 
fo r any special. incide.nral. indirect •OT consequential damag es 
'Whatsoever arising o:ut ot. res'U l:ting from. or in any way re lated 
to the Project or performance of th;s Agreeme,iL 

12. Certifi cate o f Merit 
12.1 OW ER s h<!U mal<.e no claim for professional negllgence, 
either directly or in a tih irdepa.rty clafm . ogains ENGi EER 
un le ss OW ER nas fi:rsl proviic!ed ENGINEE R with 11 wri en, 
certification executed by an independent d.esiigin p rofession.al 
curre,i~y practicin g, in tne same d1scip~ne as EN G[ EER and: 
licensed in the state in which the Project is located. Th i.s 
certification sham: (i) contain the name and license number o the
cerufier; (ii) specify each and every act ,or ,omiss:ion ti>at the 
certifier c o.n ends C-s a violation of lhe stand.a rd o care expected 
of a d:esign professional performin,g, professional seJVi:oes under 
sim ilar circum stances in the same location: and (iiii) state ini 
compl:eCe deu iE the ba.s is for the certffier's opin ion ih.a t each such 
act or omission constitutes such a vio lation . Th is certii:ca~e stiall 
be provid'ed to ENGIN EER not less tnan 30 c!.ays ~ or to the 
prese.nta· ·on of any ct.aim or the institution of any media ·on, 
arbidrallion, or jud ic ia l proceeding. 

13. lntegralio r,, Severa bility and Survival 

13.1 This Agreemen comprises the flr,al and oompfete 
ogre-em e,it between OWNER and ENGIN EER. It sl.lpersedes al/I 
prior or contempo:ra.neous communications. rep;rese11tat ion:s or 
agi-eements. whether oral or 'Mitten , retailing to- the subject 
ma r of th is Ag reem ent. Am endments lo this Agreeme nt s:tialll 
no be bind'ing, unless made in wliti:ng a.nd signed by both 
OWNER and ENGINE ER. Any p, ovision o · this Agreement late r 
helcf to· be unenforceable for any ire.a.son sha ll be deem ed vold, 
and a□ remaining ?JOV11stons shaDI continue in fu ll force an d: 
effeci.. if the e:s.se.ntr.all provisi.ons o f th.is Agreement fo:r each party 
remaiin va ftd , binding , aru::I enforce-able. 

13.2 AU provisions o'f this Ag;reem ent re lated o assignment, 
ind:emnificationi, l im itation of remedie~ and Llmitations on1 
action s, ,o:r o erwise all.ocaling res:ponsibirity or ab□ify be i::w"ee11 
the parties. sha□ survive the comple ition o the services 
hereunder and the termin ation of thts Agreement and shaOI 
remaiin enfor ceabfle between the parties. 

14. As:S ignment 

14.1 Neither party o this Agreemen m ay assign. s ublet, or 
transfer any rignts or obl iga' ·ans under or interest (mclud·mg, 
wiffl.out limitation. moneys. tllat are due or m ay became due) ini 
th(s Agreem ent, or any claims, causes ·of action or righ.ts. against 
the other party a..tisin,g from ,or un der mis Agreemen or any 
proceeds from cla im s. a.risin,g· from or under this Agreement as 
security, collateraE or me source of pay ment for any notes or 
liabi1iities to the Con.tractor or any other third party:; or any oontrti.l 
of any cf.aim s or causes of action1 arising from or u·nde,r mis. 
Agreement without the writr..en conse:.n: of the oilier party,. except 
to· the exten th.at any assignment, sublelting~ or lrani-s.-fer is. 
mandated or restricted by law. Unless ,specifically stated o the 
conU-ary in any wmten consent to an assignment. n.o• assignment 
wilE ire,ease or di scharge the a:ssignor from any duty or 
responsib:i lity under th~s Agreement. This sec""on shaU not 
ho Yw--ev-er. apply to an;y subrogation righ~ of any ins-ure-r o" ejthe r 
party. The proviis ions ,of this. paragraph s h.a□ survive me 
compl:etion or termin ation ,of this Ag reement for any reason and: 
sha.11 remain enfo:rceable between the parties. 

14.2 Notwithstandin,g, tbe prov is1ons of Section 14.1 . a bove, or 
any ,other p rovision of lhis Agreement , ENGINEER may assign 
or otherwise trans er its rights and obligations und.er th its. 
Agreem ent to· any parent. s u'.bsidia.ry, or a - !Jated company of 
E GIN EER or to any pu rchaser of the bu:sir,ess ,of ENGINEER 
that ag rees to• assume the obligations ,of E GI EER und'.er th~s 
Agreem ent . 

Page4 of 5 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering for Mid-Town East 
Street Improvement District Project, SID 215 
Page 13 of 14 
 

15 . Suspension of Services 

15_ 1 lf the Proje<>t is suspended for more than 30 clays in 1he 
aggregate , E GIN EER sha~ be compensated far services 
performed and ch.aiges. incurred prior to suspe.nsio11 and, upon 
resumption , an equ itable adjustment in ee:s to accomm odate 
the resulting dem objl ization a.nd remobilization costs. [n 
addilion. there shall be an eqµ itab le adjustment in lhe P,aje<>t 
sched ule based on 1he delay eaused by the suspension _ If 1he 
Pirojec is suspended foe mo.re t!han 'QO days in the agg:rega .e. 
E GINEER m ay . a t its o pclion . te.rminate this Agreemenl !.lpon 
g'iving noijoe in writing to OW NER_ ff OW ER fails to m ake 
paym ents when due or otherwise is in breach of this Agreement . 
E GJNEER may s.uspencl performance o · services upon seven 
clays" prior written no- o OW ER_ ENGINEER sha;D nave no 
liability whatsoever to OWNER fo.r a.ny cos~ or damages as a 
result of such sus pension caus-eo by an y breach ,of this 
Agreem ent by OWNER 

16 . Force Majeure 

16_ I Neither pearty shall be 6able fo r any delay rn . or fa iru,e of. 
its pe.rfo.rma.nce of any ,of its ,obf.igalion s un der th is Agreement if 
such de:lay or failure is. caused lby events beyond the reas onable 
control of tile aF.eeted party. rncluding. but no: timited o. any 
acts of God, govemmentaJ embargoes, resfflctions., 
quarantines, slrfk. e:s., riots , wars or other military ac1lion. civil 
cfisorder. acts ,of terrori'S!.m. fi re-s , floods, vandali'S!.m. sab.otage or 
the acts of 1hird parties (a "Force Majeure Event")_ 

16-2 Upon c ompletion of 1he Force Majeu, e E11en, lhe pearty 
affeCled m us t as soon as reasonably [Practicable recommence 
the performance of its oblrgat ion-s t1nder th.is A greem ent. 

16_3 A Force Majeure Event does no~ relieve a party from 
liability for an1 oblrg ation. that arose lbe fo.re the oco1.u:rence of tba:t 
even nor does that event affect the ob.ligation to p.ay m oney in 
a i!.imeJy m anner that maw red p rior to the occurrence of that 
even t.. 

17. Ownersl>iJ> of Waste 

17_ 1 ·Pre-ExisOng W aste • is an,y hazardous or non-hazardou s 
wastes. su.'bstance,s. ,o.r mate.ria ts. existing on the Si e prior to the 
d..ate that the Servi:ce.s are f.n ftiated. 

17 -2 OW ER sliall be respons,ble to, the J>roper han dl in g,, 
sto.rag:e. transportation and/or d'isposaJ of t!he Pre-Existin,g 
Waste i:n acoordance with all applicable ed:eral . state and local 
laws and regu lation s_ OWNER shall provide appropriate 
d1sposal i clentification numbers. select Ille d isposal s ites(s} and 
sign an required m anifests , d isposal contracts and other 
doeum e.nlation necessary to a llow ENGINEER to complete 1he 
Se,rvic.es in a tim efy manner. OW ER acknowledges. that 
E GJNEER is performrng profess ional services for OW ER and 
that ENGINEER is not anc! sltarJ not be requi red to becom e an 
·owner." ·arranger," "ope.rato.r,.'" "•generator: o.r "tra.nspone r" -of 
Pre-Existing Waste which are or m ay be e.ncounter eo at or near 
the Site i:n connection with EN Gi EER's acovities under thiis 
Agreem ent. 

17_3 OW ER agrees to look solely to the d1sp osa l acility 
and/or t ransportat ion concern for any damages arirs. in g, from 
im proper tran sp ortation or disposal of the Pre-Existing Waste. 

18. Term ination 

18_ I This Agreem ent m ay be erminated l>y either party upcon 
30 days' written no1!ice in the event of substanti.al failure by the 
other party to perform in accord anc.e with lhe te rms hereof 
through n.o fau lt o the i,,rminalin g party_ 

19. Thind Party Beneficiaries 

19. 1 AU d u ·.es and respon sibili ·es unden a'ke11 pursuan to th i.s 
Agreem ent WI I be ior fhe sote a.nd exctusN e benefi of the 
OWNER and n.otfor the ben o -any other :party. o other pearty 
slta11 lta"" any claiim agarnst ENGINEER because ol 1his 
.Agreem ent or the peJformance o r lflonperfo rmance o · services. 
he reunder . othin g oonlrune<I in ffl is Agr eeme nt sha:11 c reate a 
contractual raJa1ion sh ip with or a cause o action mni favor o a 
th ird pearly aga in either OW NER or E GI NEER. 

20. Dispute Reso lution 

20_1 E GINEER and OW NER will a ttempt in goo cl faith to 
resolve through negotiation an,y diiSpu e. c la im , oouniter claim. o r 
controversy a risin,g out o o r re'lating to this Agreement (h ereafter 
colleclive ly referr-ed to as · m spute1 . If tl,e Dispute is not 
resolved by ihe -se nego:ti.attions, the parties agree to s ubmit any 
such u,nre•sotved Dispute to m ediation . Either party may 
comm ence mediat ion by p rovicfing the o ther party a wri" ·e ni 
requ:e-st fo r m ediation. setting forth the subject ,of the Dispute an d 
the rel'le f reque-sted. The parties willl cooperate with one a.no·ther 
in sel€'clin g a mediator. and in sched ufi ng the med iationi 
proceed ings. The parties wilE share equally in the costs ,of the 
mediator_ N either party may com i:nence a d vil action with 
respect to· the matte;rs submftt:ed io mediat ion u nfil l after e 
complieition o'f the initial m edi.aition session . or 4 5 days afte.r the 
d.aie of filin g the written request for mediation , whiich evet oc::curs 
first . t.teoia tion may continue a·ftet the comm encement ot a civil 
action , if the parties so desire. The provjsions of this paragraph1 
may be .en - reed lby any Court of com pet ent jurisd iction _ 

21. Limitations on Act ions 

2 1. 1 Cause.s of act.ion by either party agains the other party, 
h.owever denom inated. s'.halJ be ba.1Ted two years from Ute day 
E GIN EER's se,vioes ar e oarnpleted ar EN GINEER olhel'Mse 
ceases. providing the services. calle<I tor in this Agreement, 
whichev-er - rs:t occurs. 

22. Conlrollin g Law 
22_ I This Agreement is to be governecd by the laws an d: 
reg ulations of lhe sta te in which ilie project is locatecd, wf~ out 
reg am: to any choice ,of law principles that may -ot'herwlse have 
permitted the appGcation of the laws of any othe, j urisd iction_ 

23. lnterpn,tat ion 

23_ I T ile partie s exp ressly agree tha! thi s Agreem ent shall be 
construed neither against nor i n1 favor of either party. but s:.hall 
be con strued in a neutral m anner_ 

24 . Notices 

24. 1 A ny nod.ice required un der this Agreement wrl l be in. 
writing,. a clclr essed to the appropriate pea rty at its ad clr ess a.s 
l[s.ted in the Agreem e.nt and ,given personally , by reg is .ered or 
certified ma il pos prepaocl o r by a com mercia'l courie r service. 
All notices s.halJ be effective ll.lpon the dat e o receipt 

IEnd of Standard Tenns and Conditions for Professional Services 

Page5 of 5 



 

• \ 

r:\~ 
1 •• 

' \ .. 
~ 

--~----]·-----~~ 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To update commission on the Raw Water Intake project as 
well as request approval of ad for bids and State Water Commission grant acceptance.  
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: In coordination with City staff as well as refinery 
staff in the form of regular meetings over the last half of year, AE2S has completed the 
final design of the intake project. That is, the project that will include the intake structure, 
the electrical and mechanical equipment, including the pumps, and improvements to the 
Water Treatment site and the Refinery’s site needed to receive the water. Not included 
with this initial project is the transmission pipe from the new intake site to the Water 
Treatment Facility. Those plans are being finalized and will come before commission as a 
future item.  
 
AE2S staff is here to present some basic information on the project. Following the 
presentation, there are two items of business to attend to; 1) approval of the ad for bid and 
2) accept the State Water Commission grant.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:     

1) Advertisement for Bids 
2) State Water Commission grant award letter and agreement.   

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The State Water Commission has committed about $12.6M towards 
this project if we accept the grant presented today. That leaves about $8.8M to pay for 
locally given the current estimate based on design. The City has a memorandum of 
understanding with the refinery to split that local costs 50/50. The estimated $4.4M has 
been accounted for in our Finance Department’s previously presented 2020 budget 
through increases in utility bill rates.   
 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 29, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

Laith Hintz, PE, AE2S Project Manager 
SUBJECT: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant 

Acceptance 
  

 

  

New Business No. 5  

CITY 01' 
MANDAN 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 2 of 11 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  All items have been forwarded to our Attorney for review.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Ad for Bid and the acceptance of the State Water 
Commission grant.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  

1) I move to approve the ad for bid for the Raw Water Intake project.  
2) I move to accept the State Water Commission grant funds to share the cost of the 

project with the State Water Commission.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 3 of 11 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 00 1113 
ADVERT ISEMENT FOR BIOS 

MANDAN RAW WATE R INTAKE - PHASE I 
PUM PING STATION, CONTROL VAU LTS, AN O INTAKE STR UCTURE IMPROV EMENTS 

CITY OF MAN DAN, NORTH DAKOTA 

NOTICE IS HE EBY GIVEN, tha the City of Mand an, North Dakota, will receive sealed Bids or the 
com,truction of tile Mandan Raw Water In ake Phase 1- Pumping Station, Control Vaults, and Intake 
Structure lmpro ements and will be recei ed at Offi ce of the City Administrator, 205 2nd Ave NW, Mandan, 
North Dakota 58554 until 4:00pm local time on October 22., 201 9, at which time the Bids received wi I be 
publicly opened and read aloud at 4:1 5 PM in the City Commission Cllambers . 

Bids being mailed or defivered prior to October 22, 01 9 can be directed to: 
City dni"nistrator 
City of Mandan 
205 2"" Ave NW 
Mandan, ND 58554. 

Sepa rate Bids wi I be recei ed /or Contra ct No. 1 - Genera l Construction; Contrac No. 2 - Mechanica l 
Construction; Contract No . 3 - Ele ctrical Construction ; and Con tract 4 - Combined General, Mechanica'I, 
and Electrical Construct ion . Bids sha'II be on a lump sum basis fo r all Contracts. The Work comprised of 
Contract Nos 1, 2, 3, and 4 are genera lly described as follows: 

Contract No . 1 - GENER L CONSTRUCTION (LUMP SUM): Work generally consists of mobilization, 
bonding, insurance for a'II Project work shown on tile civil, process, arcll i ectural, struc ural drawings 
and as contained in he specifica ions, cons ru cting a new ·ntake structure, pump station, hree 
contro l aults , presedimentation basin improvements, and repu~posing of the existing intak e s ructure. 
Includes providing four (4) inta ke barrel screens and crlb structure, ·urnisll ing and ·nsta lfing intake 
lline, dewate,ring system, shoring system, install ing piles, lurnisll ing and installing Ii e (5) canned 
ertical turbine pumps, precas wall and roof sys em, construe ing below grad e concrete au s, 

furnishing and instaning equipmen for one (1) reha bmtated presedimentation basin, new chemical 
feed systems, yard piping, process piping, gates, alves, site grading, excavat ion, filling and 
backfilfing, erosion and sediment con rol, landscaping, access FOads, aggregate roadway, sidewalks , 
dri eways, temporary piping modifications, stormwa er piping modifica tions, coatings, equipment 
pads, fencing, piping and equipment demol" ion, and all re lated appurtenances. 

Contract No. 2 - MECHANICAL CONSTRUCTION (LUMP SUM): Work genera lly cons ists of 
mobilization, bonding, and insurance for all Project wo rk shown on the mechanical drawings and 
conta ined in the Di isions 22, 23 and specifications , including new ventilation equipment, ducts , 
!louvers , makeup air units , fans, plum'bing, fixtures, heaters, air-condition ing , ga uges, lhem1 ostats, 
pipe, fittings, alves, controls, drains, supports , ancllors, ents, and all re lated appurtenances . 

Contract No. 3 - ELECTRJC L CONSTRUCTION {LUMP SUM): Work genera lly consists o,f 
mol}ilization, bond ing, and insurance for all Projec work sllown on the electrical drawings and 
contained in the Division 26 specifications, including electrical labor, serv ice-entran ce equipment, 
secondary tem1ination/CT cabinet, grounding, trencll ing, ex cavation, cab les, cond uctors , wiring, 
disconnect swttches, ligll!"ng , lligllting control systems, condutts, raceways, ings , boxes , devices , 
motor starters , panelboa rds, dis ribution rans ormers , motor co ntro l centers, ariable frequency 
dri es, power moni oring modules , control panels, ,prog ram mable logic controllers , fiber and fiber 
junction !}oxes, instrumentation and contro l de ices, level sensors , pressure transmitters, float 
switches, door posi ion swi clles, lhem1ostats, and all related electrica'I, instrumen ation and control 
appurtenances as indicated . 

Ma ndan Raw Water Intake - Phase I 
Mandan, North Dakota 00 11 13 - 1 

ugust 2019 
Advertisement for Bicls 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 4 of 11 
 
 

 
 
 

Contract No. 4 - COMBINED CONSTRUC TION ( UMP SUM): Mobilization, bonding, and insuran ce 
for all genera'I construction , mecha nical constru e ion, and electrical construe ion as descri l;ed in 
Contracts No. 1 through 3. 

The !Issuing O ·, ce for the Bidding Documents is: d anced Engineering and Environmen al Services, Inc., 
1815 Schafer Street, Ste 301, Bismarck, NO 58501. Contact person for all bidding document interpretations 
and clari cations is Laith inlz, 701-221-0530 , laith .hintz@ae s.com. Prospective Bidders may examine 111e 
Bidding Documents at the Issuing O ice on Mondays 111 rough F,ridays be ,een the hours of 8:30 M and 
4:30 PM, and may obta in copies of the Bidding Documents from 111 e Issuing O i ce as described below . 
Bidd·ng Documents also may l;e examined a the following locations: Builders Exchanges in Grand Forks, 
Bismarck, Minot, and Fargo, NO; Rapid City and Sioux Falls, SD; and in Minneapolis , MN . 

Complete digital project Bidd"ng OoCLimentsare available at www E2S.com or www.questcdn.com. You 
may download the digttal plan documents ·or Fifty Dollars (SS0 .00) by inpu ·ng Quest project #6449169 on 
the website's Project Search page . P _ase contactQuestCON.com at 952-233-1632 or info@questcdn.com 
for assistance in iree membersh(p registration, downloading , and working with this digital project 
informa ·on. The Bidding Docu ments are ava~al>le in digttal POF form an CO by request i rom 111-e Issu ing 
Office fo r a NON-REFUNDABLE charge of Seventy-Fi e Dollars and No Cents ( 75.00) and available in 
the fom1 of prin ed plans and specifications for a NON-REFUNDABLE charge of Three Hundred Dollars and 
No Cents (5300.00) for each set requested. 

A pre-bid conference is tentatively scheduled for Octo ber 2, 2019 at 10:00 M lloca l time at the Mandan 
Water Trea men! Facility located a 1994 38 St, Man dan, ND 58554 . memorandum to all Plan Holders 
will be sen fomially establishing the nal date an d ime. ttendance at he pre-bid conference is highly 
encouraged but is no mandatory. 

Each bid must be accompan·ed by a sepa rate en elope containing the contracto~s license an d bid 
security . The bid secunily must be in a sum equal to five percent (5%) of the full amount of the bid and 
must be in th e form of a bidder's bond. A bidder's bon d mus be executed by 111 e bid der as principal and 
by a surety, conditioned thaf if the principa l's bid is accepted and 111e contrnc awarded to the principa'I, 
the principal, will1 in ten days a er notice of the award, sha ll execute a contract in accordance wi h he 
tern1s of he bid and the bid bond and any condi ion o-f 111e go erning body. A countersignature of a bid 
bond is not required under this section. II a successful bidder does no execute a contract within the en 
days allowed, the bidder's bond must be fortei ed to the govern ing body and the project awarded to the 
next lowest res ponsible bidder. 

II Bidd,ers must l;e licensed or the highest amount of their Bids, as pro ided by Section 43-07-12 of he 
Norll1 Da kota Century Code. 

Bids ha do not fu lly comply wi h requirements of NDCC 4-8-01.2-05 are considered defic·ent and will be 
resealed and returned to the bidder immediately. 

The City of Mandan reserves the right fo reject any an d all bids and rebid the project unn a sa isfactory 
bid is received. 

All Bids will be made on the bas is of cash payment ·or such work and materials. All Bidders are in tted to 
be present at 111e public opening of the Bids . The Ctty of Mandan reserves the r ight o hold the three (3) 
low Bids or a period of sixty ,(60) days after the da e of the Bid opening o comple e fina ncial 
arrangements. 

Bidders on th is work will be required to comply with Title 40 CF Part 33 - Participa tion by 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in the Uni ed Sla tes En ironm ental Pro ection gency Programs . 
The ,requirements /or bidders and contrn c ors under this regulation concern utilization of Minority 
Bus iness Enterprises (MBE), Women's Bus'iness Enterprises ('A'6 E), and Small Business En erprises 
(SBE) and are exp lained in the specifications . The goal for MBE is % of 111e total dolla r value of the 
projec. The goal or W BE is 3% o the to al dollar value of the project. 

Mandan Raw 11\'ater In ake - Phase I 
Mandan , North Dakota 00 11 13 -2 

kugust 2019 
Advertisement for Bids 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 5 of 11 
 

 
 
 

Bidders on th is work will be required to comply wrtll tile President's Executive Order No_ 11246 , as 
amended. Til e requirements or bidders and contractors urider th is order are explained in tll-e 
specifica ioris_ 

Dated this -3"" day oi Septemb-er 2019 By: Isl Jim Neuba uer_ City Admiriistrator 
Publish: 09f20/19 , 09127119 , 10l04/19, and 10/1 1119 

Ma ridan Raw Water Intake - Phase I 
Ma ridan, North Dakota 00 1 1 13 - 3 

Mandan, North Dakota 

ugust 20 19 
Advertisement for Bicls 



 

NO RTH 

Dakota I Water Commission 

August 21, 2019 

Tim Helbling, Mayor 
City of Mandan 
205 2nd Ave NW 
Mandan. ND 58554 

Be Legendary." 

RE: New Raw Water lntaKe Project 

Dear Mayor Helbling: 

The enclosed Agreement for Cost-Share Reimbursement City of Mandan New Water 
Intake Project is to provide cost-share, not to exceed s rn.977 ,ODD. to reimburse 60 
percent of actual eligible engineering and construction costs incurred in the New Raw 
Water lntaKe Project. Please sign, date. and make a copy of the agreement for your 
records before returning the original to this office. This ag.reement is void if not signed 
and returned by the Authority within 60 days of the Chief Engineer-Secretary's signature 
of August 21, 2019. The signed agreement is necessary to proceed with reimbursements 
based on claim vouchers documenting the actual eligible costs. 

Prior to issuing reimbursements. provide a copy of the certificate of insurance w~h your 
project indicated on the certificate and all endorsements to .State Water Commission. 

If you have any questions. please call me at 328-4952. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Jeffrey Mattern. P.E. 
Engineer Manager 

JNM /2050-MAN 

900 East Boulevard Ave I Bismarck. NO 58505 I 70 1.328.2750 I SWC.nd.gov 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 7 of 11 
 

 

AgJ"eement for Cost-Share Reimbursement 

SWC Project No. 2050-lvlAJ,'l" 
Project Manager: JMattan 

August2019 

City of Mandan New Raw Water Intake Project 

L PARTIES.. This agreement is be.tween the State of North Dakota (State), by and 
through the State Water Connnission (Commission), and City of Mandan (Sponsor). 

2. Cm,fMISSIO . • , s RESPO, ·smILITY MID ll ITENI. Commission will provide Sponsor 
with cost-share, not to exceed Sl 0,977 000, as approved by Commission on June 19, 2019, to 
reimlmr e 60 percent of the actual eligible engineering and constmction costs incurred in Sponsor' s 
New Raw Water Intake Project (Project) , contingent on availability offuuds and conditions of this 
agreement. Cotwllission's intent in providing this funding to Sponsor is merely to help Sponsor 
financially afford Project. Sponsor retains sole and absolute discretion in the manner and means of 
carrying out Project, except to the extent specified in this agreement. 

3. SPOt'\SOR'S RESPONSIB1LITIE.S. Sponsor must: 

a. Complete Proj ect. 
b. Provide continued maintenance for Proj ec.t. 
c. Ensure all applicable permits (federal, state, and local) are obtained 
d. Acquire all title to land and easen1ents for Proj ect. 
e. Comply ,villi all North Dakota laws governing the requirements for 

competitive bids, advertising. and a\varding of contracts for constmction of 
Project. 

f Provide written certification to Connnission that Proj ect does not duplicate 
the service area or affect another water service provider's users. 

g. Provide a water service agreen1ent if Project is located ,vithin extraterritorial 
jurisdiction. 

b. Maintain a Project file contaming relevant documents and correspondence 
generated during the course of Project. State is not responsible for 
maintaining a Project file. 

i. Prior to signature, inform Commission and any other relevant party regarding 
Project of any errors, misinterpretations., changes, modi:fk .ations, 
miscalculations, incorrect Project descriptions, or any other information 
stated herein that is inaccurate. 

j . Provide assurance to Connnission of sustainable operation, maintenance, and 
replacement plan of Proj ect facilities. 

k. Provide a progress report to Conimission at least every four yea15 if the tenn 
of Project exceeds four years. If a progress report is uot timely received, or if 
after a review of a progress report Conimission determines Project has not 
made sufficient progress, Commission may terminate the agreen1ent for 
Project funding. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 8 of 11 
 

 

4. PROJECT DESCRIPTION A1'D LOCATION. Project is for Sponsor' s construction of a 
new raw \Vater intake that increases the capacity for both residential services and 1v1arathon Refinery 
and to help Sponsor meet water demands due to growth and provide for future growth. The location 
of the new intake is one mile south of the existing water treatment plant site on the Missouri River, 
which is approximately 2.5 miles north of Interstate 94 Grant March bridge. 

5. EUGIBLE COSTS. Commission has sole discretion to determine eligible cosls and 
availability of Commission funds. Additional information is outlined in Commission' s cost-share 
policy. 

6.. P AYMEi\,. Commission will make partial payments upon receipt and approvaJ of 
Sponsor' s written request. Sponsor must provide Commission verification of actual costs and a 
Project status report with each payment request. A Commission representative may inspect Proj ec.t 
to determine whether the work satisfies Conunission' s cost share requirements before Commission 
makes payment(s) to Sponsor. Request for final payn1ent must include documents or record 
drawings features constructed. 

7. Ii IDEMNIFICATIOt'i. Sponsor must require all subcontractors, other than state 
employed subcontractors, before coUllllencement of an agreement between Sponsor and the 
subcontractor, to defend, indenrnify, and hold hanruess State, from and against dainis based on the 
vk.arious liability of State or its agents , but not against dainis based on State's negligence or 
intentional misconduct. The legal defense prm.rided by subcontractor to State lm.der this provision 
must be free of any oonflicts of interest, even if retention of separate legal co\lllSel for State is 
necessary. Subcontractor also agrees to rein1burse State for all cosls, expenses, and attomey-s' fees 
incurred if State prevails in an action against subcontractor in establishing and litigating the 
indenrnification coverage required herein. This obligation continues after the termination of this 
agreen1ent. 

8. To SURA.l'iCE. State and Sponsor each must secure and keep in force during the term 
of this agreement, from an insurance con1pany, government self-insurance pool, or government elf
retention fund authorized to do business in North Dakota, commercial gen.era! liability with 
mininmm limits ofliability of $250,000 per person and $500,000 per occurrence. 

]n addition, Sponsor must require all subcontractors, other than state employed 
subcontractors, before commencement of an agreement between Sponsor and the subcontractor to 
secure and keep in force during the term of this agreen1ent, from insurance companies authorized to 
do business in orth Dakota, the following insurance coverages: 

a. Commercial general liability, induding premises or operations, contractual, 
and products or completed operations ooverages (if applicable), ·with 
mininmm liability limits of$1,000,000 per oc.c.urrenae. 

b. Automobile liability, including Owned (if any), Hired, and Non-owned 
automobiles, with mininmm liability linlits of $250,000 per person and 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. 

c. V. orkers compensation coverage meeting all statutory requirements. The 
policy must provide coverage for all states of operation that apply to the 
performance of this contract. 

2 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 

requirements: 

d. If subcontractor is domiciled outside State, employer' s liability or "stop gap" 
insurance of not less than $1,000,000 as an endorsement on the workers 
compensation or comn1ercial general liability insurance . 

The insurance coverages listed above nmst meet the following additional 

e. 

f 

g. 

b. 

i. 

j . 

Any deductible or other similar obligation under the policies is the sole 
responsibility of the subcontractor. The amount of any deductible is subj ec.t 
to approval by State. 
This insurance may be in policy or policies of insurance, primary and excess, 
ind uding the so-called umbrella or catastrophe form, and must be placed ·with 
insurers rated "A-" or better by A.M. Best Company, Inc., provided any 
excess policy follows form for coverage. Less than an "A-" rating must be 
approved by State. The policies must be in form and tenns approved by State. 
State will be defended, indemnified, and held harmless to the full extent of 
any coverage actually secured by the subcontractor in excess of the minimum 
requirements set forth above. The duty to defend, indemnify, and hold 
harmless State under this agreement is not limited by the insurance required 
in this agreement. 
State must be endorsed on the commercial general liability policy, including 
any excess policies, as additional insured. State must have all the benefits, 
rights, and coverages of an additional insured under these policies that are not 
limited to the minimum limits of insurance required by this agreement or by 
the contractual indemnity obligations of Sponsor. 
The insurance required in this agreen1ent, through a policy or endorsement, 
must include: 
(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

A "\\ aiver of Subrogation" waiving any right to recovery the 
insurance company may have against State; 
A provision that subcontractor 's insurance coverage is primary (i.e., 
pay first) as respects any insurance , self-insurance, or self-retention 
lll,.'lintained by State and that any insurance, elf- insurance, or self
retention maintained by State must be in excess of the subcontractor' s 
insurance and must not contribute with it; 
Cro s liability/severability of interest for all policies and 
endorsements; 
The legal defense provided to State under the policy and any 
endorsements must be free of any conflicts of interest, even if 
retention of separate lega.1 counsel for State is necessary; 
The insolvency or bankruptcy of the insured subcontractor nmst not 
release the insurer from payment under the policy, even when such 
insolvency or bankruptcy prevents the insured subcontractor from 
meeting the retention limit under the policy. 

The subcontractor nmst fturush a certificate of insurance to Commission 
before commencement of this agreement. All endorsen1ents must be provided 
as soon as practicable. 

3 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 

k. F aihue to provide insurance as required in this agreement is a material breach 
of COlltract entitling State to tenninate this agreement ill1111ediately. 

1. The subcontractor must provide at least 30 days' notice of any cancellation 
or material change to the policies or endorsen1ents. During the tenn of this 
agreement, subcontractor must provide rene\va.l certificates 10 days before 
coverage expiration. 

9. B REACH. Violation of any provision of this agreement by Sponsor constitutes breach 
of this agreement. A breach obligates Sponsor to reimburse Conunission for all funds paid to 
Sponsor and relie,es.Commission ofaJl obligations under this agreement. 

10. AGREE..M!ENI BECOMES VOID. This agreen1ent is void if not signed and retumed by 
Sponsor within 60 clays of Commission' s signature. 

11. T :E1\ffi'iATIOl.'i. 

a. Commission may terminate this agreement effective upon delivery of written 
notice to Sponsor, or a later date as may be stated in the notice, under any of the 
following conditions: 

(1) If Commission determines an emergency exists. 
(2) If fttnding from federal, state, or other smuces is not obtained and 

continued at levels sufficient to provide the thuds necessary to con1ply 
with this agreement. The partie-S may modify this agreement to 
accommodate a reduction in funds. 

(3) If federal or state laws or mles are modified or interpreted in a way 
that the services are no longer allowable or appropriate for pluchase 
under this agreement or are no longer eligible for the funding 
proposed for payments authorized by this agreement. 

(4) If any license, permit, or certificate required by law, mle, or this 
agreement is denied, revoked, suspended, or not renewed. 

(5) If Commission determines that continuing th.e agreement is no longer 
necessary or would not produce beneficial res ults coOllllensllfate with 
the fttrther expeodihlfe of public fonds 

b. Any temunation of this agreement is without prejudice to any obligations or 
liabilities of either party already accmed prior to termination. 

c. The rights and remedies of any party provided in this agreement are not 
exclusive. 

12. APPLICABLE L A w Al'm Vmu"E. This agreement is governed by and constmed under 
the laws of State. Any action to enforce this agreement must be adjudicated exdusive ly in the 
District Cmlft of Bluleigh County, North Dakota . 

13. SEVERABILITY. If any term of this agreement is declared by a COllft having 
jurisdiction to be illegaJ or unenforceable, the validity of the ren1aining temis is unaffected, and if 
possible the rights and obligations of the parties are to be construed and enforced as if the agreement 
did not contain that temi. 

4 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Raw Water Intake Ad for Bids and Grant Acceptance 
Page 11 of 11 
 

 

14. SPOLIATION - PRESERVATION OF EVIDENCE. Sponsor agrees to promptly notify 
Commission of all potential claims that arise or result from this agreement Sponsor must a1so take 
all reasonable steps to preserve all physical evidence and information that may be relevant to the 
circumstances surrounding a potentia] claim, while maintaining public safety, and grants to 
Commission the opportunity to review and inspect the evidence, including the scene of an accident. 

15. l\lERGER AND l\loDmCATION. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties_ There are no tmderstandings, agreements, or representations, ora1 or written, 
not specified within this agreement This agreement may not be modified, supplemented, or 
amended in any manner except by written agreement signed by both parties_ 

NORTH DAKOTA STATE WATER 
COMMISSION 
By: 

~0bdtt. 
GERBELE,P_E_ 
Chief Engineer-Secretary 

Date: August 21,2019 

5 

CITY OF l\lANDAN 

By: 

TIM HELBLING 
Mayor 

Date: ----------



 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1325 

 
 An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact  

 Sections 4 and 5 of Sec. 24-12-8 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances  
Relating to Violation for Not Carrying Liability Insurance 

 
Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

4. Violation of subsection 1 is an infraction and the sentence imposed must include a fine of 
at least one hundred fifty dollars which may not be suspended.  A person convicted for a 
second or subsequent violation of driving without liability insurance within a three-year 
period must be fined at least three hundred dollars which may not be suspended.   For a 
second or subsequent conviction for a violation of subsection 1 or equivalent ordinance, 
the court shall order the motor vehicle number plates of the motor vehicle owned and 
operated by the person at the time of the violation to be impounded until that person 
provides proof of insurance and a twenty dollar fee to the court.  The person shall 
deliver the number plates to the court without delay at a time certain as ordered by the 
court following the conviction.   The court shall deliver the number plates to the office 
of the police officer that made the arrest and notify the department of the order.  A 
person who does not provide the number plates to the court at the appropriate time is 
guilty of a class B misdemeanor. 

5. Upon conviction for a violation of subsection 1 or equivalent ordinance, the person who 
has been convicted shall provide proof of motor vehicle liability insurance to the 
department in the form of a written or electronically transmitted certificate from an 
insurance carrier authorized to do business in this state.  This proof must be provided for 
a period of three one years and kept on file with the department.   If the person fails to 
provide this information, the department shall suspend that person’s driving privileges 
and may not issue or renew that person’s operator’s license unless that person provides 
proof of insurance.   

 
By:_______________________________________ 

      Tim Helbling, President, Board of  
 City Commissioners  

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Neubauer, City Administrator 
 
First Consideration:  August 20, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019 
Publication: September 27, 2019 

Res. & Ord. No. 1 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1323 related to a zoning district amendment for proposed Meadow Ridge 4th 
Addition.   
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The applicant is requesting approval for a rezone 
from MC-Industrial to RM-Residential for proposed Meadow Ridge 4th Addition.   
 
This is the second and final consideration of Ordinance 1323.  The first consideration of 
the ordinance and preliminary plat received unanimous approval by City Commissioners 
at the August 3 public hearing.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – DRAFT Ordinance 1323 
Exhibit 2 – Preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 4th Addition (for reference) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1323 has been reviewed and approved by the City 
Attorney.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the second and final consideration of Ordinance 1323 as reflected in Exhibit 
1.     

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1323 

related to a zoning district amendment for 
proposed Meadow Ridge 4th Addition 

Resolution and Ordinances No. 2 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1323 related to a zoning district 
amendment for proposed Meadow Ridge 4th Addition  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1323 as reflected in Exhibit 1.     
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1323 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 
 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   
 

The following described properties located in part of Lot 44, Block 1, Pioneer 
Park 1st Addtiion, and Part of the NW ¼, Section 22, Township 139N, Range 81W, City 
of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota shall be excluded from the MC Industrial 
District and R3.2 Residential District and shall be included in the RM Residential District 
WITH RESTRICTIONS to single and two-family residential construction: 

 
Meadow Ridge 4th Addition (proposed) 
 
  

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   
 
 
SECTION 3.  EFFECT.  This ordinance shall go into effect upon the recordation of a 
final plat of Meadow Ridge 4th Addition as described in Section 1.      
 
 
 

         
Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 
 
                                       
Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission:    July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:                                                                August 20, 2019_______  
Second Consideration and Final Passage:   September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date:          
 



1

2

2
15600 SF
0.36 AC±

3
15600 SF
0.36 AC±

4
16918 SF
0.39 AC±

1
15612 SF
0.36 AC±

130.00' 130.00'
S0

0°
 0

2'
 0

4"
E

12
0.

00
'

130.20' 130.00' 130.00' 164.88'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
12

0.
00

'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
12

0.
00

'

A
=26.70'

N89° 57' 56"E 593.92' =17°31'46"
R=217.00'
A=66.39'
CH=S15° 30' 19"E
CL=66.13'

S24° 16' 13"E

66.76'

=13°04'28"
R=283.00'
A=64.58'
CH=S17° 43' 59"E
CL=64.44'

S89° 57' 56"W622.75'

N
0°

 0
3'

 3
9"

E
12

0.
00

'

S89° 57' 56"W
36.00'

N
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

W
66

.0
0' N89° 57' 56"E

566.34'

STREETS
48235 SF
1.11 AC±

164.88' 67.68'

A
=3

6.
41

'

66.76'

130.00' 115.58'

C
1

C
2

S24° 16' 13"E

66.76'

C
4

1

66' ROW

33'

33'

66' ROW

33'

33'

70' RIW

40' 30'
66' ROW

66' ROW

23' BOC TO
ASPHALT EDGE

41' B-B

41' B-B

41' B-B

8" PVC SAN. SEWER

8" PVC WATERMAIN

8T
H

 A
VE

 N
W

24TH ST NW

7T
H

 A
VE

 N
W

6TH
 A

VE N
W

6TH AVE NW

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

CENTERLINE STREET CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C1

C2

C4

DELTA

7°40'39"

10°44'26"

11°34'42"

RADIUS

250.00'

250.00'

250.00'

LENGTH

33.50'

46.86'

50.52'

CHORD BEARING

S9° 41' 27"E

S18° 53' 59"E

S18° 28' 53"E

CHORD LENGTH

33.47'

46.80'

50.43'

MEADOW RIDGE 4TH ADDITION

LEGEND

EXISTING TELEPHONE CABLE

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING GATE VALVE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX

EXISTING STREET LIGHT

EXISTING TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

EXISTING MANHOLE

EXISTING TELEPHONE CABLE

EXISTING ASPHALT

EXISTING GAS LINE

EXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

EXISTING WATERMAIN

EXISTING SANITARY SEWERMAIN

MEADOW RIDGE 4TH ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PART OF LOT 44, BLOCK 1, PIONEER PARK 1ST ADDITION, AND PART OF THE NW1/4,
SECTION 22, T139N-R81W OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PRELIMINARY PLAT

4414

0

Scale 1" =            ft
VERT. DATUM:

HORIZ. DATUM:

6060

60

120

NAVD88
1983 ST. PLANE, ND SOUTH (3302)

OWNERS:
WW RANCH, A LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PO BOX 838
BISMARCK, ND 58502

MONTANA-DAKOTA UTILITIES CO
400 N. 4TH ST
BISMARCK, ND 58501

BASIS OF BEARING:
BASIS OF BEARING: NORTH BOUNDARY LINE
NORTH 89° 57' 56" EAST.

NOTES:
1. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES MAY VARY FROM

PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS OF RECORD DUE TO
DIFFERENT METHODS OF FIELD MEASUREMENT.

2. TOTAL LOT ACREAGE: 1.46
TOTAL STREET ACREAGE: 1.11
TOTAL ACREAGE: 2.57

o
j
e
c
t
s
\
4
0
0
0
\
4
4
1
4
 
M
e
a
d
o
w
 
R
i
d
g
e
 
4
t
h
\
4
4
1
4
 
P
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
P
l
a
t
.
d
w
g
,
 
6
/
5
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
5
0
:
3
8
 
P
M
,
 
A
n
d
r
a
,
 
1
:
1

EXHIBIT 2

TOMAN ENGINEERING 
5011st Street N Phone: 701-66~ ~andan, ND 58554 Fax: 701-663-0923 

·+· s 

JUNE, 2019 

-6-

I I I I I 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1324 related to a zoning district amendment for proposed Meadow Ridge 5th 
Addition.   
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The applicant is requesting approval for a rezone 
from MC-Industrial to RM-Residential for proposed Meadow Ridge 5th Addition.   
 
This is the second and final consideration of Ordinance 1324.  The first consideration of 
the ordinance and preliminary plat received unanimous approval by City Commissioners 
at the August 3 public hearing.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – DRAFT Ordinance 1324 
Exhibit 2 – Preliminary plat for Meadow Ridge 5th Addition (for reference) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1324 has been reviewed and approved by the City 
Attorney.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the second and final consideration of Ordinance 1324 as reflected in Exhibit 
1.     

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1324 

related to a zoning district amendment for 
proposed Meadow Ridge 5th Addition 

Resolution and Ordinances No. 3 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1324 related to a zoning district 
amendment for proposed Meadow Ridge 5th Addition  
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1324 as reflected in Exhibit 1.     
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1324 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   

The following described properties located in part of the NW ¼, Section 22, 
Township 139N, Range 81W, City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota shall be 
excluded from the MC Industrial District and R3.2 Residential District and shall be 
included in the RM Residential District: 

Meadow Ridge 5th Addition (proposed) 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   

SECTION 3.  EFFECT.  This ordinance shall go into effect upon the recordation of a 
final plat of Meadow Ridge 5th Addition as described in Section 1.      

Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning Commission:  July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:                                                                August 20, 2019_______ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date: 

EXHIBIT 1



1

66' ROW

66' ROW

66' ROW

41' B-B

41' B-B

8" PVC SAN. SEWER

8" PVC WATERMAIN

24TH ST NW

6TH
 A

VE N
W

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

2

1

N87° 42' 57"E 557.47'

S4
° 2

4'
 5

2"
E

37
1.

69
'

S85° 30' 30"W

149.81'

N79° 14' 45"W68.34'
S89° 57' 56"W297.29'

=13°04'33"
R=283.00'

A=64.59'
CH=N17° 43' 57"W

CL=64.45'

N24° 16' 13"W
66.76'

=21°59'11"
R=217.00'

A=83.27'
CH=N13° 16' 38"W

CL=82.76'

N
2°

 1
7'

 0
3"

W
14

4.
86

'

1
19389 SF
0.45 AC±

2
16830 SF
0.39 AC±

3
17223 SF
0.40 AC±

4
17088 SF
0.39 AC±

5
36651 SF
0.84 AC±

6
19487 SF
0.45 AC±

1
19974 SF
0.46 AC±

2
17586 SF
0.40 AC±

114.41' 100.00' 100.00' 38.10' A=42.46'

A=56.13'

8.26'

13
0.

00
'

12
0.

37
'

144.45'189.47'

148.63'148.66'

13
0.

00
'

24
1.

69
'

142.47'
93.34'

100.08'
100.08'

121.50'

A=16.88'

A
=6

6.
39

'

2.48'

64.28'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
16

6.
34

'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
17

0.
27

'

S0
0°

 0
2'

 0
4"

E
17

4.
20

'

S3
6°

 51
' 1

2"
W

34
.94

'
N

01
° 5

5'
 3

3"
W

16
3.

24
'

N85° 30' 30"E

149.99'

N
02

° 2
9'

 5
6"

W
12

0.
12

'

1

2

S89° 57' 56"W
345.98'

C1

N
4°

 2
9'

 3
0"

W

12
9.

26
'

66' ROW

33'

33'

66' ROW

33'
33'

24TH ST NW

75' STORM SEWER
DETENTION POND

EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY
EASEMENT

5T
H

 A
VE

 N
W

CENTERLINE STREET CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C1

DELTA

85°26'02"

RADIUS

33.10'

LENGTH

49.35'

CHORD BEARING

N47° 12' 31"W

CHORD LENGTH

44.90'

MEADOW RIDGE 5TH ADDITION

MEADOW RIDGE 5TH ADDITION
TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PART OF THE NW1/4, SECTION 22, T139N-R81W OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON
COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

PRELIMINARY PLAT

4454

0

Scale 1" =            ft
VERT. DATUM:

HORIZ. DATUM:

3030

30

60

NAVD88
1983 ST. PLANE, ND SOUTH (3302)

OWNERS:
WW RANCH, A LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
PO BOX 838
BISMARCK, ND 58502

BASIS OF BEARING:
BASIS OF BEARING: NORTH BOUNDARY LINE
NORTH 87° 42' 57" EAST.

NOTES:
1. BEARINGS AND DISTANCES MAY VARY FROM

PREVIOUS DOCUMENTS OF RECORD DUE TO
DIFFERENT METHODS OF FIELD MEASUREMENT.

2. TOTAL LOT ACREAGE: 3.77
TOTAL STREET ACREAGE: 0.79
TOTAL ACREAGE: 4.56

LEGEND

EXISTING TELEPHONE CABLE

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING GATE VALVE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING TREE

EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX

EXISTING STREET LIGHT

EXISTING TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

EXISTING MANHOLE

EXISTING CABLE TV

EXISTING ASPHALT

EXISTING GAS LINE

EXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

EXISTING WATERMAIN

EXISTING SANITARY SEWERMAIN

PROPOSED SEWERMAIN

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

PROPOSED WATERMAIN

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

PROPOSED STREET LIGHT

EXISTING WATER SERVICE

EXISTING SANITARY SERVICE

o
j
e
c
t
s
\
4
0
0
0
\
4
4
5
4
 
M
e
a
d
o
w
 
R
i
d
g
e
 
5
t
h
\
4
4
5
4
 
P
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
P
l
a
t
.
d
w
g
,
 
8
/
1
5
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
:
1
8
:
2
0
 
P
M
,
 
A
n
d
r
a
,
 
1
:
1

" 
* IJ'J 
0 
-6-
@ 

·+· s 

JUNE, 2019 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1322 related to a zoning district amendment for select lots in Scott’s Acres.  
This property is the site of Engage Church off Old Red Trail NW.       
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Engage Church is seeking to divide their property 
located to the southwest of the intersection of Old Red Trail NW and Highland Rd. NW 
and rezone one of the newly created lots to MA Industrial and the other to R7 Residential 
(See Exhibit 2).  
 
The existing zoning is MA Industrial and R7 Residential.  The request is to reorient the 
zoning district boundaries to align with the proposed lots just noted.  The MA Industrial 
zoning is currently located along the rear of the property.  The R7 Residential is located 
along the front of the property (See Exhibit 1).   
 
Storage Units are located to the west of the proposed industrially zoned property; Utility 
outdoor storage is to the south.  Industrial uses are more appropriate than a single family 
residence for the land between Engage Church and the rest of this industrial area.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the zoning amendment in Exhibit 3 for the reasons as 
outlined in Exhibit 4.    
 
These reasons are: 
 

• The property to the west and south are industrial zoned; the properties to the 
east/north are residentially zoned 

• The proposed industrial zoning district boundary abuts one of Mandan’s large 
industrial parks 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1322 

related to a zoning district amendment for select 
lots in Scott’s Acres (Proposed Engage Addition)   

Resolution and Ordinances No. 4 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1322 related to a zoning district 
amendment for select lots in Scott’s Acres (Proposed Engage Addition)   
Page 2 of 2 

• The church provides a harmonious transition from more intense industrial uses
to lesser intense residential uses to the north and east

• The existing zoning designations of MA Industrial and R7 Residential already
exist on the property in a different configuration; this is a reconfiguration of
what already exists on the property

ATTACHMENTS:  

Exhibit 1 – Current Configuration of Zoning District Boundaries 
Exhibit 2 – Proposed Orientation of Zoning District Boundaries 
Exhibit 3 – DRAFT Zoning Amendment – Ordinance 1322 
Exhibit 4 – Rationale for Approval of Zoning Ordinance Amendment Request 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/a 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1322 has been reviewed and approved by Attorney Brown.  

RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the second and final consideration of Ordinance 1322 per Exhibit 3 based on 
the reasons outlined in Exhibit 4.  

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1322 per Exhibit 3 based on the reasons outlined in Exhibit 4. 



EXHIBIT 1 
CURRENT ZONING CONFIGURATION 

 

 

R7 

RESIDENTIAL 

MA INDUSTRIAL 



EX
H

IB
IT

 2

?:?<::-«.<}-'+-
_ ..._<::f .CY" .~o<::~- ~ .... '},.o' 
,? ~v 

C) 
.__<::- ~'0' 

_J 
42ND STREET NW 

c,., 

~ 
:r: 
~ 
m 
z 
~ 

MA 
~ e,0 

cf 0' ~o ~ <o •0 
~ 

cf-'° 

Jun 20, 2019 -4:39pm - P:\NonProfit\EngageChurch_Mandan\1919-01194-EngageChurch-Mandan\CAD\20190621-Engage_Rezone-Exhibit.dwg (Layout1) 

! 
I 

75 75 150 

SCALE 

PRELIMINARY - NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

«~ LJ 
DRAFTED 

ADW 
REVIEWED 

PROJECT NUMBER 

PROJECT# 
ISSUE DATE 

6/21/19 -

z 
Q ~ 
!::I~!::: 
C U< m 

0::0 -
C =>I :::c I >( 
<( ()~ w 
W wo w 

C) z z 
c,<:z 0 
<( ~<( N 
'"WO W ..., z 0:: 

z ~ 
w 



ORDINANCE NO. 1322 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   

The following described properties located Section 17, Township 139N, Range 
81W, City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota shall be excluded from the MA 
Industrial District and R7 Residential District: 

Lots 11-13, Block 1, Scott’s Acres First Addition (R7 Residential District)  
Lot 1A of Lot 1, Block 2, Scott’s Acres (MA Industrial District) 

This same property shall be included in the MA Industrial District and R7 Residential 
District in a reconfigured manner per the proposed plat of Engage Addition as follows: 

Lot 1 – MA Industrial District 
Lot 2 – R7 Residential District 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   

Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning Commission:  July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:    August 20, 2019_______ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date: 

EXHIBIT 3



EXHIBIT 4 

 
• The property to the west and south are industrial zoned; the properties to the 

east/north are residentially zoned 
• The proposed industrial zoning district boundary abuts one of Mandan’s large industrial 

parks 
• The church provides a harmonious transition from more intense industrial uses to lesser 

intense residential uses to the north and east 
• The existing zoning designations of MA Industrial and R7 Residential already exist on the 

property in a different configuration; this is a reconfiguration of what already exists on 
the property 

 

 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1321 related to a zoning district amendment for Lots 4 & 5, Block 1 Midway 
Fourteenth Addition (proposed Midway Fourteenth Addition First Replat).   
 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  E-C ND Investments, LLC is seeking the removal 
of zoning restrictions to allow for a warehousing addition to their existing structure.  
Other properties in the same Midway 14th development underwent a zone change in 2013 
to remove restrictions.  This rezone request would bring the entire development under the 
same zoning provisions.   
 
The first consideration, as well as the preliminary and final plat to combine three lots into 
one, was approved unanimously on August 20.     
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Application 
Exhibit 2 – DRAFT Ordinance 1321 
Exhibit 3 – Preliminary Plat (for reference) 
Exhibit 4 – Final Plat (for reference) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1321 has been reviewed and approved by Attorney Brown.   
 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1321 

related to a zoning district amendment for Lots 4 & 
5, Block 1 Midway Fourteenth Addition    

Resolution and Ordinances No. 5 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Second and final consideration of Ordinance 1321 related to a zoning district 
amendment for Lots 4 & 5, Block 1 Midway Fourteenth Addition    
Page 2 of 2 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department recommend 
approval of the zoning amendment to CC-Commercial without restrictions as presented in 
Exhibit 2.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to recommend approval of the zoning amendment to 
CC-Commercial without restrictions as presented in Exhibit 2.  
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT 1

CITY OF MANDAN 

Development Review Application 
X Minor Plat ($300) Zone Change ($600) D 

Preliminary Plat up to 20 acres ($350) Planned Unit Development ($700) 

Preliminary Plat more than 20 acres ($400) Zone Change with Minor Plat ($400) 

Final Plat up to 20 lots ($350) Vacation ($500) 

Final Plat 21 to 40 lots ($475) Variance ($400) 

Final Plat more than 40 lots ($700) Special Use Permit ($450) 

Annexation ($450) X Stormwater submittal ($300) 

Annexation with Mlnor Plat ($200) Stormwater 2"0 & subsequent resubmittal ($50) 

Summary of Request 

Combining lots 4-6 of Midway 14th Addition into 1 lot. All lots have the same owner. 

Engineer/Surveyor Property Owner or Applicant 

Name Name 

Tom Weigel (HBSE, Inc.) Chris Houwman (E-C ND Investments, LLC) 

Address Address 

3320 Hamilton ST. Unit 3 809 W Russel St. 
City 

IND 
State 

l5a5
2

;3 
City !so State I Zip 

Bismarck Sioux Falls 57104 
email email 

tweigel@hollybecksurveying.com chouwman@malloyelectric.com 

Phone 

I-
Fax Phone 

I-
Fax 

701-223-3546 605-336-3693 

If the applicant is not the current owner, the current owner must submit a notarized statement authorizing the 

applicant to proceed with the request. 

Location I Type I ExistingZone I Proposed Zone I Project Name 

XI City I I ETA I I New IX I Addition I CC cc Malloy Electric Phase 2 Expansion 

Property Address Legal Description 

1401 Action Drive SE Lots 4-6, Block 1 of Midway 14th Addition 

Current Use 

Commercial / Industrial 
Proposed Use 

Same Section 31 I Township 139 I Range 80 

Parcel Size 
1

1 
t~d;gootprint 1

1 

Stories I 18~4i;~gSF 1-
Required Parking 

I-
Provided Parking 

4 Acres 

Print Name 

Chris Houwman 

Office Use Only 

Date Received: Initials: Fees Paid: : Date 

Notice in paper Mailed to neighbors P&Z meetin 

A roved Approved with conditions: 

Denied 

Updated 1/1/2019 

N:\PLANNING & ZONING\Development Application - January 2019.docx 



VICINITY MAP 



E:o!, Building 

E• Sl, Bulldlng 

fast, Bulldlng 

EKI I, 0ulldlfl9 

S cale 1" = 5 

5C 

SURVE E, 
HORIZONTAL Q A )". 'DD. 

0' 

,,,TUM: NAi 

VERTICAL DJ. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1321 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 105-2-2 OF THE 
MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
AND ZONING MAP. 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 
Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows:   

The following described properties shall be excluded from the CC Commercial 
District with restrictions on Railroad Trackage, Auto Laundry (Car Wash), Auto Repair 
Garages (as a primary use), Commercial Parking Lot/Garage, Off-premise Advertising 
Sign, Steam Bath, Tire/Battery Repair, Storage Building/Warehouse or any of the 
Wholesale Group and be included in the CC Commercial District (no restrictions): 

Lots 4 and 5, Block 1 of Midway Fourteenth Addition, Section 31, Township 139 
North, Range 80 West, City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 105-2-2 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 
is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to 
make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with 
this section.   

Tim Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

Jim Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning Commission:  July 22, 2019  
First Consideration:                                                                August 20, 2019_______ 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: September 3, 2019__   
Recording Date: 

EXHIBIT 2



EXHIBIT 3

ii, i 
! ! _,,,.-- 10'Utilty --! ...,......- Easement 

MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION FIRST REPLA T 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION 

SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST 

Exst Bulldlng 

REPLAT SYLVEST 

CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY 

/ 
/ 

(!) / 

NORTH DAKOTA 

ssrsz4s•w 
76.02' 

'S I NOUSTR!At_/~ARK 3RD ADO. 
I 

r ExsL Bulldlng 

Scale 1" : 50' (lnfl Ft) 

50' 100' 

SURVEYED DATE: MAY 20f9 
HORIZONTAL DATUM: NAD83(201t)-ND S 

VERTTCAL OATUM: NAVD88 

S2° 01'16"E 
12.76' 

SYLVESTER' S INDUSTRIAL PARK 4TH ADD. 

VICINITY MAP 

CURRENT DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
All OF LOTS-4, 5, ANO 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY 1,HH ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, 
MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. SAIOTRACT OF LAND CONTAINING '4.08 ACRES, MORE 
OR LESS. 

ZONING 

CURRENT ZONING: f:.6.~Cf!/~(Hsa~~~) 
ZONING CIW{GE; LCl8 4, 5, 6- CC(,.,_,,,CcmmM:181~) 

FLOOD INF'ORMA 770N 
CONMUNITYNO: C#yo/Milfldan. J&JCl'2 

MAPNIIMBER: 38059C05150 
ZONE: X(0.2 PCTANNIJALCHANCEFI.OOOHAZAROJ 

LEGEND 

EXISnNGLOTUNE 

PROPOSED LOT UNE 

EXISnNG WATER MAIN 

EXISnNG SANITARY SEWER 

EXISnNG STORM SEWER 

EXISnNG CONTOURS (1 FOOT) 

PROPOSED CONTOURS (f FOOT) 

Q FOUND MONUMENT 

• SET 15 REBAR w/AJ.UM CAP 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

PLAT IS SUBJECT TO ALL PRIOR 
EASEMENTS OF RECORD Date Issued: 6124/2019 



MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION FIRST REPLA T 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION 

SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST 
CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY 

NORTH DAKOTA 

Scale 1" : 50' (lnfl Ft) 

50' 100' 

SURVEYED DATE: MAY 20f9 
HORIZONTAL DATUM: NAD83(201t)-ND S 

VERTTCAL OATUM: NAVD88 

m BACKGROUND IMAGE IS FOR APPROX/MA TE REFERENCE ONLY-. 

VICINITY MAP 

CURRENT DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
All OF LOTS-4, 5, ANO 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY 1,HH ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, 
MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA. SAIOTRACT OF LAND CONTAINING '4.08 ACRES, MORE 
OR LESS. 

ZONING 

CURRENT ZONING: f:.6.~Cf!/~(Hsa~~~) 
ZONING CIW{GE; LCl8 4, 5, 6- CC(,.,_,,,CcmmM:181~) 

FLOOD INF'ORMA 770N 
CONMUNITYNO: C#yo/Milfldan. J&JCl'2 

MAPNIIMBER: 38059C05150 
ZONE: X(0.2 PCTANNIJALCHANCEFI.OOOHAZAROJ 

LEGEND 

EXISnNGLOTUNE 

PROPOSED LOT UNE 

EXISnNG WATER MAIN 

EXISnNG SANITARY SEWER 

EXISnNG STORM SEWER 

EXISnNG CONTOURS (1 FOOT) 

PROPOSED CONTOURS (f FOOT) 

Q FOUND MONUMENT 

• SET 15 REBAR w/AJ.UM CAP 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

PLAT IS SUBJECT TO ALL PRIOR 
EASEMENTS OF RECORD Date Issued: 6124/2019 



EXHIBIT 4

FINAL PLAT DA TE ISSUED: 1/16/2019 

MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION FIRST REPLA T 

R = 11T 
L= 107.87' 
fl: 526 49' 31 • 

BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY FOURTEENTH ADDITION 

SECTION 31 , TOWNSHIP 139 NORTH, RANGE 80 WEST 

LOT1 
177,768 SqFt 
4.08 Acres 

G) 

CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY 
NORTH DAKOTA 

\ 
\ 

\ 

S 89° 27' 31" W 
130.69' 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

·'\_ 

\ 

Scale 1"= 50' (lnrl Fl) 

50' 100' 

SIJRVEYEDDATE: MAY 20t9 
HORIZONTAL DATUM.· NA083(20'1)-NO S 

VER17CALDAnJM: NA~88 

(1) 

SYLVESTER' S I NDUSTRIAL PARK 4TH ADD. 

LEGEND 

0 

• 
FOUND MONUMENT 

SET 15 REBAR w/ALUM C4P 

FLOOD fNFORMA 770N 
COMMUNITYNO: CA)"o/Mandan,.18()()72 

UAPNIIM6ER: 38059C05150 
ZONE: X(0.2PCrANNUALCHANCEFLOOOHAZAROJ 

• DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
All OF LOTS 4, 5, AND 6. BLOCK 1 OF MIDWAY 14TH ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, 
NORTH DAKOTA. SAID TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 4.06ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

♦ OWNER'S CERT/FICA TE & OED/CATION 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING THE SOLE OWNERS OF THE LANO PLATTED HEREON, DO HEREBY VOLUNTARILY 
CONSENT TO THE EXECUTION OF SAID PLAT, AND DO DEDICATE ALL THE STREETS, ALLEYS, PARKS, ANO PUBUC 
GROUNOSM SHOWN HEREON, INCLUDING ALL SEWERS, CULVERTS, BRIDGES, WATERLINES, SIDEWALKS AND 
OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ON OR UNDER SUCH STREETS, Al.l.EYS OR OTHER PUBLIC GFIOUNOS, WHETHER SUCH 
IMPROVEMENTS ARE SHOWN HEREON OR NOT, TO PUBLIC USE FOREVER. WE ALSO DEDICATE EASEMEMTS TO 
RUN WITH 'THE LANDS FOR WATER, SEWER, GAS, ELECTIIICITY, TELEPHONE, OR Oll!ER PUBLIC UTILITY LINES OF 
SERVICES UNDER, ON OR OVER THESE CERTAIN STRIPS OF LAND DESIGNATED AS "llTILITY EASEMENTS", 

=-~w~uc 
STATEOFNORTHDAKOTA ) SkNJ/Falls,S057104 

COUNTYOF ____ ))SS 

NOrARYPUBUC 
MY COMMISSION EXP/Rf=.~•----

♦ SURVEYOR'S CERnFICA TE 

• 

11-iOMASO. WEIGEl..LS-f08Tf 
HOLLY BECK SURVEYING & ENGINEERING, INC. 
:J320HAMILTONSrUNfT'.1 
lJISMARCl(,N058501 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION APPROVAL 

'THE SUBDIVISION OF LANO SHOWN HEREON HAS BEEN APPROVED BY 'THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF 'THE CITY 
OF MANDAN, NORTI-1 DAKOTA ON Tl-llS DAY OF 2019, IN ACCORDANCE Will-I THE LAWS OF 
'THE STATE OF NORTI-1 DAKOTA, ORDINARm OF SAID~DAN, AND REGULATIONS ADOPTED BY Tl-IE 
PLANNING COMMISSION OF SAID CITY, IN WITNESS WHEREOF ARE SETTI-IE HANDS OF THE CHAIRMAN AND Tl-IE 
SECRETARY OF Tl-IE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA. 

• 
'THE BOARD OF 
SUBOMSION 

~:61~~F ALL PARKS AND PUBLIC 0 
CITY COMMISSIONERS OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA. HAS BEEN TAKEN BY RESO 
-~2019. 

• APPROVAL OF CITY ENGINEER 

I, JUSTIN FROSETH, CITY ENGINEER FOR Tl-IE CITY OF MANDAN, NORTI-1 DAKOTA HEREBY APPROVE "MIDWAY 
FOURTEENTI-1 ADDITION FIRST REPLA r MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA AS SHOWN ON 'THE ANNEXED PLAT. 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1320 related to crematoriums.    

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  An ordinance was recently adopted that would 
restrict crematoriums to within the Mandan Union Cemetery.  The Board of City 
Commissioners directed staff to reevaluate the ordinance as it pertains to crematoriums 
following a request by David Wise.   
 
Through the process, funeral homes in the area provided comment, several public 
hearings were held, and staff reviewed research and land use standards from other 
communities.  The original staff recommendation is provided in Exhibit 1 and the final 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation can be found in Exhibit 2 for 
reference.   
 
Staff is providing an alternative recommendation at this time based on many public 
hearings that have occurred on the issue since the original recommendation.  This 
recommendation can be found in Exhibit 3.   
 
The alternative staff recommendation is constructed to provide protections to existing 
home owners and developments while at the same time not being unnecessarily 
burdensome on the business owner.  Staff is recommending that crematoriums be placed 
in an industrial zoning district with a 50’ setback from the property line.  In addition, a 
350’ setback applies to existing dwellings at the time of building permit issuance.  
Further, staff is recommending that these standards apply to the use and that no special 
use permit be required.  These restrictions should address the issues that arose in 
discussion throughout the many hearings that took place in preceding months.     
 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM  
SUBJECT: Second and Final Consideration of Ordinance 1320 

Related to Crematoriums  

Resolution and Ordinances No. 6 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Second and Final Consideration of Ordinance 1320 related to Crematoriums 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Both Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of City Commissioners (first 
consideration) voted unanimously to approve the ordinance as presented in Exhibit 3.    
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Ordinance - Original Staff Recommendation 
Exhibit 2 – Ordinance - Planning and Zoning Recommendation 
Exhibit 3 – Ordinance - Alternative Staff Recommendation 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 
 
STAFF IMPACT:  N/a  
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Ordinance 1320 has been reviewed and approved by Attorney Brown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Engineering and Planning recommend approval of the second 
and final consideration of Ordinance 1320 as presented in Exhibit 3.   
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the second and final consideration of 
Ordinance 1320 as presented in Exhibit 3.   
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. 1299 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) of the 
Mandan Municipal Code related crematoriums 

WHEREAS, Changes are necessary to remove conflict within the land-use code related 
to cremation-related activities       

WHEREAS, Clarification is required to ensure health and safety and mitigate potential 
negative impacts to nearby resident property values 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 101-1-3 is added and reads:   

Insert in Sec. 101-1-3 after the definition for Correctional facility the following: 

Crematorium means the establishment for final disposition of deceased remains, either human or pet, by 
thermal, mechanical, or other dissolution process that reduces remains to bone fragments and is subject to 
the following requirements: 

a. shall not be the primary use, i.e. it must be accessory or ancillary to a related and legally existing
mortuary, funeral home, columbarium, or cemetery use.

Section 2.  Sec. 101-1-3, definition for Funeral home or mortuary, is amended to read: 

Funeral home or mortuary means a facility for the care and custody for the pre-disposition of deceased 
human remains, including the sale of services and merchandise for burial, cremation, and other related 
items, including offices, viewing rooms, chapels, and reception halls for serving the deceased and their 
families. facility for the pre-burial preparation of human cadavers, including facilities for cremation, and 
including other areas for offices, purchase of burial items and services, viewing rooms and areas for the 
conduct of memorial services. 

Section 3.  Sec. 105-1-5 (e) is amended to read: 

Cemetery, Mausoleum, Columbarium, and Crematorium. A cemetery, mausoleum, columbarium or 
crematoriumy may be permitted in an industrial or A district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) No graves shall be located less than 100 feet distant from any property line; 

(2) There shall be a strip at least 75 feet in width adjacent to all boundaries of the cemetery 
landscaped and maintained as a green area; 

EXHIBIT 1 - Draft Ordinance - Staff Recommendation



(3) In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising above the 
surface of the ground, the green area shall include a dense evergreen hedge at least six feet in 
height; and  

(4) No public mausoleum, columbarium, crematory or cemetery chapel shall be erected within 200 
feet of any boundary of the lot or parcel on which it is located. 

(5) No crematorium shall be erected within 300 feet of a property line.  

Section 4.  Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) is amended and re-enacted. 

________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 

First Consideration:  December 4, 2018 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: December 18, 2018 



ORDINANCE NO. 1299 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) of the 
Mandan Municipal Code related crematoriums 

WHEREAS, Changes are necessary to remove conflict within the land-use code related 
to cremation-related activities       

WHEREAS, Clarification is required to ensure health and safety and mitigate potential 
negative impacts to nearby resident property values 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 101-1-3 is added and reads:   

Insert in Sec. 101-1-3 after the definition for Correctional facility the following: 

Crematorium means the establishment for final disposition of deceased remains, either human or pet, by 
thermal, mechanical, or other dissolution process that reduces remains to bone fragments and is subject to 
the following requirements: 

a. shall not be the primary use, i.e. it must be accessory or ancillary to a related and legally existing
mortuary, funeral home, columbarium, or cemetery use.

Crematorium equipment means the primary piece of capital performing the task of reducing 
remains to bone fragments.    

Section 2.  Sec. 101-1-3, definition for Funeral home or mortuary, is amended to read: 

Funeral home or mortuary means a facility for the care and custody for the pre-disposition of deceased 
human remains, including the sale of services and merchandise for burial, cremation, and other related 
items, including offices, viewing rooms, chapels, and reception halls for serving the deceased and their 
families. facility for the pre-burial preparation of human cadavers, including facilities for cremation, and 
including other areas for offices, purchase of burial items and services, viewing rooms and areas for the 
conduct of memorial services. 

Section 3.  Sec. 105-1-5 (e) is amended to read: 

Cemetery, Mausoleum, Columbarium, and Crematorium. A cemetery, mausoleum, columbarium or 
crematoriumy may be permitted in an industrial or A district as a special use, provided that: 

(1) No graves shall be located less than 100 feet distant from any property line; 

EXHIBIT 2 - Draft Ordinance - Planning and Zoning Commission 
Recommendation



(2) There shall be a strip at least 75 feet in width adjacent to all boundaries of the cemetery 
landscaped and maintained as a green area;  

(3) In any cemetery in which there will be permitted monuments and grave markers rising above the 
surface of the ground, the green area shall include a dense evergreen hedge at least six feet in 
height; and  

(4) No public mausoleum, columbarium, crematory or cemetery chapel shall be erected within 200 
feet of any boundary of the lot or parcel on which it is located. 

(5) No crematorium equipment shall be placed within 100 feet of a property line excepting along 
adjacent right-of-way.     

 
Section 4.  Sec. 101-1-3 and 105-1-5 (e) is amended and re-enacted. 
 

 
________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 
 
Planning and Zoning:                                                                         January 28, 2019 
First Consideration:       February 19, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage:    March 5, 2019 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 1320 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Portions of Sec. 101-1-3, 105-3-14 (2), 
105-3-15 (2), and Remove Sec. 105-1-5 (k) of the Mandan Municipal Code 

related crematoriums 

WHEREAS, Changes are necessary to remove conflict within the land-use code related 
to cremation-related activities       

WHEREAS, Clarification is required to ensure health and safety and mitigate potential 
negative impacts to nearby resident property values 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 105-1-5 (k) is removed. 

Crematorium.  A crematorium may be permitted as a special use with the following minimum 
restrictions: 

(1) No crematorium equipment shall be placed within 100 feet of a property line excepting 
along adjacent right-of-way; and 

(2) Crematoriums shall be located within the Mandan Union Cemetery. 

Section 2.  Sec. 101-1-3 and is amended and re-enacted. 

Crematorium means the establishment for final disposition of deceased remains, either human or 
pet, by thermal, mechanical, or other dissolution process that reduces remains to bone fragments.  
The following standards shall apply: 

(1) Crematorium equipment shall be located a minimum of fifty (50) feet from a property 
line.  

(2) Crematorium equipment shall be located a minimum of three-hundred-fifty (350) feet 
from an existing dwelling.  

Section 3.  Sec. 105-3-14 (2) q. related to permitted uses in the MA Industrial District is added.  

q. Crematorium

EXHIBIT 3



Section 4.  Sec. 105-3-15 (2) v. related to permitted uses in the MB Industrial District is added.   
 
v. Crematorium  
 

 
________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 
 
Planning and Zoning:                                                                         July 22, 2019 
First Consideration:       August 20, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage:    September 3, 2019 
 



 
Board of City Commissioners 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 
 
 
 

 
 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the resolution to transfer real property 
by non-exclusive listing agreement.   

 
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Property is acquired over time by the City of 
Mandan if taxes go unpaid by property owners.   
 
In the past, the respective property has gone to bid and the highest bidder would acquire 
the property.  However, the number of pieces of property that the city has accumulated 
lends this process to be unmanageable given existing staff responsibilities.   
 
The sooner property is placed back into the hands of private ownership the sooner 
property tax revenue may be collected.   
 
The resolution presented in Exhibit 1 includes 13 properties that have been evaluated by 
Assessing, Engineering, and Public Works Departments and deemed non-essential to the 
city.   
 
Exhibit 2 provides a map of these locations for reference.  
 
Exhibit 3 provides the listing agreement to allow Oaktree Realtors the ability to list these 
properties on the Multiple Listing Service (MLS) and begin marketing the properties for 
sale.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Exhibit 1 – Resolution to Transfer Real Property by Nonexclusive Listing Agreement 
Exhibit 2 – Map of property to be listed for sale through resolution 
Exhibit 3 – Listing agreement with Oaktree Realtors 

MEETING DATE: September 3, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: August 28, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM,  
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of the Resolution to Transfer 

Real Property by Nonexclusive Listing Agreement  

Resolution and Ordinances. No. 7 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: September 3, 2019 
Subject: Consider Approval of the Resolution to Transfer Real Property by Nonexclusive 
Listing Agreement 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Positive – Future property tax collections will provide revenue on 
properties currently not producing any tax revenue.       
 
STAFF IMPACT:  Moderate – Each offer will require approval by City Commission.  
Staff time will include summarizing the offer and presenting to City Commission.    
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  The resolution and contract have been reviewed and approved by 
Attorney Brown.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department, Public Works, and 
Assessing Departments recommend approval of this resolution.  .   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the resolution as presented in Exhibit 1 and 
enter into the contract as presented in Exhibit 3.     
 
 
  



RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER REAL PROPERTY BY 
NONEXCLUSIVE LISTING AGREEMENT 

Board of City Commissioners 
City of Mandan, North Dakota 

WHEREAS, The City has acquired numerous parcels throughout the years; and 

WHEREAS, Certain property has been identified to have no public value; and 

WHEREAS, The time for staff to establish a separate bid and answer inquiries 
related to each property is unmanageable given existing staff responsibilities; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-4-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan, 
North Dakota provides the option to list property for sale through a real estate broker; and 

WHEREAS, Utilizing a real estate broker will more efficiently place property 
back into private ownership to begin collecting property tax revenue 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners 
of the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, that, beginning September 3, 2019 
and effective through September 3, 2020, the following shall apply: 

1. The commission rate is 6% of the gross selling price of the respective
property.  The commission may be split 50/50 with another real estate broker.
The minimum commission will be $250 to be split 50/50 by the listing and
selling agent.

2. The City of Mandan reserves the right to reject any and all offers determined
to be insufficient.

3. The property listed in the attached table titled, ” RESOLUTION TO
TRANSFER REAL PROPERTY BY NONEXCLUSIVE LISTING
AGREEMENT” and dated September 3, 2019 shall be listed for sale through
the real estate broker, Oaktree Realtors:

President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 

City Administrator 

EXHIBIT 1



RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER REAL PROPERTY BY NONEXCLUSIVE 
LISTING AGREEMENT (Page 1 of 2)

September 3, 2019

-I 



September 3, 2019

RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER REAL PROPERTY BY NONEXCLUSIVE 
LISTING AGREEMENT (Page 2 of 2)



South of West Hills Estates 1st on Old Red Trail NW (1 Property) 

EXHIBIT 2 - Map of Property to be Listed for sale 
through Resolution



 

Roughriders Sub (10 Properties) 

 

 

 

 

 

'r-:"•••11 
r • .. 
~.,.i 



 

Meads Addition – 2 Blocks west, 1 Block north of Runnings (1 Property) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Hillside north of 5th St. NE, 1 block east of Collins Ave. (1 Property) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



West of the Middle School in Big Sky Estates 3rd.  Property is approx.. .04 acres.  (1 Property) 



� �����	
�� �
�� �� 	��� �
	�
� ��������
� ���� �	
� �
	��� �� ��� �����
�� ������ �	�
� 	� ���������  ���� ����!���� ��� !����!��� �
����" 	#� 	� #�� 	
 ���#�� 	� ���� �	
�$
�
� ��� % �&��� �'�"� ( 	�
� )�	 �� ��������� ����
 �#������	� �	 ���*
	

 �+,� -�.���-� ,./��/�� '��'���0 ��-���& ��1
�
� �-��� ������
�
�� ��"�!!� ����
���� ��1
��
��
��
�� 2,2 ����� ��!!�
1
�	 20	#2 ����� ���! ������ �
	��
1
�

�� �
	�
� � �� ��!!�
3 , "��� �	# ��� �4�!#���� 
�"�� �	 ��!! ��� ��	�� !�"�!!� ����
���� 
	�
�� �	
 ��� 
��� 	�
�� 5 3 �	 �� ��� �� ���� �� �!	���"3 	
 ��� 	���
 
��� ��� ��
�� �������!� �	 ��$ , ���� ���
� �#!! ��� !�"�! 
�"�� �	 ��!! ��� 
	�
�� ���  �!! ��"� �!! �!	���" �	�#����� )���!#���" � 6�

�����&��� 	
 -	��
��� �	

�� 6�

���� &���* �������
� �	 �
�����
 �	 �#��
 �#!! ��� #�7#����	��� 	 ��
��� 	� ��� 
	�
��$
��
�� ���� �	��
��� ���
�� 8 ���� ���� �� ((19: $�$ 	� 8 $
�� ,� �4����"�3 �
	��
 �"
��� �	 !��� ��� 
	�
�� �	
 ��!�$
��
�	 ������ ����#� ��� ��	 ��"� �	 ��"�� 	� )����* $ ,� ���� 
	�
�� �� �	� ����!��!� �	
 ��	 ��"� 	� ���
�
 �	��
��� ���
� ����3 ��  �!! �� !���� �� ��� ;��� ��
���< ����#� �� ��� ��� #���! �� �� ����!��!� �	
 ��	 ��"�$ � !�����" ����
�� �� !���� ;��� ��
���< �� ��� ���  �!! ���� �	 �������� )��	 ��"� 	
 �	��
���� 
�������* �#
��"���� �
�	� 	� ���� ����
�� ��� !�����" �� ��� ��
���$
�
�� ���� ���!! ��
�� �� ��  
����� �	���� "
�����" �	# 	
 ��� �#��	
�=�� �!	���" �"��� �
�����	� �	 	�����1 ($* �	
�"�"�
�� ���	
����	� )�$�$ �	
�"�"� ��!����3 ����
��� 
���3 ��	�� ���>	
 ���#���	� ��"#
��3 ���$* 
�"�
���" ��� �4�����" ��������"
�� 	������ 
	�
��3 ��� ?$* #��!��� ���	
����	�$ � �	� 	� ���� �	�#���� ���!! �� �� ��!�� �� ��� 	
�"���!$
��
�� '�
�	��! 
	�
�� ���!#���1
�	
�

��
��
� '�
�	��! 
	�
�� �4�!#���1
��
�� 	���
�� ����
�
��	�
��
��
��
�	 ,� ���
� � �#����	���" �#��	>���#�! �#
���!!���� ������ 	� ��� 
	�
��@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	 ��,� ���3 ��!!�
)�* �"
�� �	
�
 	����	���� 	� �#�� �� ��� ���
����  ��
� 	������! �#��
� ��� ����
 ��� 
	�
��$
�� ,� ���
� � ���#
��� ������ �����!!�� 	� ��� 
	�
��@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	 ���
��1
��
�
�� ,� ���
� �  �!! 	� ��� 
	�
��@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	
�� ,� ���
� � ����� ������ 	� ��� 
	�
��@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	
�� �� ��!!�
3 , ���� ���� ���	
��� ���� �� ���
� �� � ����� ������ 	� ��� 
	�
��3 �� ��"�� �� 
�7#�
�� �	 ���� ��
����
�� ����3 �	#���3 	
 ����� ��
��������	� ������
��$ , �	!� �	# ��
�!��� 	� ��� 
��	�����!��� �	
 ���� ������$
�� , ���� � �	��
��� �	
 �#�! ���� 
����!3  ���
 �	�����
 
����!3 	
 
#
�!  ���
 �����
���1 )����� 	��* 0�� �.	
�	 ��
��1
�
 &	 �	# ���� �� ����
���@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	
�� &	 �	# ���� ���!� ���#
����@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	 ��'	!��� %
�� &	 �	# �#

���!� ���� �!		� ���#
����@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	
	 ��"� �
������ 	� 
	�
��@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	 ��	�� �	4@ )����� 	��* 0�� �.	
	� +	�� '
	�����	� '!��1 ��!!�
 )����� 	��* � �!! � �!! �	� 
	���� � �	�� 
	�����	� !��$
	�
	� 	�������� 
���� �� 	����� �� �� �	����� �� �� ���!" #$%&�

�������� ������ ���
������������� ���� ������ ! "# ���$�%�� ���
 ��&���� '�(� )���* ���+��* '����%�� ���	 ������,���$�%��,�� 

 see attached 09/03/2019 4

City of Mandan Lots Mandan N

 see attached

CIty of Mandan
Oaktree Realtors

varies

September 3rd, 2019 September 3 2020

09/03/2019

 land only

land only

xxxxx

X

X xxxxx

X
X

X
xxxxx

X
X xxxxxx

X
X X

X

Oaktree REALTORS, 2021 East Main Avenue Bismarck ND 58501 701-226-5942 City of Mandan
Darren Schmidt

EXHIBIT 3 - Listing Agreement w/Oaktree Realtors

□ □ 
□ □ 

□ □□ □ 

□ □ 

□ □ □ 
□ □ □ □ 

□ □ 

Darren Schmidt



	� �����	
�� �
�� �� 	��� �
	�
� �������� � ��� # �' (
	�
		 	�����)	 ���
�	 ��� ��!!�
 ,  �!!1
	
 )�* �		�
���  ��� �	# �� ��!!��" ��� 
	�
�� ��� , �#��	
�=� �	#3 �	#
 �"����3 ���>	
 �"����  ��� �#��	��
�
	� 	
 �!����� �	 ����
 �� 
������ �	
 ��� #
	��� 	� ��	 ��">
���� ��" ��� 
	�
�� �� 
���	���!� �����8
	� )�* 
	��!� ��!! �	# ��	#� �!! ��7#�
��� 
������� ��	#� ��� 
	�
��8

 )�* 
	���� ��� �� �	
 ��� �������	�� ��� 
�	
�� �� 
�7#�
�� �� ��� "	��
���" �#��	
���8

� )�* 
	���� �	��	 ��
� ���	�����	� �	�#�����3 �� 
�7#�
��8

� )�* "��� ��� �#��
 �� #����� ����
��� 	� ���!�3 	
 ���!� ���#
���� �	 ��� 
	�
��3 	
 �	��!� �	�� 
�"���
���	�8

� )�*  �

��� �!! �!������3 ������"3 ��
 �	�����	���"3  �
��"3 ��� !#����" 	� ���� 
������  �!! �� ��

�  	
���" 	
��
 �� ���� 	� �!	���"3 �4���1

�

	 )"* 
����� 
��	����!� �	
 ���#
���3 �����������3 #��!�����3 ��� ���#
����  ��!� , 	 � ��� 
	�
��3 ��� �	



 ���������"3 ���#
��"3 ���>	
 �	����!��" ��� ��!#��!� �
�	��! 
	�
�� �#
��" 
	�
�� ��	 ��"� 	


� 	�� �	#���$

�
� �� ��!!�
3 , ��	 �	# ������ �	 
�!� 	� ��� ���#
��� 	� ��� ���	
����	� , �#
����3 ���!#���" ���	
����	� ��	#� ���
�� �	�����	� 	� ��� 
	�
��$ , �"
�� �	 �	!� �	# ��
�!��� ��� ������ �	# �
	� ��� �	���3 �4�����3 	
 ����"��3
�� ���!#���" ���	
���A� ����3 ���#

�� �� �	# �� � 
��#!� 	� ��  ����	!���" ���	
����	� �
	� �	# 	
 �� � 
��#!� 	� "����"
�� �	# ��� ���	
����	�  ���� �� ���	

���$
��
�� *���
��� �
	�
� 	���
�� � , #���
����� �	# �
� � �����
 	� � �#!��!� ������" ��
���� )���* ���  �!! "���
�	 ���	
����	� �	 ��� �	���
���" ��� 
	�
��$ ,  �!! "
��� �	# ������ �	 ��� 
	�
�� ��� , �#��	
�=� �	# �	 ��
��� ���
�
 
	�
�� ���!#���" �#������	� 	� ���� �	 � �#!��!� ������" ��
���� )���*$ 0	# ��� !��� ���	
����	� 	� ��� ,���
���
�� �	���
���" ��� 
	�
��3 ���!#���" �#� �	� !������ �	 ��� ���
���3 �	�	"
��� ���>	
 ��
�#�! �	#
�$ ,  �!! �	���� �	# 	�
�� 
�!����� ���	
����	� ��	
���� �	 ��� ��!� 	� ��� 
	�
��$ ,� �	# ��!! ��� 
	�
��3 �	# ��� 
	���� ���	
����	�
� �	���
���" ��� 
	�
��3 ���!#���" �#� �	� !������ �	 ���
���3 
��� ��� ��
�� 	� ��!� �	 ��� ���3 �����
 ���������
�� )���!#���" �
����
�  �	 ��� #�� ��� ���	
����	� �	 
��
� �	��
��!� ��!� 
�	
��*3 ��� 
�!����� "	��
����� ��������$
��
�� ���
�� ��� ����
	��
*
���
�� � �� 	� ���� ���� , ���� �	� 
������� �	���� �
	� ��� �#�����!���3 "	��
�����
�� �"����3 	
 �	��	 ��
� ���	�����	� ��	#� ��� 
	�
�� ���� , ���� �	� �	!� �	# ��	#�3 ��� , �"
�� �	 
	��!� ��!! �	# 	�
�� ��� �	���� 	� ���� ��� ���� ,  	#!� 
������$ , #���
����� ���� , ��� �	� 
��#�� �	 ��!! �	3 	
 ����
������� �� ��� ��
��3
�	 �	�����	��3 	
 
���!�"�� 	� ��!� �"�����3 	
 �������� 	
 #�!���=� ���� ��!� �� #� �!�	��3 	�B����	���!�3 �	� �������!�3 	
 �	�
�
 �	!������ �
	�3 ��� �
�	� �#� �	 ���� �
�	�A� 
���3 �	!	
3 
�!�"�	�3 ��43 ����	��! 	
�"��3 �"�3 ������! 	
 �����! ������!���3
�� ����!� ����#�3 ����#�  ��� 
����� �	 ��

��"�3 	
 ����#�  ��� 
����� �	 #�!�� ����������$ , #���
����� �#
���
 ���� !	��!
�� 	
������������ ���!#�� 	���
 
	������ �!����� 	� �
�	��$
�
�� +��� ��**
		
�� � ��� ��**
		
�� ���� '�� ��� 	���, ���	�, ������, �� *����*��� �' ����
�� �������+ 	���� -� �����*
��� -��.��� ���� 
��
�
���� ���� �	���� -��/�� ��� 
�	 ��
���"
�� �� ��!!�
3 , ��
��� �#��	
�=� �	# �	 ��
��� �� 
	�
�� ��� �!!	 �	# �	 ���
� �	#
 �	������	�  ��� 	���
 ���! ������
�� �
	��
�3 ���!#���" �
	��
� 
�
�������" 	�!� ��� �#��
$ �� ��!!�
3 ,  �!! �� ������" �
	��
 � �	��! �	������	� 	�
�� �C 	� ��� "
	�� ��!!��" 
���$ -	������	� ��� �� �!�� �� �	!!	 �1 ����� ��� �#��
 �
	��
 �C
�	 ����
�
	��
 �C3 	
 	���
 ��
��1
�
 #	� ��� ������"�	� ��� 	� ��� �	!!	 ��" ������1
�� )�* �� ��� �!	���" 	� ��� ��!�3 �� , ��!! 	
 �"
�� �	 ��!! ��� 
	�
�� ���	
� ���� �	��
��� ����3 ���� �� ��	���

�� �
	��
 	
 , ��!! ��� 
	�
��  ���	#� �	#
 ����������8
�� )�* �� �	# 
����� � �#��
  �	 ��  �!!��" ��� ��!� �	 �#� ��� 
	�
�� �����
 ($* �� ��� 
��� ��� �	
�� �� ���� �	��
���
��� ��� 	� ��� 	���
 ������� ��
��3 �� ���3 ��
���3 	
 ?$* �� � 
��� ��� 	� ��
�� �	  ���� , �"
�� �� � ��"��� #
�����
��� �"
������3 �#� �� , ���� 
��#�� �	 ��!!1
��� )�* ��  ����� ����� ����
 ��� ��� 	� ���� �	��
��� , ��!! 	
 �"
�� �	 ��!! ��� 
	�
�� �	 ���	��  �	1
��� ($ �#
��" ���� �	��
��� ���� ��7#�
� 	� �� ��	#� ��� 
	�
��3 	
8
��� ?$ �#
��" ���� �	��
��� ���� �� ����
������ ��	 ��" 	� ����
��� �� ��� 
	�
�� 	
  �� ������!!� ��	 �
��	 ��� 
	�
��$
��
 ����
 ��� �4�
���	� 	� ���� �	��
���3 ��� �� ���
� �
� �	 ��"��� ���>	
 �����" #
����� �"
������� 	
 	���
�3 , #���
������,
��� �	 �	� ���� �	 �� �	#
 �	������	� �� , ��"� ��	���
 ��!�� !�����" �	��
��� #���
  ���� , �� 	�!�"���� �	 �� � �	������	�
��� �	 ��	���
 !������� ���! ������ �
	��
$
��
��� ��!!�
)�* ,�����!1 �&��� ���!!�
 �&��� ���!" #$%&�

������������������������������������������������ ���� ������ ! "# ���$�%�� ���
 ��&���� '�(� )���* ���+��* '����%�� ���	 ������,���$�%��,�� ��������������

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

6.000 3.000
3.000 minimum $250 commission split 50/50 by listing and buyer agent

30

City of Mandan

Darren Schmidt



��� �����	
�� �
�� �� 	��� �
	�
� �������� � ��� ( �' (
��� ���� ����+ �����	�����
�� � ��0�1� 2034����5 0��6 �7 �8� -�09�� 8 � ���  504��5  � �440����5 �:��26 �0��26� ��
��� � 
��#!� 	� ���� !�����" �	��
���3 ��� �
	��
  �!! �	 
�
����� �	# �� ��� ��!� 	� ���� 
	�
��$ ,� � �#��
 
�
������� �� ��� �
	��
  ����� �	
��� �#� �	#
 
	�
��3 � &#�! �"����  �!! �� �
�����$ ���� ����� ��� �
	��
  �!! 
�
����� �	�� �	# ��� ��� �#��
)�*3 ���  �!! 	 �
��	 ��� ���� �#���� �	 ��� �#��
)�* ���� �
	��
 	 �� �	 �	#$ �,�  �!! 
	����� �
	��
 �
	� ���	�����" �4�!#����!� 	� �	#
 ����!�$ &#�!
��
 �"����  �!! !���� ��� !���! 	� 
�
��������	� ��� �
	��
 ��� 
	����$ ,� � &#�! �"���� ��	#!� �
���3 �	���������! ���	
����	�
��� ��	#� 
���3 ��
��3 ��� �	������	�  �!! ���!! �� ��� �	���������! #�!��� �	# ����
#�� ��� �
	��
 ��  
����" �	 ����!	�� ������� ���	
����	�
��� ��	#� �	#$ �!! 	���
 ���	
����	�  �!! �� ���
��$ ��� �
	��
 ����	� ��� �� � &#�! �"��� #�!��� �	�� �	# ��� ��� �#��
)�* �"
�� �	 ��$ ��
�� �"
����" �	�� 	����!� &#�! �"����3 ��� �� &#�! �"���� ��	#!� �!� �� �	#
 �
�������	�3 �	#  �!! �� "����" # ��� 
�"�� �	 �4�!#����
��� 
�
��������	� �� �� ��D�	#�� �
�������	�$ +	 ���
3 �� �	# ��	#!� ������ �	� �	 �"
�� �	 � 	����!� �#�! �"����3 ��� �	#  ��� ��� �
	��

��� �	 
�
����� �	#3��	# ��� "��� # ��� 		
�#���� �	 ��!! �	#
 
	�
�� �	 �#��
� 
�
������� �� ��� �
	��
$
��� 	�����)	 
�	�����
��	 �� ��� -��/�� �+����" 
��� ��� #���
��		� ���� ���	
����	� ��	#� &#�! �"����3 ��!!�
)�* �	 ����
#���
��� ��� �
	��
 �� �	!!	 �1
���
��	 ��!!�
)�*  �!! �"
�� �	 &#�! �"���� 
�
��������	� ��� )����� 	��* � �!! �	�����
 � �!! �	� �	�����
 	���
� ���� �� �#��

��
 
�
������� �� ��� �
	��
$
���
��� ��!!�
1 ��!!�
1
�� ���� ��&��� ��� ��&���
���
��� ����
���� ����+ � ��0�1� 2034����5 0��6 �7 -�09�� 8 �  504��5  � �440����5 �:��26 �0��26� ��� �
	��
  �!! �	��� �	
��� �	#3���  
����"3 � !�������  �	  �!! �� �����" �� �	#
 �	����� �"��� �	 ��� �4�!#��	� 	� �!! 	���
 ����!����� !�������� 	� ���
��� �
	��
$ �� ���		
�� � ���
��	� ��	���� ��� ��	 ���	�� ��	 ��	��� � ��	 ���	� ��� ��	 ���
��	� ��	�� ���	� �	�� ��	 ���
�	�	�
��� � ���	�� ��� ������ ����	��	 ��� 
������
�� �� �� ��� � ���� ����� ���� ��	 �	�
�
�
�� �	����
�� ���
��	� ��	��� ���	
��	 
� ��	�� ���� ��	�	 
� � 
����	� ����	��	 � 
������
� �	��		� ��� ��	 ���	�� ��	 ���	� � ��	��� � ��	 ���	� ���
��	� ��	���
��
 .	����1���� �	����� �"���  �	 �
�	��!!� 
�
������ �	�� �	# ��� ��� �#��
 �� � #
����� 	� 
	�
�� �� � &#�! �"���$ ����
��� ����� ��� �	����� �"���  �!! 
�
����� �	�� �	# ��� ��� �#��
)�*3 ���  �!! 	 � ��� ���� �#���� �	 ��� �#��
)�* ���� ���
��� �	����� �"��� 	 �� �	 �	#$ ,�  �!! 
	����� ��� �	����� �"��� �
	� ���	�����" �4�!#����!� 	� �	#
 ����!�$ &#�! �"����
��  �!! !���� ��� !���! 	� 
�
��������	� ��� �	����� �"��� ��� 
	����$ ,� � &#�! �"���� ��	#!� �
���3 �	���������! ���	
����	�
��� ��	#� 
���3 ��
��3 ��� �	������	�  �!! ���!! �� ��� �	���������! #�!��� �	# ����
#�� ��� �	����� �"��� ��  
����" �	 ����!	�� �������
��� ���	
����	����	#� �	#$��!! 	���
 ���	
����	�  �!! �� ���
��$ ��� �	����� �"��� ����	� ��� �� � &#�! �"��� #�!��� �	�� �	# ���
��� ��� �#��
)�* �"
�� �	 ��$ �� �"
����" �	 � 	����!� &#�! �"����3 ��� �� &#�! �"���� ��	#!� �!� �� �	#
 �
�������	�3 �	#  �!! ��
��� "����" # ��� 
�"�� �	 �4�!#���� 
�
��������	�$ +	 ���
3 �� �	# ��	#!� ������ �	� �	 �"
�� �	 � 	����!� &#�! �"����3 ��� �	#  ���
��� ��� �	����� �"�����	 
�
����� �	#3 �	# ��� "��� # ��� 		
�#���� �	 ��!! �	#
 
	�
�� �	 �#��
� 
�
������� �� ���
��	 �	����� �"���$
��
 );�	����� �"���<*3 �� ����!����� !�������
��� 	� ��� �
	��
3 �� �	����� �	 ��� �	!�!� �� �� �"��� �	
 �	# #�!��� �>�� �
�	��!!� 
�
������ ��� �#��
$ 0	#
 ����"����� �	�����
��� �"��� �� 	�!�"���� �	� �	 
����! ��� �	���������! ���	
����	� 	������� �
	� �	# �	 	���
 !��������3 �4��� �	 ��� �
	��
 �� ���
"� 	� ���
�	 	��
��"�� 	� �	#
 �
�������	�$ ,� �� #���
��		� ���� ��� �
	��
 ��� �	��� ��	���
 �"��� �	
 �	# �#
��" ��� ��
� 	� ���� �"
������ ��1
�	� (*$ ��� �	����� �"��� �� �	� ��!� �	 �#!��!! ��� ��
�� 	� �	#
 !�����" �"
������3 ���>	
 ?$* 0	# ��� ��� �
	��
 �#�#�!!� �"
�� �	
�	� ��� �	������� 	� ��	���
 �"���$ �� �	������� 	� ��	���
 �"��� �� � �� 	
 ������	��! �"��� �	����	� 
�!���� ��� ��
�� �	�����
�	� �"��� 	� ��� 	� ��� �#���� 	 �� �	 �	# �� 
���	#�!� ����
���� �� ���� �"
������$
�	� 	�����)	 
�	�����
�� ��-��/�� �+����" 
��� ��� #���
��		� ���� ���	
����	�3 ��!!�
)�* ����)�* ��� �	!!	 ��" ������	�1
�	�
�		 ��!!�
)�* ������ ��� �
	��
A� �	������� 	� ��� ��	�� ����� �"��� �� ��� ��!!�
A� �	����� �"��� ��� )����� 	��* �������
�	
 ��	�� �	� ����� &#�! �"���� �� �� �
����$
�	�
�	� ��!!�
1 ��!!�
1
�
 ���� ��&��� ��� ��&���
�
�
�
� , ��
��� ��
���� ���� , ���� 
������� � �	� 	� ���� �	��
��� ��� �"
�� �	 ��� ��
��$
�
�
�
�
�
� ��������� &��� � ��
 &���
�
	
�

 �
	��
�"� � ��
 &���
�
�
�
� �� �������� � ��
 ���
��� '�	��
��
��� �������� ������ '�	�� ����-�!! '�	�� -���>�����>E�
���
��� ���� �� � !�"�!!� ������" �	��
���$ ,� �	# ����
� !�"�! 	
 ��4 ������3 �	��#!� �� �
	
���� 
	�����	��!$
��� ;-
	*���/*����� -���� �' �������	<*�*-�� �	� ���+ ���!" #$%&�

������������������������������������������������ ���� ������ ! "# ���$�%�� ���
 ��&���� '�(� )���* ���+��* '����%�� ���	 ������,���$�%��,�� ��������������

CIty of Mandan

Darren  Schmidt / Jason Schmidt

CIty of Mandan

Oaktree Realtors

                  Darren  Schmidt / Jason Schmidt

(701)223-7422 (701)226-5942

City of Mandan

I I 

□ □ 

I I 

□ 
□ 

Darren Schmidt


Darren Schmidt


Darren Schmidt

Darren Schmidt

Darren Schmidt

Darren Schmidt



Page 4
Suggested List Price PARCEL ID STREET ADDRESS LOT BLOCK SUDIVISION Square Feet Assessed Value

10,000.00$   650218000 4609 Old Red Trl NW 24 2 CROWN POINT SUBDIVISION REPLAT 34,886.00           2,400.00$    
5,000.00$   652971000 E 40' OF S 110' & 40' ADJ VAC ST 1 MEADS ADDITION 8,800.00              3,500.00$    
1,000.00$   653286000 604 1st Ave NE 5 73 FIRST NORTHERN PACIFIC ADDITION 2,856.00              1,000.00$    
1,000.00$   654434500 35A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 4,275.00              1,000.00$    
1,500.00$   654425500 26A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 4,354.00              1,500.00$    
1,500.00$   654429500 30A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 6,067.00              1,500.00$    

500.00$    654406500 8A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 1,746.00              500.00$   
2,500.00$   654423500 24A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 8,454.00              2,500.00$    
2,000.00$   654403500 5A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 6,622.00              2,000.00$    
1,000.00$   654435500 36A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 3,319.00              1,000.00$    

500.00$    654402500 4A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 1,381.00              500.00$   
500.00$    654410000 N 5' LOT 12 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 625.00                   500.00$   

1,000.00$   654399500 1A 1 ROUGHRIDER ESTATES-PIONEER ADDITION 4,426.00              -$   
  $ $ 



MLS # 2018 Taxes 2018 Speical Installment 2018 Special Balance
-$   188.55$   847.13$   
-$   238.28$    713.00$    
-$   339.20$   1,059.95$    
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   -$   -$   
-$   163.28$    433.17$    
-$   $ $ 


	Agenda 09 03 19
	Minutes 08 20 19
	B1 - Bids relating to contingent heavy equipment rates
	C1 - Extra Mile Day Proclamation
	C2 - Consider approval of Engage Addition minor plat
	C3 - Charity Raffle Permit Bismarck Mandan Rifle Pitsol Association
	NB1 - Consider approving Stantect for assistance of procurement/implementation of brownfield grants
	NB2 - Appointment of Victoria Vayda to P&Z Commission
	NB3 - Contract with Bartlett & West for MMPL and downtown parks project
	NB4 - Engineering Service Agreement with Moore Engineering SID 215 Mid-Town East 
	NB5 - RWI ad for bids and acceptance of SWC grant
	RO1 - Ord. 1325 violation for not carring liability insurance
	RO2 - Ord 1323 Meadow Ridge 4th addition
	RO3 - Ord. 1324 Meadow Ridge 5th Addition
	RO4 - Ord. 1322 Engage Addition
	RO5 - Ord. 1321 Lots 4 &5, Blk 1 of Midway 14th Addition
	RO6 - Ord. 1320 Crematoriums
	RO7 - Resolution to transfer real property by nonexclusive listing agreement



